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AVVISO IMPORTANTE

Il presente documento € una nota sugli strumenti finanziari del 9 settembre
2020 (la"Nota sugli strumentifinanziari") emessa da Brewdog plc (I"Azienda’,
"Brewdog", "noi" 0 "ci"), redatta conformemente alle Disposizioni enunciate nel
Regolamento sul Prospetto informativo di cuialla Sezione 73A e alla Sezione

84 del Financial Services and Markets Act del 2000 ("FSMA") e approvata

dalla Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA") conformemente al FSMA quale
autorita competente ai sensi del Regolamento (UE) 2017/1129. LaFCA approva
la presenta Nota sugli strumenti finanziari esclusivamente come conforme ai
criteridicompletezza, comprensibilita e coerenzaimposti dal Regolamento
(UE) 2017/1129 ma tale approvazione non dovra essere considerata quale
accettazione della qualita degli strumenti finanziari oggetto della presente Nota.
Gliinvestitori sono pertanto tenutia effettuare una propria valutazione in merito
allidoneita dellinvestimento nei suddetti strumenti finanziari.

Ulterioriinformazioniriguardantil’Azienda sono contenute inundocumento di
registrazione (il"Documento diregistrazione") danoiemesso il 9 settembre 2020.
Unbreveriepilogo scrittoin linguaggio non tecnico e riportante le caratteristiche
essenzialinonchéirischiassociatiallAziendae alle AzioniBdellAziendada

£0,001 ciascuna (le "Nuove Azioni B*) che saranno offerte al pubblico (" Offerta)

e contenutoinunasintesi pubblicata dallAzienda, anch'essa datata 9 settembre
2020 (la"Notadisintesi"). La Nota disintesi, la presente Nota sugli strument
finanziari e il Documento diregistrazione, consideratiinsieme, compongono un
prospetto (il "Prospetto informativo") che € stato approvato dalla FCA in conformita
conle Disposizionidel Regolamento sul Prospetto. Ticonsigliamo pertanto di
leggereiltesto completo del Prospetto informativo. LAzienda e gli Amministratori
(icuinomie relative funzioni, ove del caso, sonoindicatia pagina 36) accettanola
responsabilita per le informazioni contenute nel Prospetto informativo. LAzienda
harichiesto che laFCA forniscaun certificato diapprovazione e unacopiadel
Prospettoinformativo alle relative autorita competenti (con unatraduzione, nella
linguaappropriata, dellanotadisintesi contenuta nel presente documento, qualora
pertinente) in Austria, Belgio, Bulgaria, Croazia, Repubblica di Cipro, Repubblica
Ceca,Danimarca, Estonia, Finlandia, Francia, Germania, Grecia, Ungheria, Islanda,
Irlanda, Italia, Lettonia, Liechtenstein, Lituania, Lussemburgo, Malta, Paesi Bassi,
Norvegia, Polonia, Portogallo, Romania, Slovacchia, Slovenia, Spagna, Sveziae
Regno Unito (complessivamente le "Giurisdizioniapprovate) come da disposizioni
sulpassaporto del FSMA. Ladistribuzione del Prospetto informativo e/o diqualsiasi
documento correlatoinuna giurisdizione diversa dalle Giurisdizioniapprovate

puo essere sottopostaarestrizionidallalegge, percio le persone che vengonoin
possessoditale Prospetto e/o di qualsiasi documento correlato devono informarsi
su,eattenersia, detterestrizioni.

Inparticolare, il Prospetto informativo e i Moduli di sottoscrizione non devono
essere distribuiti nelle Giurisdizioni sottoposte a restrizioni, né inoltratio
trasmessida e verso le stesse e in nessun‘altra giurisdizione in cuil'estensione
oladisponibilita dell'Offerta possa violare qualsivoglia legge applicabile. La
mancata osservanza delle suddette restrizioni puo costituire una violazione
dellanormativa sui valorimobiliari delle giurisdizioni sopra citate. Resta nella
responsabilita di chiunque risieda al difuori del Regno Unito (inclusi senza
limitazioni depositari, intestatari e fiduciari) e desideri sottoscrivere I'Offerta
garantire la piena osservanza delle leggi di qualsiasi territorio pertinente
relativamente all'Offerta in questione, inclusi l'ottenimento di qualsiasi consenso
governativo o dialtra natura che possa essere richiesto, la conformita con altre
formalita necessarie e il pagamento di qualsiasi emissione, trasferimento o altra
imposta dovutaintaliterritori.

Per quanto a conoscenza dellAzienda e degli Amministratorile informazioni
contenute nella Nota sugli strumenti finanziari sono conformi ai fatti e prive di
omissioni che potrebbero influenzare il significato di dette informazioni.

BREWDOGPLC
(registratain Scozia ai sensi del Companies Act 2006 con numero diiscrizione
alregistro delleimprese SC311560)

Offerta di sottoscrizione per 7,5 milioni di sterline (soggetta ad aumento finoaun
massimo di 50 milioni di sterline a discrezione degli Amministratori).

Non & stata effettuata, né siintende effettuare almomento, nessuna sottoscrizione
peralcunaazione (incluse le Nuove Azioni B) del capitale dellAzienda che sia
destinataallanegoziazione o allaguotazione in qualsiasiborsa valorio mercato
azionario. Durante l'assemblea generale dellAzienda ("AGM"), prevista per
settembre 2020, verraconcessaagli Azionistila facolta dicreare, assegnare ed
emettere nuove azioni equity (senzadiritto diprelazione) fino al valore nominale
massimo aggregato di£2.000.Le Nuove Azioni B sarannoemesse al prezzodi
£25,15 ciascuna con sottoscrizione minima di due azioni.

|'Offerta saraattivadal 10 settembre 2020. Una volta attivatal'Offertaea
condizione chelerisoluzioni proposte allAGM vengano approvate, si prevede
I'emissione diNuove Azioni B concadenzamensile. Le nuove azioniB avranno
iImedesimo grado delle Azioni B attualmente emesse a partire dalladata
dellemissione. Non e possibile apportare alcunamodificaai dirittiassociati alle
Azioni B senzal'approvazione deipossessorididette Azioni.Unriepilogo deidirittie
dellerestrizionicomplessivamente attribuibilialle Azioni B ériportato al paragrafo 4
dellaParte V del Documento diregistrazione, disponibile come descritto di seguito.
LLe Nuove Azioni B vengono create aisensidel Companies Act del 2006, saranno
emesseinformanominativae saranno trasferibiliin formasia cartaceache non
cartacea quindibeneficerannoin seguito di tuttiidividendie le altre ripartizioni di utili
dichiarate, corrisposte o effettuate dallAzienda riguardo alle Nuove Azioni B.Una
volta effettuate le sottoscrizioni,non & possibile procedere allarevoca salvo qualora
sia stato pubblicato dall’Azienda un prospetto informativo supplementare. In tal
casodliinvestitori potranno revocare le proprie sottoscrizionidurante i due Giorni
Lavorativisuccessivialla pubblicazione del suddetto prospetto supplementare. |
certificati azionari saranno caricati sul sito Web Registrar’s Investor Centre (www.
investorcentre.co.uk) in formato elettronico. L'Offerta verra chiusail 28 gennaio 2021
(senonprorogata adiscrezione degliAmministratori) oin dataantecedentein caso
disottoscrizione completata o adiscrezione degli Amministratori.

Le copie del presente documento, della Nota di sintesi e del Documento
diRegistrazione sono disponibili (e sara disponibile qualsiasi prospetto
informativo supplementare pubblicato dall’/Azienda) gratuitamente presso gli
ufficidi BrewDog, in Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB41
8BX, Scozia, sul sito web di BrewDog www.brewdog.com/equityforpunks e
presso gli ufficidi RW Blears LLP, consulente legale dell’Azienda, all'indirizzo 15
Old Square, Lincoln’s Inn, Londra WC2A 3UE.

Tutte le opinionidichiarate nel presente Prospetto informativo, tuttii puntidi vista
espressi e tutte le proiezioni, previsioni o dichiarazionirelative ad aspettative
riguardanti eventifuturi o possibili future prestazioni dell’Azienda rappresentano
valutazioni proprie dell'Azienda stessa basate sulle informazioni disponibili alla
datadel presente Prospetto informativo.

Le informazioniditerzi contenute nel Prospetto informativo, quali dati relativi
alle vendite e posizioni dimercato per altriimportanti marchi dibirra artigianale
inclusialle pagine 10 e 11, sono state accuratamente riprodotte, e per quanto
BrewDog siaaconoscenza e in grado di constatare dalle informazioni
pubblicate da dette terze parti, non & stato omesso alcun fatto che potrebbe
rendere le informazioniriprodotte inesatte o ingannevoli.

Desideriamorichiamare la tua attenzione suifattori dirischio indicati di seguito.
In caso didubbio riguardo alle azionida intraprendere, potrairivolgertiaun
consulente finanziario indipendente autorizzato ai sensi del FSMA.

FATTORIDIRISCHIO
Leggiinteramente il Prospetto informativo prima di decidere se investire o meno
e tieni conto deirischi che l'investimento comporta, tra cui:

Rischiassociati alle nuove AzioniB

BrewDog non € una societa quotata in Borsa, e anche se questa condizione
potrebbe cambiare in seguito, non € possibile prevedere se lo sarain futuro

o entro quanto tempo. Pertanto, BrewDog non & soggetta alle Regole di
quotazione inborsa di UKLA (UK Listing Authority), ai Regolamenti dell AIM, al
Codice digovernance aziendale del Regno Unito o ad altri simili regolamenti
oregole che siapplicano alle societa con azioniammesse o negoziate inun
mercato regolamentato o in Borsa. Di conseguenza, gli azionisti di BrewDog
non godranno né dei diritti né delle protezioni disponibili agli azionisti di societa
ufficialmente quotate in Borsa.

- [titolaridelle Azioni A, che rappresentano oltre il 50% del capitale sociale
emesso dall'Azienda, avranno normalmente diritto di voto allassemblea
generale su questioni commerciali di carattere generale. | titolari delle Azioni
Anon potranno approvare nessuna risoluzione che possa compromettere
i diritti delle Azioni B senza che venga approvata anche unarisoluzione
separata deititolari delle Azioni B.

» Poco piudel 22% delle azioni emesse da BrewDog sono Azioni C privilegiate
cheinsede di liquidazione hanno diritto di precedenza sulle Azioni B. Quindi,
nel casoin cuilintero capitale dell Azienda venga restituito agli azionisti o in
caso discioglimento dell'Azienda, gli Azionisti C avranno diritto a una somma
paria quella piti elevata fra (a) limporto che riceverebbero se tutte le azioni
dell'Azienda venissero classificate pari passu e (b) il prezzo di sottoscrizione
pitlun tasso annuo composto del 18% su tale prezzo di sottoscrizione per
il periodo compreso fra la data di emissione e quellain cuiil capitale & stato
restituito. Di conseguenza, il diritto dei titolari delle Azioni B in merito alle
procedure di una liquidazione o ad altre procedure riguardantiil capitale
sociale potrebbe essere limitato (o nullo) nel casoin cuil'Azienda non
disponga di capitale sufficiente per soddisfare (o soddisfare interamente) il
diritto di precedenza in sede di liquidazione delle Azioni C privilegiate.

- |'azienda potrebbe procedere a un ulteriore finanziamento tramite emissione
diazioni che potrebbe risultare dilutivo per gli Azionisti esistenti, 0o comportare
I'emissione dititoli (ad es. ulteriori Azioni C privilegiate o altre classi diazioni con
maggiori diritti) i cui diritti, preferenze e privilegi siano riservati ai titolari di Azioni
B, riducendoil valore delle Nuove Azioni B. L'Azienda potrebbe intraprendere tali
azioni senza specifica autorizzazione deititolari delle Azioni B.

+  Ognianno una parte dei profitti annui dell Azienda viene destinata
dall'Azienda stessa alla BrewDog Foundation, che a sua volta distribuisce
i fondi alle organizzazioni di beneficenza selezionate. Questa politica di
donazioni annuali a enti di beneficenza ridurra limporto dei profitti disponibili
per la corresponsione dei dividendi agli Azionisti e per il reinvestimento
nellampliamento delle attivita dell' Azienda. La politica corrente dell' Azienda
non prevede il pagamento di dividendi.

« L'Aziendaassegnain parti ugualiil 10% dei suoi profitti annuali al personale.
Anche se tale operazione ridurra limporto dei profitti disponibili per
la corresponsione dei dividendi agli Azionisti e per il reinvestimento
nellampliamento delle attivita dell' Azienda, consideriamo fondamentale
questa elargizione per motivare e premiare i dipendenti, ovvero la nostra
risorsa pitlimportante, e per attrarre nuovi talenti. Tuttavia, in base alla
nostra politica attuale non paghiamo dividendi ma reinvestiamo i profitti per
sostenere ulteriormente la crescita dell Azienda.

«  Gli Amministratori hanno diritto a rifiutare la registrazione di qualsiasi cessione
diazioni.In questo modo possiamo impedire alle grandi multinazionali
produttrici di birra di acquistare le azioni di BrewDog.

+ Inbase allanostra politica attuale non paghiamo dividendi ma reinvestiamoi
profitti per sostenere ulteriormente la crescita dell Azienda.

I diritti conferiti dalle azioni

« Pocopilidel 22% delle azioniemesse da BrewDog sono Azioni C privilegiate
e garantiscono in sede diliquidazione precedenza sulle Azioni A e B.Di
conseguenza, il diritto degli Azionisti B in merito alle procedure di una liquidazione
odellarestituzione dellintero capitale potrebbe risultare limitato o nullo.

» BrewDog non & ancora quotata in alcuna borsa valori, quindi le azioni possono
essere vendute soltanto una volta l'anno tramite la nostra piattaforma di
trading (vedi pagina 24 per maggiori dettagli). Inoltre, poiché I'azienda non
€ quotata, non € neanche soggetta a tutte le norme e i regolamentiche si
applicano alle societa quotate.

«  GliAmministratori hanno diritto a rifiutare la registrazione di qualsiasi cessione
diazioni.In questo modo possiamo impedire alle grandi multinazionali
produttrici dibirra di acquistare le azioni di BrewDog.

« Inbaseallanostra politica attuale non paghiamo dividendi ma reinvestiamo
i profitti per sostenere ulteriormente la crescita. BrewDog assegna in parti
ugualiil 10% dei suoi profittiannuali al personale e devolve ogni anno una parte
significativa di tali profitti a favore di organizzazioni di beneficenza tramite
la BrewDog Foundation. Pertanto I'Azienda disporra di minori profitti che
saranno reinvestiti nell'azienda stessa.

«  Scontiealtrivantaggi a cui gliinvestitori hanno diritto potrebbero essere divolta
in volta modificati (0 anche annullati o sostituiti) a discrezione dell'Azienda.

Partecipazione azionaria attuale

« Piudellameta delle azioni di BrewDog sono detenute dai nostri soci fondatori
e dainostri dipendenti. Pertanto, tali soggetti possono votare le decisioni
durante le assemblee generali, anche se gliinvestitori dell'Offerta, come
azionisti di minoranza, dovessero manifestare parere contrario.

Idoneita all'investimento

« llvalore delle azioni di BrewDog pud aumentare o diminuire, quindi, se decidi di
investire, potresti non riuscire a recuperare il capitale investito. Le prestazioni
registrate in passato non sono necessariamente indicative di quelle future.

« Primadiprendere una decisione, devi pensare se linvestimento sia o meno
un'attivita adatta a te. Non effettuare investimenti superiorialle tue possibilita
economiche.

Attivitadell'azienda

- LaBrexiteisuoieffetti,in particolare la costante debolezza della sterlina
cheaumentail costo delle spese in conto capitale, potrebbero influire
negativamente sull Azienda. Inoltre, tariffe doganali e altre misure potrebbero
avere unimpatto negativo sulla redditivita dell'Azienda dal momento che
BrewDog & unimpresa britannica con significative esportazioniin Europa (circa
i114% delle esportazioni complessive). Per mitigare potenziali disagi, BrewDog
sta valutando limpatto sulle attivita dellAzienda di tal tariffe, la delocalizzazione
dimercie personale ed eventualiimplicazioni riguardantila proprieta
intellettuale.

« L'1tmarzo 2020, Organizzazione Mondiale della Sanita ha dichiarato la pandemia
diCOVID-19 causata da unnuovo ceppo di coronavirus. Il Regno Unito e altri
governiin tutto il mondo hanno adottato misure per contenere la diffusione del
virus, iviinclusi autoisolamento, restrizioni ai viaggi, quarantena e annullamento di
riunioni ed eventi. Gli effetti sulleconomia britannica e su quella globale sono stati
sinora considerevolie hanno influito sulle prospettive dimolte aziende, compresa
lanostra. Nel periodo compreso fral'ultimo esercizio conclusosiil 31 dicembre
2019eil30 giugno 2020 (data dei pitirecenti conti digestione non verificati del
Gruppo),ilfatturato lordo complessivoammontavaa £108.025.463 (rispettoa
quello atteso di £126.682.293). Cio ha determinato una perdita netta complessiva
diquesto periodo paria £8151.071. Ladivisione retail che copre l'attivita di vendita
dellAzienda & stata colpitain modo particolare dalla pandemia; hainfattiregistrato
unfatturato lordo pari allameta dellimporto previsto per il periodo compreso
frail 31dicembre 2019 e il 30 giugno 2020, con conseguente perditanetta di
£9.242 044 per questo ramo aziendale. Limpatto complessivo alungo termine di
questa pandemia sul Gruppo non & tuttora chiaro almomento della pubblicazione
del presente Prospetto informativo. L'Azienda non haal momento piani per
modificare oritardare limplementazione delle sue priorita strategiche e a giudizio
dellAzienda stessail capitale operativo disponibile al Gruppo & sufficiente per le
sue necessitacorrenti, almeno per 12 mesi dalla data del presente documento.
Tuttavia, va precisato che un ulteriore rafforzamento delle restrizioni (inclusa
l'eventuale imposizione dinuovi periodi dilockdown per i cittadini) potrebbero
avere unimpatto concreto sull'attivita commerciale e sulle ambizioni di crescitaa
lungo termine del Gruppo, iviinclusala capacita di attuare le strategie di crescita
stabilite, e potrebbe infine alungo termine ridurre il valore delle azioni dell Azienda.

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 3



ELEMENTICHIAVE

CONTIAMO DIAUMENTARE IL NOSTRO

CAPITALESOCIALEDI

PERUN FUTURO SOSTENIBILE, CONUN
OBIETTIVO FINALE DI

o L'Offerta verra attivata il 10 settembre
2020 e terminerail 28 gennaio 2021,
se non prorogata a discrezione degli
amministratori

» llprezzo diciascuna azione ammonta a
£25,15, mentre l'investimento minimo &
di 2 azioni (£50,30)

¢ Presentando larichiesta online,
I'importo massimo della sottoscrizione
€ pari a £12.575 per 500 azioni. Non si
applica alcun limite se larichiesta viene
presentata sumodulo cartaceo;in tal
caso, é possibile presentare piu diuna
richiesta

» L'Offerta sara attiva in 31 giurisdizioni
approvate in Europa

» L'Offerta non puo essere sottoscritta da
chiunque

Stimiamo i costi totali di effettuazione
dell'Offerta in 500.000 sterline, quindi
i ricavi netti dovrebbero ammontare a
7 milioni di sterline con I'emissione di
circa 298.210 nuove azioniin caso di
sottoscrizione completa

Seriuscissimo a conseguire il nostro
obiettivo finale, ovvero 50 milioni di
sterline, il numero delle azioni emesse
sarebbe pari a 1.988.071 conricavi netti
di 49,1 milioni di sterline

Gli azionisti gia titolari diuna
partecipazione dovranno includere il
proprio numero di azionista corrente
durante la procedura diinvestimento
per evitare che possano essere creati
due account. Se l'investimento viene
effettuato online, sara sufficiente
immettere l'indirizzo e-mail collegato
alla partecipazione esistente

COSA DEVO FARE PRIMA DI
EFFETTUARE UN INVESTIMENTO?

Leggiil Prospetto informativo
(composto dal presente documento,
piu laNota di sintesi e il Documento
di Registrazione), disponibili qui:
www.brewdog.com/equityforpunks
Assicurati diaccettare irischi
dell'investimento - trovi i fattori di
rischio apagina3

COME POSSO FARE UN
INVESTIMENTO?

Puoi visitare www.brewdog.com/
equityforpunks e investire tramite il
nostro sito web. In alternativa puoi
scaricare e compilare un modulo di
richiesta di sottoscrizione cartaceo,
disponibile su www.brewdog. com/
equityforpunks/prospectus

OGNI SINGOLO PENNY DEL
TUOINVESTIMENTO SARA
DESTINATO APROGETTIDI
SOSTENIBILITA AIMPATTO

ELEVATO. ULTERIORI
INFORMAZIONI AL RIGUARDO
SONO RIPORTATE DA PAGINA
15 APAGINA 23

BREWDOG TOMORROW

GARANTIAMOCI
UN PIANETA PER
PRODURRE BIRRA

BREWDOG HA FATTO
MOLTA STRADA

Siamo cresciuti, e siamo maturati.

Abbiamo sempre pensato che il business
debba essere unaforza positiva e che
pensare in grande e agire in maniera
coraggiosa siano l'unico modo per avere
unimpatto concreto.

Oggi, siamo nel bel mezzo di una crisi
climatica. E una crisi del nostro modello
di attivita, sostenuta da grandi aziende.

Riconosciamo il nostro contributo e i limiti
del nostro settore.

ILCAMBIAMENTONON
AVVIENE IN MANIERA
SUFFICIENTEMENTE

VELOCE

c
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ORAEIL MOMENTO
DI ESSERE RADICALI
INTUTTOCIO
CHE FACCIAMO

Ilcambiamento climatico si sta avvicinando
al punto di non ritorno. Abbiamo creato
questo problema, e ora € giunto per noiil
momento dirisolverlo.

AZIONI, NON
PROMESSE

Ilmondo non ha bisogno diun altro
programma di crowdfunding. Il mondo
ha bisogno di cambiamento. Noi ci
impegniamo a produrre ottima birra, e ad
avere un pianeta in cui gustarcela.

BENVENUTO IN EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW.
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STIAMO LAVORANDO A UN RAPIDO PIANO D124 MESI PER RIDURRE LIMPATTO SULLAMBIENTE
DELLE NOSTRE OPERAZIONI E PERDIVENTARE UN'AZIENDA A RIFIUTIZERO

LA NOSTRA MISSIONE E CONDIVIDERE LA

PASSIONE PERL'OTTIMA BIRRA, E STABILIRE
UNNUOVO STANDARD DI SOSTENIBILITA.

CON EQUITY FOR PUNKS
TOMORROW, CONTRIBUISCIA

UNISCITIANOIEALLANOSTRA COMMUNITY
DIOLTRE 145.000 EQUITY PUNK PER
AFFRONTARE INSIEME QUESTO VIAGGIO.

‘ CHE DESIDERI VEDERE NEL
EQUITY FORPUNKS TOMORROWELATUA

OPPORTUNITA PER ESSERE PROPRIETARIO MuN DU'
DIUNA QUOTA DIBREWDOG, IL PRINCIPALE
MARCHIO INDIPENDENTE DI BIRRA AL
MONDO*,E PER CONTRIBUIRE A CREARE
UNNUOVO PARAMETRO DIRIFERIMENTOIN
TERMINI DI SOSTENIBILITA E SUPPORTARE
ILCAMBIAMENTO DICUITUTTIABBIAMO
BISOGNO.

OGNI SINGOLO PENNY
PERIL PIANETA

SOSTENIBILITA E ATTENZIONE PERILNOSTRO PIANETA SONO AL CENTRO DI TUTTE LENOSTRE
ATTIVITA.ECONIL TUO AIUTO,POSSIAMO FARE ANCORA DI PIU.

OGNI SINGOLO PENNY
CHE INVESTIIN EQUITY
FOR PUNKS TOMORROW
FINANZIERA DIRETTAMENTE
PROGETTI DI SOSTENIBILITA
ALL’AVANGUARDIA, TRA CUI:

ENERGIA EOLICA DIRETTA
RECUPERO DI C02
VEICOLI ELETTRICI PER LE CONSEGNE
TRASFORMARE | NOSTRIRIFIUTI IN ENERGIA

Vai alle pagine 15-23 per ulteriori dettagli

g *Brand Finance 2019
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UN NUOVO PARAMETRO DI RIFERIMENTO
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CONFEZIONAMENTO
14%

LUPPOLI
31%

GAS VERDE
15%

L'IMPATTO SULL'AMBIENTE
DI UN PUNK

IL NOSTRO BOSCO E LA NOSTRA TORBIERA

B0SCOBREWNNG

PIANTATO UN MILIUNE DI ALBERI

Desideravamo gestire personalmente il nostro
assorbimento di anidride carbonica. Pertanto
abbiamo acquistato di recente 2.050 acri di terreno
nelle Highlands scozzesi, a nord di Loch Lomond,
che utilizziamo attualmente come pascolo.

In questo sito intendiamo creare il bosco BrewDog:

1.500 acri di latifoglie. Oltre a catturare il biossido
di carbonio, i boschi promuovono la biodiversita,
attenuano le alluvioni naturali e sostengono lo
sviluppo economico e rurale.

Nel corso dei prossimi anni contiamo di piantare
oltre un milione di alberi. Le torbiere recuperate
assorbono CO2 in maniera molto efficace.
Pertanto dedicheremo 550 acri anche al
recupero delle torbiere.

Tutta l'attivita di assorbimento dell'anidride
carbonica nel bosco BrewDog sara verificata da
terzi con regolari aggiornamenti e relazioni sui
nostri progressi.

Oltre alle attivita di imboschimento e recupero
delle torbiere, intendiamo creare in questa area
anche un campeggio BrewDog e organizzare ritiri
e workshop dedicati alla sostenibilita nel bosco
BrewDog.

“I bosco BrewDog sara uno dei
maggiori terreni boschivi naturali

creato nel Regno Unito per molti
anni a venire”.

DAVID ROBERTSON,
Director SCOTTISH WOODLANDS

*Questi progetti sono strategicamente importanti per noi e non intendiamo

ritardarne o modificarne I'implementazione a causa della pandemia di COVID-19.

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 9



LANOSTRA CRESCITA

LANOSTRA CRESCITA HA SUPERATO GIA TUTTIIRECORD, E
NON MOSTRA SEGNIDIRALLENTAMENTO.

DOMINARE IL SETTORE DEL CONSUMO DOMESTICO

110 PRINCIPALI marchi di birre artigianali in base al valore delle vendite
Fonte: Nielsen Scantrack @ 11.07.2020

BREWDOG CAMDEN BREWDOG  BREWDOGDEAD NECK INNIS BREWDOG CAMDEN GAMMA BREWDOG
PUNKIPA HELLS ELVIS JUICE PONY CLUB OolL &GUNN LOSTLAGER PALEALE RAY NANNY STATE

59,9 mil. GBP 13,8 mil. GBP 8,9 mil. GBP 8,7 mil. GBP 8,2mil. GBP m 7,2mil. GBP 6,9 mil. GBP 5,7 mil. GBP 4,8 mil. GBP

Totale vendite commercio al dettaglio per valore MAT a luglio 2020

CRESCITAAZIENDALE

250 mil.
GBP

225mil. RICAVIBAR
GBP - BREWDOG

200 mil.
GBP RICAVI
COMPLESSIVI

175 mil.
GBP

150 mil.
GBP

125 mil.
GBP

100 mil.
GBP

75 mil.
GBP

50 mil.
GBP

25mil.
GBP

Omil.
GBP

201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

MARCHIO DI BIRRA ARTIGIANALE
N. 1INEUROPA PER FATTURATO

S

BEAVERT@WN

pReseNTESU:  ||[ME BEEAME Forbes W [WIGEDL]

d MARCHIO DI BIRRA ARTIGIANALE N.1NEL dd MAGGIORE OPERATORE DI BIRRERIE
REGNO UNITO PER FATTURATO ARTIGIANALIAL MONDO

d MARCHIO DI BIRRA BRITANNICO INMAGGIOR dd PUNK AF E LA "MIGLIORE BIRRA ANALCOLICA
RAPIDA CRESCITA PERDIMENSIONI* IN GRAN BRETAGNA"**

d PUNK IPA E LA BIRRA ARTIGIANALE
INDIPENDENTE N. 1NEL REGNO UNITO*

DIPENDENTI E CRESCITA

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
DIPENDENTI 37 61 126 186 277 540 645 7 1247 1767
AZIONISTI 1329 6.597 6.567 14208 a7 34.000 46.000 62000 97000 130.000
RICAVI 33MIL.GBP | 59MIL.GBP |106MIL.GBP | 18MIL.GBP |29,6MIL.GBP |44,7MIL.GBP | 71.9MIL.GBP 110(’;98'\:“" 171,7MIL.GBP 214G"88|\:|L'
EBITDA 0,2MIL.GBP | O5MIL.GBP | O6MIL.GBP | 29MIL.GBP | 50MIL.GBP | 55MIL.GBP | 6 0MIL.GBP | 90MIL.GBP | 84MIL.GBP | 17MIL.GBP

*Fonte: Nielsen Scantrack 08.08.2020

**Fonte: https://www.thetimes.co.uk/article/the-best-low-alcohol-beer-wine-and-spirits-the-critics-favourites-Okckwmtvw

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 11



BREWDOG
DEAD PONY CLUB
SANTA PAWS
NO LABEL
THIS.IS.LAGER.
FIVE A.M. RED ALE

CANDY KAISER
=P UNK 1.P.A.
§ ADOPT A BASTARD
JBORN TO DIE 27.11.15
AB:19

DRAFT THE CROWLER HAS LANDED

3.8% £4.00
4.5% £4.20
4.6% £4.55
4.7% £4.10

FRESHLY CANNED AT

GET 950ML OF ANY DRAFT

THE

BEER
BAR

9.0% £4.30§ LAST ORDERS AT THE BAR ARE AT 8.30

9.2% £2.15 ":JIN THE CANNON. CAN
9.4% £4.30§WITH. PERSIMMON
1.2%%£4.40" AND
8.5%£4.65":JT ACTICAL NUCLEAR PF, X

13.5% £4.60"-§SINK THE BISM~’ :

£2.155.2% 1

VANILLA

& 32.0°

£6PER25MLY

2 PUNK,
IMISSIONE.

UN COMMENTO DAL CAPITANO DIBREWDOG

BREWDOG E UNA PICCOLA AZIENDA
ALTERNATIVA DI PROPRIETA DI
MIGLIAIA DIPERSONE CHE AMANO LA
BIRRA ARTIGIANALE.SONOINOSTRI
AZIONISTI,INOSTRI AMICI,LANOSTRA
COMMUNITY, IL CUORE E LANIMA
DELLANOSTRA AZIENDA.

Vantiamo una community di 145.000
investitori Equity Punk, e ti offriamo
I'opportunita di entrare a far parte di
questo gruppo.

Nel 2010 abbiamo eliminato le convenzioni,
ribaltato il modello aziendale tradizionale

e lanciato Equity for Punks offrendo a
migliaia di persone un posto in prima fila
nellarivoluzione della birra artigianale.

Equity for Punks ha gia superato tutti
irecord in termini di crowfunding nel
mondo. E ora, Equity for Punks é tornato
con un sistema completamento nuovo di
offerta di azioni.

Equity for Punks Tomorrow & untipo di
offerta di azioni radicalmente diverso:
un'offerta di azioniin cui ogni singolo penny
deltuoinvestimento contribuisce acreare
un futuro piu sostenibile per tutti noi.

Riteniamo che le aziende piu sostenibili
saranno quelle che prospereranno nel
lungo termine, quindiinvestendoin
misura significativa sulla sostenibilita
potremo crescere considerevolmente,

e aggiungere valore anche al tuo
investimento. Tutto mentre facciamo cose
straordinarie per il pianeta.

BrewDog é nata nel 2007 conuna
missione: coinvolgere altre persone

nella nostra passione per le straordinarie
birre artigianali. Oggi abbiamo 1.600
dipendenti e siamo uno dei principali
birrifici artigianali al mondo con attivitain
oltre 50 Paesi. Anche la nostra missione si
€ ulteriormente ampliata per includere la
nostra ambizione: diventare il birrificio piu
sostenibile al mondo.

E, conil tuo aiuto, ci riusciremo!
Continua a batterti per un mondo libero!

James

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 13



ILTUO
INVESTIMENTO:
PROGETTI
FUTURI

OGNISINGOLO PENNY RACCOLTO SARA
INVESTITO IN PROGETTIDI SOSTENIBILITA
RIVOLUZIONARI*.

Ad agosto 2020, abbiamo annunciato che BrewDog é ora
carbon negative. Conil tuo aiuto, possiamo puntare piuin alto
e ispirare altre persone a sostenere il cambiamento di cuiil
nostro mondo ha cosi urgentemente bisogno.

*Questi progetti sono strategicamente importanti per noi e nonintendiamo
g ritardarne o modificarne limplementazione a causa della pandemia di COVID-19. EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 15



SE VERRA CONSEGUITO
L'INTERO OBIETTIVO FINALE
DI17,5 MILIONI DI STERLINE,
FINANZIEREMO | SEGUENTI
PROGETTI*:

ENERGIA
EOLICA
DIRETTA

Collegamento diretto con 3 turbine da
800 kW accanto al nostro birrificio, che ci
forniranno 2,4 megawatt di energia pulita.

Costo: 1mil. GBP Tempistiche: marzo 2021

RECUPERO DI
CcO2

La fermentazione produce CO2. Intendiamo
catturare tutta questa CO2in modo che nonsi
disperda nell'atmosfera e utilizzarla a valle per
aggiungere anidride carbonica alle nostre birre,
riducendo il nostro fabbisogno di materiali.

Costo:1mil. GBP Tempistiche: luglio 2021

BREWDOG CHP
(COMBINED HERT & POUIER)

INCOMING

GREEN CHP ELECTRICITY i D

mm«m%
<~
)

3 x 800kw
W IND TuRBINES

REVERSE
0EmMos1$

—— @

BIOMETHANE
To 6RID

BIO 6AS

EXHAUSTED oz FRom
FERMENTATION PROCESS

ANAEROBIC
DIGESTOR

DIGESTATE
FERTILISER

TREATED WASTE WATER

#BREWDOGTOMORROW

DIGESTIONE
ANAEROBICA

Con la digestione anaerobica,
trasformeremo le nostre acque di scarico
in gas verde e acqua pulita, che potranno
entrambi essere riutilizzati nel nostro
birrificio.

\ 5 BARLEY
-y Costo: 1mil. GBP Tempistiche: luglio 2021
TREE PLANTING

BREWDOG

Hop FARmn

*Destinazione dell'Offerta al netto dei costi.

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 17



TRASFORMA-
ZIONE DI SCARTI
DIGRANOIN
GAS VERDE

L'industria della birra utilizza normalmente
gli scarti del grano come foraggio per il
bestiame. Noi trasformeremo questi scarti
in gas verde che contribuira ad alimentare i
nostri processi.

COLTIVAZIONE
DILUPPOLIA
COLUMBUS

Lavoriamo con grande impegno per reperire

i nostri ingredienti per quanto possibile a

livello locale, e a Columbus desideriamo fare
ancora di piu. Il nostro birrificio & situato suuno
. N splendido lotto di 42 acri con ampio spazio per
Costo: 750.000 GBP Tempistiche: luglio 2021 la nostra coltivazione di luppoli.

Costo: 750.000 GBP Tempistiche: giugno 2021

ILBAR
BREWDOG
DEL FUTURO

Desideriamo creare un modello per il futuro

e aprire il bar piu sostenibile al mondo. Zero
rifiuti, carbon neutral, e un deposito per
soluzioni di consegna a circuito chiuso. Questo
sara il modello per tuttii nostri prossimi bar.

FLOTTADI
VEICOLI
ELETTRICI

Desideriamo eliminare i combustibili fossili
dalla nostra azienda e optare per alternative
interamente elettriche per tuttii nostri
veicoli per le consegne.

Costo: 1 mil. GBP a titolo di partecipazione alle
spese complessive Tempistiche: ottobre 2021

Costo:1,5mil. GBP Tempistiche: giugno 2021

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 19




AVVIEREMO INOLTREI
SEGUENTIPROGETTISE CON
L'OFFERTASIOTTERRAUN
IMPORTO COMPRESOFRA7,5E
50 MILIONIDISTERLINE

HUB
BREWDOG

Offrendo alle persone l'opportunita

di acquistare birranellaloro zonae
utilizzando veicoli elettrici per effettuare
consegne alivello locale, ridurremo
l'impatto sull'ambiente delle consegne di
birra. Questi hub concentrerannoinoltre
l'attenzione su formati di packaging
circolare, come ad es. bottiglie riutilizzabili,
fiaschette e lattine interamente riciclabili.

Costo: 1mil. GBP Tempistiche:novembre 2021

SOLARE

Intendiamo installare pannelli solari sui tetti delle
seguenti strutture:

¢ |l nostro birrificio di Berlino

¢ llnostro birrificio di Brisbane

¢ llnostro birrificio di Columbus

* Hop Hub, il nostro magazzino a Glasgow

Tale sistemaridurra la necessita di energia meno
sostenibile in queste sedi.

Costo: 3 mil. GBP Tempistiche: agosto 2021
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LINEA DI
LATTINE

Le lattine sono riciclabili all'infinito.
Quindiinvestendo in una nuovalinea di
lattine possiamo aumentare il numero
delle birre confezionate con questo
materiale sostenibile.

Costo: 5 mil. GBP Tempistiche: agosto 2021

g | progetti soprariportati sono elencati nel corrente ordine di priorita.
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DISTILLERIA
ECOLOGICA

Il nostro business degli alcolici continua a
crescere in misura considerevole. Dobbiamo
pertanto ampliare la nostra capacita per far
fronte alla domanda e desideriamo farlo nel
modo piu sostenibile possibile realizzando
una distilleria ecologica.

BIRRIFICIOIN
FRANCIA

La Francia é il nostro maggiore mercato di
esportazione, pertanto desideriamo ridurre
il nostro impatto sull'ambiente producendo
birrain questo Paese per il mercato locale.
Intendiamo realizzare un birrificio con una
sala bar e un centro visitatori in Francia.
Costo: 5 mil. GBP Tempistiche: gennaio 2022

Costo:12,5 mil. GBP Tempistiche: marzo 2021

BIRRIFICIO
IN ASIA

Producendo birra per i mercati asiatici sul
continente, possiamo ridurre drasticamente
l'impatto sull'ambiente delle nostre attivita.
India, Cina e Giappone sono tuttiimpegnati
a sviluppare mercati per la birra artigianale,
e BrewDog vanta una posizione ideale per
fornire alle persone di questi Paesi ottima
birra artigianale, prodotta localmente.

PRODOTTI
APROVADI
FUTURO

Dal momento che continuiamo a investire
inricerca e sviluppo e nello sviluppo di
nuovi prodotti, siamo fermamente decisi a
trovare sistemi ancora piu sostenibili per
produrre e confezionare le nostre birre.

VT AND INDEPE

Costo:12,5 mil. GBP Tempistiche: giugno 2022 Costo: 2,5 mil. GBP Tempistiche: marzo 2021
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1) PROPRIETA DI UNA QUOTA DI
BREWDOG

Potrai trarre vantaggio dai successi finanziari della nostra
futura crescita tramite un potenziale aumento del valore del tuo
pacchetto azionario.

2) SCONTO FISSO NEINOSTRI
BARE SULNOSTRONEGOZIO
ONLINE

Effettuando uninvestimento avrai diritto a straordinari sconti fissi
presso tuttiinostri bar BrewDog e sul nostro negozio online. Acquista
un numero di azioni pari o inferiore a 19, e ottieni uno sconto del 5%
neinostri bar e online. Acquista un numero di azioni pari o superiore a
20, e ottieni uno sconto del 10% in tuttii nostri bar e online.

3) UNA BIRRA GRATUITA PER
FESTEGGIARE TUTTIITUOI
COMPLEANNI

Una birra gratuita. Ogni anno. Per il tuo compleanno. Finché sarai
un azionista di BrewDog. Buon compleanno, Punk!

4) INVITO ALLAGMPERTE EPER
UNTUO AMICO

Gli azionisti BrewDog ricevono un invito annuale per sé stessie
un amico per partecipare al nostro leggendario AGM. Fantastica
musica dal vivo, epiche degustazioni di birra, migliaia di Equity
Punk e le ultime novita su tutto cid che riguarda BrewDog.

5) UNASPILLAEQUITY FOR
PUNKS TOMORROW

Riceverai una spilla esclusiva per mostrare con orgoglio il tuo
investimento sostenibile.

6) ISCRIZIONE AL SUSTAINABLE
SUPPERCLUB

Gli Equity Punks possono usufruire di uno sconto doppio su
tuttii piatti vegani, dalla domenica al giovedi, in tutti i nostri bar.

7) ACCESSO AGLIESCLUSIVI
ARTICOLIDI MERCHANDISING
TOMORROW PUNK

Lanceremo ogni anno due nuovi articoli di merchandising
Tomorrow Punk realizzati con materiali provenienti da fonti
sostenibili, riservati esclusivamente ai nostri Tomorrow Punk.

8) ULTERIORE SCONTO SULLE
FORNITUREDIYDOG

Ottieni un ulteriore sconto sulla nostra nuova gamma dikit e
ingredienti per produzione domestica in occasione del loro
imminente lancio!

9) ALBERO PERSONALE
PIANTATO NEL BOSCO
BREWDOG

Tutti coloro che investono in Equity for Punks Tomorrow avranno
un albero a loro dedicato nel bosco BrewDog in Scozia. Potrai
visitare l'area del tuo albero e fare campeggio nelle vicinanze!

! ﬂl .l_-:-'_' F li §o _I:'

titolari di Azioni B e potrebbero essere soggettiamodifiche o sospesi, BrewDog siimpegna a garantirli per tutti gli Equity Punk che investono nell'Offerta.

g *Gliinvestitori devono tenere presente che, sebbene i suddetti vantaggi e gli ulteriori vantaggi elencati nella pagina seguente non siano previsti per i

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 25



ULTERIORI VANTAGGI

SEINVESTIUNIMPORTO SUPERIORE,
PUOI AGGIUDICARTIULTERIORIVANTAGGI
SPECIALI!' POTRAIINFATTISCEGLIERE

UN VANTAGGIO SPECIALE PER CIASCUN

LIVELLO PERIL QUALE TI SEI QUALIFICATO.

INVESTIMENTO

GBP5.030
200 AZIONI

1,.961,70 GBP
78 AZIONI

955,70 GBP
38 AZIONI

352,10 GBP
14 AZIONI

201,20 GBP
8 AZIONI

100,60 GBP
4 AZIONI

SCEGLICON OCULATEZZA! ALCUNIPREMISONO
DISPONIBILIINNUMERO LIMITATO. VISITAIL SITO
BREWDOG.COM/EQUITYFORPUNKS/BENEFITS
PERVISUALIZZARE | PREMIDISPONIBILI.

SCEGLIUNPREMIO

UNA CASSA GRATUITADI TOMORROW PUNKS DOG DAY

24LATTINEDIBREWDOG, | 1RASCORRERAIUN'INTENSAGIORNATA
DEDICATA ALLE DEGUSTAZIONICONIL
NOSTRO TEAMQUALITA EIL PERSONALE
DISPONIBILE,OGNIMESE | pp) | A SEDECENTRALE, PARTECIPERAIA
PER1ANNO UNA SESSIONENELNOSTROLABORATORIO,A | TICONSEGNEREMOUNA
UNA CENA CONUNA SESSIONEDIDOMANDEE | CASSADIBOTTIGLIE DEL
RISPOSTE CONINOSTRIESPERTIDI QUALITA TUO WHISKY SOSTENIBILE
EPOTRAIOSSERVARE PERSONALMENTE
INOSTRIINVESTIMENTI AFAVORE DELLA

CONSEGNATAIN 24
OREACASATUAOVE

SOSTENIBILITA!

ILTUO BARILE DIWHISKY
SOSTENIBILE.VIENIA
CONTROLLARNELO STATO
OGNIVOLTA CHE LO DESIDERI.
QUANDO SARA PRONTO

PERSONALIZZATO

UNA CONFEZIONEDIBAD UNDOPPIO SCONTO
BEER VODKA IN EDIZIONE MENSILEPER
SPECIALE ACQUISTIONLINE
OPRESSOIBAR
PER1ANNO, CON
SPEDIZIONE
GRATUITAPERGLI
ACQUISTIEFFETTUATI
ONLINE

UNPASTOVEGANOE UNAGHIACCIAIA
UNABIRRA AL MESE YETICONLOGO
PER2ANNIPRESSO BREWDOG DEL
IBARBREWDOG DEL VALOREDI250GBPE
REGNO UNITO? UNA CONFEZIONEDI
PUNK DA 12 UNITA PER
TIEMPIRLA

3 BIRRE OVERWORKS IN EDIZIONE SPECIALE
PRODOTTEINESCLUSIVAPEREQUITY FOR
PUNKS TOMORROW, PIU UN SET DI BICCHIERIE UN
APRIBOTTIGLIE DABAR TOMORROW PUNK

INVITO AUNBREW DAY PRESSOIL TUO OUTSPOT
LOCALEPERTEE 2 AMICI,PERPRODURRELATUA
BIRRA PERSONALE - PIUUN INVITO ALL'EVENTO DI
LANCIOPRESSO L'OUTSPOT PER GUSTARLA

UN'ESCLUSIVA CONFEZIONE DA 8 BIRRE INVECCHIATE
INBOTTEINEDIZIONE SPECIALE,PRODOTTECON
SISTEMA SOSTENIBILE UTILIZZANDO FRUTTIDIALBERI
LOCALF, ALLAQUALETUEITUOICOMPAGNIEQUITY
PUNKPOTRETE ASSEGNARE UNNOMEDIVOSTRO
GRADIMENTO

ISCRIZIONE AL GROWLERCLUB, SENZA
PAGAMENTO DIDEPOSITO PERIL BARILE PER
BIRRA E UNA FORNITURA MENSILE GRATUITA DI
QUALSIASIBIRRA ARTIGIANALE BREWDOG PERUN
INTEROANNO

UNA CONFEZIONEDI
"HELLO MY NAME IS COMPANY™"?
GALE"DA 24 LATTINEIN
EDIZIONE LIMITATA3

BORRACCIA BREWDOG X "A GOOD

UN'ESCLUSIVA T-SHIRT
TOMORROW PUNK®REALIZZATA
CONMATERIALIPROVENIENTIDA
FONTISOSTENIBILI

UNA COPIADICRAFT UNA CONFEZIONE
BEERFOR THE GEEKS DEL DA 12DITRASH CAN
VALOREDI £15° PUNKDAREGALARE
AUNAMICO?

ESCLUSIVIPENNAEBLOCKNOTES "A GOOD
COMPANY" IN EDIZIONE LIMITATA CON MARCHIO
BREWDOG?

'ESCLUSIVIAGGIOEALLOGGIO

21PORTATAPRINCIPALE, 1BIRRAARTIGIANALE BREWDOG E1CONTORNO O DESSERT OGNIMESE PER 24 MESIDAL TERMINE DELLARACCOLTA

SCONSEGNANON INCLUSAINNESSUNO DIQUESTIPREMI

i

S BREWDOG

CRAFT .
BEER
FORTHE

PEORLE
GEEKS

RICHARD TAYLOR
WITH JAMES WATT
&MARTIN DICKIE

/‘
R
g
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SEGNALA
UNAMICO

QUANDO INVESTIIN BREWDOG, TI VERRA FORNITO UN LINK
UNIVOCO PERLE SEGNALAZIONI. CONDIVIDIQUESTO CODICE
CONITUOI AMICI EQUANDO QUESTIULTIMIEFFETTUERANNO
UNINVESTIMENTO, RICEVERAIDEIPUNTI. ERICORDA CHE
PUNTI E SINONIMO DI PREMI!*

UNA
SEGNALAZIONE

SPILLA SUBREWDOG.COM*

DIECI
SEGNALAZIONI

3 CONFEZIONIDI BIRRA INVEC-
CHIATAIN BOTTE (PRODOTTAIN
BIRRIFICI ALIMENTATI A ENER-
GIA EOLICA) EUNA SPILLA OGNI
10 NOMINATIVI SEGNALATI

TRE
SEGNALAZIONI

4 CONFEZIONI DI PUNK DA
RISCATTARE ONLINE

VENTI
SEGNALAZIONI

ESCLUSIVA FELPA BREWDOG
TOMORROW REALIZZATA CON
MATERIALI PROVENIENTIDA
FONTISOSTENIBILI E CREDITO
DI20 GBP PER BREWDOG NOW

CINQUE
SEGNALAZIONI

CUSTODIA PER TELEFONO
BREWDOG X "A GOOD COMPANY"
EUNESCLUSIVO CAPPELLO TO-
MORROW PUNKS REALIZZATO
CONMATERIALIPROVENIENTIDA
FONTISOSTENIBILI

PRIMI

CINQUE
SEGNALATORI

UNABICICLETTAELETTRICA
BREWDOG X VANMOOF

BREWDOG
EDIZIONE
LIMITATA

*Lancionel 2020!
*I punti siapplicano esclusivamente quando NUOVI Equity Punk utilizzano il tuo link per le segnalazioni.
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LANOSTRA
CULTURA
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ILVEROLIVING WAGE

Siamo fieri di essere dal 2014 un Real Living Wage Employer;
offriamo a tuttii nostri collaboratori un effettivo salario
superiore al minimo di sussistenza.

FONDO UNICORN

Assegniamo in parti uguali il 10% dei nostri profitti annuali a
tuttii membri dei nostri team BrewDog, indipendentemente dal
ruolo o dal livello di anzianita.

'THE SUNDAY TIMES|

100

BEST
COMPANIES

TO WORK FOR

2020
SUNDAY TIMES

Siamo stati citati due volte nell'elenco del Sunday Times delle
100 principali aziende del Regno Unito per cui lavorare. Essere
un'ottima azienda per cuilavorare & fondamentale frai valori
della nostra cultura aziendale.

ILTETTOSALARIALE

DIBREWDOG

In virtu del nostro tetto salariale non assumiamo mai nessuno

con una retribuzione iniziale 7 volte superiore al salario del
livello piu basso della nostra azienda.

CONGEDO PER
ANIMALIDOMESTICI

Se uno dei collaboratori del nostro team acquista un cucciolo
o adotta un cane, gli concediamo una settimana di congedo
retribuito per aiutare il nuovo membro della famiglia ad
ambientarsi. Bau!

THE BREWDOG
FOUNDATION

Riteniamo che il business debba essere unaforza positiva
Ogni anno doniamo fino a 1 milione di sterline dei nostri profittia
organizzazioni di beneficenza e cause selezionati dal nostro team
e dalla nostra community. Nel 2020 abbiamo gia donato oltre
500.000 unita di gel disinfettante per mani ai servizi di assistenza
sanitaria, alle organizzazioni sanitarie e ai principali lavoratori.

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW 31




IMPERSONA IL

CAMBIAMENTO
GHE VUOI VEDERE
NEL MONDO

Riteniamo che il modo migliore per sviluppare BrewDog, far
crescere ulteriormente la nostra azienda e stabilire un nuovo
parametro diriferimento per la sostenibilita sia chiedere

avoi, le persone che gustano le nostre birre, di lasciarsi
coinvolgere nel nostro futuro.

Equity for Punks Tomorrow é un'opportunita per un tipo di
investimento totalmente nuovo. Un investimento in cui
ogni singolo penny che investi & destinato a iniziative di
sostenibilita all'avanguardia nella nostra azienda.

La nostra crescita é stata sinora fenomenale, ed & destinataa
continuare. Desideriamo pertanto che tu possa condividere
con noi il nostro successo e aiutarci a creare un futuro piu
pulito, piu verde e piu brillante per tutti.

Siamo decisi arealizzare il birrificio pit1 sostenibile al
mondo. E vogliamo che tu lo costruisca con noi.

EPERUN FUTURO MIGLIORE PERTUTTI.
QUESTO E EQUITY FORPUNKS.

Investi subito sul sito web:
www.brewdog.com/equityforpunks

INBREWDOG, RITENIAMO CHE ESSERE CONVINTI DI FARE LE COSEAMODO
NOSTROEVIVERE L'ETHOS PUNK DIY CI CONSENTIRA DI CAMBIARE IL

MONDO CON LA BIRRAARTIGIANALE. UN BICCHIEREALLAVOLTA.
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DEDICATO Al PAZZI, AGLI
ANTICONFORMISTI, Al RIBELLI,
AI PIANTAGRANE, Al PESCI
FUOR D'ACQUA... ACOLORO
CHE VEDONO LE COSE IN
MANIERA DIVERSA. PERCHE
COLORO CHE SONO PAZZI
ABBASTANZA DA PENSARE DI
POTER CAMBIARE IL MONDO,
SONO QUELLICHE LO FANNO
DAVVERQ.

STEVE JOBS




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. The Offer

The Offer is an opportunity for persons who reside in the UK and the other Approved Jurisdictions to apply to subscribe for New B Shares (with a nominal value of £0.001
each) at the Issue Price of £25.15 per New B Share in accordance with the terms of the Offer up to the Maximum Amount. In the event that applications are received in excess
of the Maximum Amount, the Directors reserve the right to use their absolute discretion in the allocation of successful applications. No notification will be made to successful
applicants prior to allotment and/or dispatch of definitive share certificates.

New B Shares will be allotted and issued in respect of valid applications on a monthly basis following the opening of the Offer and on any other dates on which the Directors
decide.

Prior to the allotment of the New B Shares, the proceeds of the Offer shall be held by the Receiving Agent in a non-interest bearing client account and shall not be released to
the Company until the date that allotments take place.

Settlement of transactions in the New B Shares may take place within the CREST system if Shareholders wish. CREST is a voluntary system and Shareholders who wish to
receive and retain electronic share certificates will be able to do so. New B Shares may be issued in certificated or uncertificated form.

The total costs, charges and expenses payable by the Company in connection with the Offer are estimated to be £500,000 and the total net proceeds of the Offer, assuming

full subscription of the initial target of £7.5 million (but no increase of the Offer pursuant to the stretch goal target of up to £50 million), are estimated at £7 million. In the event
that the Offer is increased, additional costs of approximately £100,000 per each additional £10 million raised are expected such that, if the full stretch goal is reached, the total
net proceeds of the Offer are estimated to be £49.1 million.

If the Offer is fully subscribed, and is extended to its maximum amount of £50 million, approximately 1,988,071 New B Shares will be issued pursuant to the Offer. In
aggregate, these B Shares will represent approximately 2.7% of the total issued Shares in the Company following the Offer (and approximately 15% of the total B Shares in
issue as at the date of this document). As at the date of this Securities Note, the B Shares represent approximately 18% of the total issued Shares in the Company, so an
existing holder of B Shares who does not subscribe for New B Shares pursuant to the Offer will experience dilution.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, no existing major shareholders in the Company nor members of the Company’s management, supervisory or administrative bodies
intend to participate in the Offer.

Shareholders should note that the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, refuse to register any transfer of Shares whether or not they are fully paid but shall be required to
provide reasons for doing so within two months. There are no other restrictions on the free transferability of the B Shares of the Company save where imposed by statute or
regulation.

The New B Shares which are the subject of the Offer are unquoted and are not currently the subject of an application for admission to trading on any regulated market.
Further details on the procedure for, and conditions applicable to, the Offer are set out as section 5 below.

BrewDog will continue to explore other ideas and initiatives to supplement its Tomorrow Projects, including but not limited to carbon offset incentives, recycling rewards,
sustainable offers, and more, with the most promising ideas taken forward.

Copies of the Prospectus relating to the Offer and any related supplementary prospectus published by the Company are available for download at the National Storage
Mechanism (www.morningstar.co.uk/uk/NSM) and may be obtained, free of charge, from the Company's registered office, where they are also on display. The contact details
of the Company are as follows:

Registered office BrewDog plc, Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, Scotland, AB41 8BX
Website www.brewdog.com
Email info@brewdog.com

Telephone number 01358 724924

The directors of the Company are James Watt, (co-founder), Martin Dickie, (co-founder), Neil Simpson, (CFO BrewDog plc), Keith Greggor, David McDowall COO BrewDog
plc, Blythe Jack (TSG Consumer Partners) and Jamie O’Hara. (TSG Consumer Partners).

2. Working Capital

In the opinion of the Company, the working capital available to the Group is sufficient for its present requirements, that is, for at least 12 months from the date of this
document.

3. Capitalisation and Indebtedness

The tables below show the capitalisation and indebtedness of the Company (on a consolidated basis) as at 30 June 2020, being a date no earlier than 90 days prior to the date
of this document.

£ 000
Total current debt 13,924
........................................................ Guaranteed :
....................................................... G oIIateraI|sed3932
..................................... UnguaranteedandNoncollaterallsed9992
Total non-current debt . 19,922
........................................................ Guaranteed i
....................................................... G oIIateraI|sed16614
..................................... UnguaranteedandNoncollaterahsed3308
Shareholders’ Equity . 170,095

S

The following table shows the Company’s net indebtedness (on a consolidated basis) as at 30 June 2020.

£000
A Cash : 64,176
BCashequlvaIent ..............................................
....... COthercurrentfmanmalassets
D Liquidity (A+B+C) . 64,176
E Current trade and other receivables
F Current financial debt (including debt instruments, but excluding current portion of noncurrent 600

financial debt)

Current Position of Non-Current Debt

Current financial debt (F+G+H) . 13,924

|

J Net current financial indebtedness (I-E-D) -50,252

K Non-Current Bank Loans (excluding current portion and debt instruments) 6,636
LDethnstruments3308 ..........................................

M Non-Current trade and other payables : 9,978

N Non-current financial indebtedness (K+L+M) 19,922

(o] Total Financial Indebtedness (J+N) -30,330

The Company does not have any contingent or indirect indebtedness.

On 3 August 2020, the Company took out a Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan for £25 million with HSBC Bank plc. Aside from that, there has been no material
change in the capitalisation of the Company, total debt or shareholder equity since 30 June 2020.

4. Trading Platform

While the Company offers Shareholders the opportunity to trade their shares on a Trading Platform provided by Asset Match and this is only offered approximately once a year
when there is no current offer open. The last trading day was held in January 2019.

To use this system, a Shareholder informs Asset Match of the number of B Shares that he or she would like to sell and the minimum price he or she would like to sell their
shares for (the Reserve Price). The platform then adds the details to an Order Book and once compiled an auction is held to match potential buyers and sellers. The Order
Book is visible to all participants to aid transparency. WWhen the auction closes a Sale Price is calculated to protect buyers and sellers from unfair or inequitable prices. A
Shareholder’s shares will not be sold if this price is lower than their Reserve Price.

For running the Trading Platform and the auction process, Asset Match shall receive a fee for each transaction, which amounts to 6% of each transaction price which shall be
split equally between the buyer and the seller (3% payable by the buyer and 3% payable by the seller). Asset Match is authorised and regulated by the FCA.

Shareholders should note that there can be no guarantee that there will be sufficient bidders to allow shares to be sold. Shareholders may also not be able to sell shares for
more than they originally paid for them.

5. Procedure for application and payment

5.1 Conditions of Application

Applicants can apply to subscribe for New B Shares by either completing a Hard Copy Application Form (in the form appended to the Prospectus) or an Online Application
Form. The instructions and other terms set out in the Application Form are incorporated as part of the terms and conditions of the Offer to Applicants. Details of how to
subscribe by either method are set out below. If an Applicant wishes to subscribe for more than 500 New B Shares (£12,575), they must apply using a Hard Copy Application
Form.

The Company may in its sole discretion, but shall not be obliged to, treat an Application Form as valid and binding on the person by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged, even
if not completed in accordance with the relevant instructions, or if it otherwise does not strictly comply with the terms and conditions of the Offer.

Multiple applications may be accepted.

If any application is not accepted, or if any contract created by acceptance does not become unconditional, or if any application is accepted for fewer New B Shares than the
number applied for, or if in any other circumstances there is an excess payment in relation to an application, the application monies or the balance of the amount paid or the
excess paid on application will be returned without interest to the Applicant.

5.2 Hard Copy Application Forms

(a) General

Save as provided for in paragraph 7 below in relation to Overseas Applicants, Applicants may complete a Hard Copy Application Form to subscribe for any number of New B
Shares. Where an Applicant complete a Hard Copy Application Form then payment must be made by either cheque or bankers draft.
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(b) Application Procedures

Applicants should print off and complete the Hard Copy Application Form in accordance with the instructions printed on it. Completed Hard Copy Application Forms should be
returned by post to Computershare, Corporate Actions Projects, Bristol, BS99 6AH or by hand (during normal office hours only) to Computershare, The Pavilions, Bridgwater
Road, Bristol BS13 8AE (who will act as Receiving Agent in respect of paper applications and Registrar in relation to the Offer), so as to be received by Computershare in either
case, by no later than 11.00 a.m. on 28 January 2021 (though the Offer may close earlier than this if fully subscribed or be extended at the discretion of the Directors), after
which time Hard Copy Application Forms will not be valid. If a Hard Copy Application Form is being sent by first-class post in the UK, Applicants are recommended to allow at
least four working days for delivery. Hard Copy Application Forms delivered by hand will not be checked upon delivery and no receipt will be provided. Applicants should note
that Hard Copy Applications, once made, will be irrevocable and receipt thereof will not be acknowledged.

Completed Hard Copy Application Forms must be accompanied with either a cheque or banker’s draft drawn in sterling on a bank or building society in the UK which is either a
member of the Cheque and Credit Clearing Company Limited or the CHAPS Clearing Company Limited or which has arranged for its cheques and banker’s drafts to be cleared
through facilities provided by either of these two companies. Such cheques or banker's drafts must bear the appropriate sort code in the top right hand corner and must be for
the full amount payable on application.

Cheques should be drawn on a personal account in respect of which the Applicant has sole or joint title to the funds and should be made payable to “Computershare re
BrewDog plc” and crossed “A/C Payee Only”. Third party cheques may not be accepted with the exception of building society cheques or bankers’ drafts where the building
society or bank has confirmed the name of the account holder by stamping or endorsing the cheque/bankers’ draft to such effect. However, third party cheques will be subject
to the Money Laundering Regulations which could delay Applicants receiving their New B Shares. The account name should be the same as that shown on the Application
Form. Payments via CHAPS, BACS or electronic transfer will not be accepted when completing a Hard Copy Application Form.

Cheques and banker’s drafts will be presented for payment on receipt and it is a term of the Offer that cheques and banker’s drafts will be honoured on first presentation. The
Company may elect to treat as valid or invalid any applications made by Applicants in respect of which cheques are not so honoured. Pending allotment of New B Shares, the
application monies will be kept in a separate interest bearing bank account with any interest being retained for the Company.

All documents and remittances sent by post by, from or on behalf of an Applicant (or as the Applicant may direct) will be sent at the Applicant’s own risk. In the event that
a document or remittance is not received, the Receiving Agent will not be liable. Applicants bear the risk of documents or remittances being lost and should contact the
Receiving Agent to arrange the dispatch of replacements if this occurs.

5.3 Online Application Forms

(a) General

Save as provided for in paragraph 7 below in relation to Overseas Applicants, Applicants may complete the Online Application Form if they wish to subscribe for up to 500 New
B Shares and pay using Electronic Payment. If an Applicant wishes to subscribe for more than 500 New B Shares they should do so by using the Hard Copy Application Form.

(b) Application Procedures

Applicants wishing to apply to acquire New B Shares and pay by Electronic Payment should complete the Online Application Form in accordance with the instructions on

it. Completed Online Application Forms should be submitted via the Website no later than 11.00 a.m. on 28 January 2021 (though the Offer may close earlier than this if

fully subscribed or be extended at the discretion of the Directors), after which time Online Application Forms will not be valid. Applicants should note that applications, once
submitted via the Website, will be irrevocable and receipt thereof will not be acknowledged. All Online Application Forms must be submitted while making Electronic Payment
via the Website. Any checks which the Registrar requires to carry out under the Money Laundering Regulations may delay Applicants receiving their New B Shares (see
paragraph 6 below).

5.4 Effect of Application
By completing and delivering an Application Form the Applicant:

(i) represents and warrants to the Company and the Receiving Agent that (s)he has the right, power and authority, and has taken all action necessary, to make the
application under the Offer and to execute, deliver and exercise his rights, and perform his or her obligations under any contracts resulting therefrom and that (s)he
is not a person otherwise prevented by legal or regulatory restrictions from applying for New B Shares or acting on behalf of any such person on a non-discretionary
basis;

(ii) agrees that all applications under the Offer and any contracts or non-contractual obligations resulting therefrom shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of Scotland;

(iii) confirms that in making the application (s)he is not relying on any information or representation in relation to the Company other than those contained in the
Prospectus and any documents incorporated by reference, and the applicant accordingly agrees that no person responsible solely or jointly for the Prospectus
including any documents incorporated by reference or any part thereof, or involved in the preparation thereof, shall have any liability for any such information or
representation not so contained and further agrees that, having had the opportunity to read the Prospectus, including any documents incorporated by reference, (s)
he will be deemed to have had notice of all information in relation to the Company contained in the Prospectus (including information incorporated by reference);

(iv) confirms that (s)he is 18 years of age or older;
(v) confirms that no person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation concerning the Company or the New B Shares (other than
as contained in the Prospectus) and, if given or made, any such other information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the
Company;
(vi) requests that the New B Shares be issued to him or her on the terms set out in the Prospectus and the Application Form, subject to the provisions of the Articles;
(vii) represents and warrants to the Company and the Receiving Agent that (s)he is not, nor is (s)he applying on behalf of any person who is, a citizen or resident, or

which is a corporation, partnership or other entity created or organised in or under any laws, of any Restricted Jurisdiction or any jurisdiction in which the application
for New B Shares is prevented by law and (s)he is not applying with a view to reoffering, reselling, transferring or delivering any of the New B Shares which are the
subject of this application to, or for the benefit of, a person who is a citizen or resident or which is a corporation, partnership or other entity created or organised in
or under any laws of any Restricted Jurisdiction or any jurisdiction in which the application for New B Shares is prevented by law (except where proof satisfactory to
the Company has been provided to the Company that he is able to accept the invitation by the Company free of any requirement which it (in its absolute discretion)
regards as unduly burdensome), nor acting on behalf of any such person on a non-discretionary basis nor (a) person(s) otherwise prevented by legal or regulatory
restrictions from applying for New B Shares under the Offer; and

(viii) represents and warrants to the Company and the Receiving Agent that he is not, and nor is he applying as nominee or agent for, a person who is or may be liable
to notify and account for tax under the Stamp Duty Reserve Tax Regulations 1986 at any of the increased rates referred to in section 93 (depository receipts) or
section 96 (clearance services) of the Finance Act 1986 (as amended or replaced from time to time).

All enquiries in connection with the procedure for application and completion of either of the Application Forms should be made to the Registrar on the helpline 0370 707 1816,
or, if calling from overseas, +44 370 707 1816. Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside of the United Kingdom will be charged
at the applicable international rate. The helpline is open between 8.30 a.m. — 5.30 p.m., Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales. Please note that
Computershare Investor Services PLC cannot provide any financial, legal or tax advice and calls may be recorded and monitored for security and training purposes.

6. Money Laundering Regulations

To ensure compliance with the Money Laundering Regulations, the Registrar may require, in its absolute discretion, verification of the identity of the person by whom or on
whose behalf the Application Form is lodged with payment (which requirements are referred to below as the “verification of identity requirements”). If the Application Form is
submitted by a UK regulated broker or intermediary acting as agent and which is itself subject to the Money Laundering Regulations, any verification of identity requirements
is the responsibility of such broker or intermediary and not of the Registrar. In such case, the lodging agent’s stamp should be inserted on the Application Form.

The person lodging the Application Form with payment including any person who appears to the Registrar to be acting on behalf of some other person, accepts the Offer
and shall thereby be deemed to agree to provide the Registrar with such information and other evidence as the Registrar may require to satisfy the verification of identity
requirements.

If the Registrar determines that certain verification of identity requirements is required, the relevant New B Shares (notwithstanding any other term of the Offer) will not

be issued to the Applicant unless and until the verification of identity requirements have been satisfied in respect of that Applicant. The Registrar is entitled, in its absolute
discretion, to determine whether the verification of identity requirements apply to any Applicant and whether such requirements have been satisfied, and neither the Registrar
nor the Company will be liable to any person for any loss or damage suffered or incurred (or alleged), directly or indirectly, as a result of the exercise of such discretion.

If the verification of identity requirement applies, failure to provide the necessary evidence of identity within a reasonable time may result in delays in the acceptance of
applications. If, within a reasonable time following a request for verification of identity, the Registrar has not received evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, the Company
may, in its absolute discretion, treat the relevant application as invalid, in which event the monies payable on acceptance of the Offer will be returned (at the Applicant’s risk)
without interest to the account of the bank or building society on which the relevant cheque or banker’s draft was drawn.

Submission of an Application Form with the appropriate remittance will constitute a warranty to each of the Receiving Agent and the Company from the Applicant that the
Money Laundering Regulations will not be breached by the receipt and application of such remittance.

The verification of identity requirements will not usually apply, inter alia:
(i) if the Applicant is a regulated UK broker or intermediary acting as agent and is itself subject to the Money Laundering Regulations; or

(ii) if the Applicant (not being an applicant who delivers his application in person) makes payment by way of a cheque drawn on an account in the
applicant’s name; or

(iii) if the aggregate subscription price for the New B Shares is less than €15,000 (approximately £13,500).
In other cases, the verification of identity requirements may apply. Satisfaction of these requirements may be facilitated in the following ways:

(a) if payment is made by cheque or banker's draft in sterling drawn on a branch in the UK of a bank or building society which bears a UK bank sort code number in
the top right hand corner the following applies. Cheques, should be made payable to “Computershare re BrewDog plc” in respect of an application by an Applicant
and crossed “A/C Payee Only” in each case. Third party cheques may not be accepted with the exception of building society cheques or bankers’ drafts where the
building society or bank has confirmed the name of the account holder by stamping or endorsing the cheque/bankers’ draft to such effect. However, third party
cheqgues will be subject to the Money Laundering Regulations which could delay Applicants receiving their New B Shares. The account name should be the same
as that shown on the Application Form; or

(b) if the Application Form is lodged with payment by an agent which is an organisation which is subject to anti-money laundering regulation in a country which is a
member of the Financial Action Task Force (the non-EU members of which are Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Gibraltar, Hong Kong, Iceland, Japan,
Mexico, New Zealand,

Norway, Russian Federation, Singapore, South Africa, Switzerland, Turkey, UK Crown Dependencies and the US and, by virtue of their membership of the Gulf Cooperation
Council, Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates), the agent should provide with the Application Form, written confirmation that it has
that status and a written assurance that it has obtained and recorded evidence of the identity of the person for whom it acts and that it will on demand make such evidence
available to the Registrar. If the agent is not such an organisation, it should contact the Registrar on the telephone number below.

To confirm the acceptability of any written assurance referred to in paragraph 5.1(b) above, or in any other case, the acceptor should contact the Registrar on the helpline 0370
707 18186, or, if calling from overseas, +44 370 707 1816. Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and will vary by provider. Calls outside of the United Kingdom will
be charged at the applicable international rate. The helpline is open between 8.30 a.m. - 5.30 p.m., Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales. Please
note that Computershare Investor Services PLC cannot provide any financial, legal or tax advice and calls may be recorded and monitored for security and training purposes.

If the Application Form(s) is/are in respect of New B Shares with an aggregate subscription price per applicant of €15,000 (approximately £13,500) or more and is/are lodged
by hand by the Applicant in person, or if the Application Form(s) in respect of New B Shares is/are lodged by hand by the Applicant and the accompanying payment is not
the Applicant’s own cheque, the Applicant should ensure that they have with them evidence of identity bearing their photograph (for example, their passport) and separate
evidence of their address.

If, within a reasonable period of time following a request for verification of identity the Registrar has not received evidence satisfactory to it, the Registrar may, at its
discretion, as agent of the Company, reject the relevant Application Form(s), in which event the monies submitted in respect of that application will be returned without
interest by cheque or directly to the account at the drawee bank from which such monies were originally debited (without prejudice to the rights of the Company to undertake
proceedings to recover monies in respect of the loss suffered by it as a result of the failure to produce satisfactory evidence).
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7. Overseas Applications

71 General
TThis Offer is being made only to persons who have registered addresses in, or who are resident in, or citizens of, the UK and the Approved Jurisdictions.

This Prospectus has been approved by the FCA in the UK. Pursuant to the passporting provisions of FSMA, the Company has requested that the FCA provides a certificate of
approval and a copy of this document to the relevant competent authorities (with a translation into the appropriate language of the Summary, where relevant) in the Approved
Jurisdictions.

The distribution or downloading of the Prospectus and an Application Form and the making of the Offer to (or its acceptance by) persons who have registered addresses in, or
who are resident in, or citizens of, countries other than the UK but within the Approved Jurisdictions may be affected by the laws of the relevant jurisdiction. The comments
set out in this paragraph 7 are intended as a general guide only and any Applicant who is in doubt as to their position should consult their professional advisers. It remains the
responsibility of any person outside the UK wishing to take up rights to New B Shares to satisfy him or herself as to the full observance of the laws of any relevant territory in
connection therewith, including the obtaining of any governmental or other consents which may be required, the compliance with other necessary formalities and the payment
of any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such territories. For the avoidance of doubt, this Offer is not made to any persons who have registered addresses in, or who are
resident in, or citizens of, countries that are Restricted Jurisdictions.

The Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any application or purported application for New B Shares that appears to the Company or its agents to have been executed,
effected or dispatched by an Applicant who is resident in a Restricted Jurisdiction or on behalf of such a person by their agent or intermediary or in a manner that may

involve a breach of the laws or regulations of any jurisdiction or if the Company or its agents believe that the same may violate applicable legal or regulatory requirements.
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Prospectus or the Application Form, the Company reserves the right to permit any Applicant who is resident in, or a citizen of, a
Restriction Jurisdiction to apply for New B Shares if the Company, in its sole and absolute discretion, is satisfied that the transaction in question is exempt from, or not subject
to, the legislation or regulations giving rise to the restrictions in question.

Receipt of the Prospectus and/or an Application Form will not constitute an invitation or offer of securities for subscription, sale or purchase in those jurisdictions in which it
would be illegal to make such an invitation or offer and, in those circumstances, the Prospectus and/or the Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and
should not be copied or redistributed.

No action has been or will be taken by the Company or any other person to permit a public offering or distribution of the Prospectus (or any other offering or publicity materials
or application form(s) relating to the New B Shares) in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose may be required, other than in the UK and the Approved Jurisdictions.

Neither the Company nor any of its representatives is making any representation to any offeree or purchaser of New B Shares regarding the legality of an investment in the
New B Shares by such offeree or purchaser under the laws applicable to such offeree or purchaser.

Persons (including, without limitation, custodians, agents, nominees and trustees) downloading a copy of the Prospectus and/or an Application Form, in connection with
the Offer or otherwise, should not distribute or send either of those documents in or into any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or
regulations.

If a copy of the Prospectus (or any part thereof) and/or an Application Form is downloaded or received (by whichever means) by any person in any such territory, or by his
custodian, agent, nominee or trustee, he must not seek to apply for New B Shares unless the Company determines that such action would not violate applicable legal

or regulatory requirements. Any person (including, without limitation, custodians, agents, nominees and trustees) who does forward a copy of the Prospectus and/or an
Application Form into any such territory, whether pursuant to a contractual or legal obligation or otherwise, should draw the attention of the recipient to the contents of this
paragraph.

Overseas Applicants who wish, and are permitted, to apply for New B Shares should note that payment must be made in sterling denominated cheques or bankers' drafts in
respect of Hard Copy Applications and Electronic Payment in the case of Online Applications.

7.2 United States

The Prospectus is intended for use only in connection with offers and sales of New B Shares outside the United States and is not to be downloaded by, sent, forwarded,
transmitted or distributed, reproduced in whole or in part in any manner whatsoever, to any person within the United States whether in electronic, hard copy or any other
format. The New B Shares offered hereby are not being registered under the Securities Act and subject to certain exceptions, the New B Shares will be distributed, offered or
sold, as the case may be, outside the United States in offshore transactions within the meaning of, and in accordance with, Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Each person to which the New B Shares are distributed, offered or sold outside the United States will be deemed by its subscription for, or purchase of, the New B Shares to
have represented and agreed, on its behalf and on behalf of any investor accounts for which it is subscribing or purchasing the New B Shares, as the case may be, that:

(i) it is acquiring the New B Shares from the Company in an “offshore transaction” as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act; and

(ii) the New B Shares have not been offered to it by the Company by means of any “directed selling efforts” as defined in Regulation S under the
Securities Act.

Each subscriber or purchaser acknowledges that the Company will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements, and agrees that if any of
the representations and agreements deemed to have been made by such subscriber or purchaser by its subscription for, or purchase of, the New B Shares, as the case may
be, are no longer accurate, it shall promptly notify the Company. If such subscriber or purchaser is subscribing for, or purchasing, the New B Shares as a fiduciary or agent for
one or more investor accounts each subscriber or purchaser represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and full power to make the
foregoing representations and agreements on behalf of each such account.

73 Canada

The Prospectus is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, a prospectus, an advertisement or a public offering of these securities in Canada. No securities
commission or similar regulatory authority in Canada has reviewed or in any way passed upon this Prospectus or the merits of the New B Shares, and any representation to the
contrary is an offence.

In addition, the relevant exemptions are not being obtained from the appropriate provincial authorities in Canada. Accordingly, the New B Shares are not being offered for
purchase by persons resident in Canada or any territory or possessions thereof. Applications from any Canadian Person who appears to be or whom the Company has reason
to believe to be so resident or the agent of any person so resident will be deemed to be invalid. Neither the Prospectus (nor any part thereof) nor an Application Form may be
downloaded or sent to any person whose registered address is in Canada. If any Application Form is received by any person whose registered address is elsewhere but who is,
in fact, a Canadian Person or the agent of a Canadian Person so resident, he should not apply under the Offer.

For the purposes of this paragraph 7.3, “Canadian Person” means a citizen or resident of Canada, including the estate of any such person or any corporation, partnership or
other entity created or organised under the laws of Canada or any political sub-division thereof.

74 Australia

Neither the Prospectus (nor any part thereof) nor the Application Form has been lodged with, or registered by, the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. A
person may not: (i) directly or indirectly offer for subscription or purchase or issue an invitation to subscribe for or buy or sell, the New B Shares; or (ii) distribute any draft or
definitive document in relation to any such offer, invitation or sale, in Australia or to any resident of Australia (including corporations and other entities organised under the laws
of Australia but not including a permanent establishment of such a corporation or entity located outside Australia). Accordingly, neither the Prospectus (nor any part thereof)
nor any Application Form will be available to be downloaded by Applicants with registered addresses in, or to residents of, Australia.

75 Other Restricted Jurisdictions
No offer of New B Shares is being made by virtue of the Prospectus or the Application Forms into any Restricted Jurisdiction.

The New B Shares have not been and will not be registered under the relevant laws of any Restricted Jurisdiction or any state, province or territory thereof and may not be
offered, sold, resold, delivered or distributed, directly or indirectly, in or into any Restricted Jurisdiction or to, or for the account or benefit of, any person with a registered
address in, or who is resident or ordinarily resident in, or a citizen of, any Restricted Jurisdiction except pursuant to an applicable exemption.

7.6 Representations and warranties relating to Overseas Applicants

Any person completing and returning an Application Form or requesting registration of the New B Shares comprised therein represents and warrants to the Company and the
Registrar that, except where proof has been provided to the Company’s satisfaction that such person'’s use of the Application Form will not result in the contravention of any
applicable legal requirements in any jurisdiction: (i) such person is not requesting registration of the relevant New B Shares from within any Restricted Jurisdiction; (i) such
person is not in any territory in which it is unlawful to make or accept an offer to acquire New B Shares or to use the Application Form in any manner in which such person has
used or will use it; (iii) such person is not acting on a non-discretionary basis for a person located within any Restricted Jurisdiction; and (iv) such person is not acquiring New B
Shares with a view to the offer, sale, resale, transfer, delivery or distribution, directly or indirectly, of any such New B Shares into any of the above territories.

The Company and/or the Registrar may treat as invalid any acceptance or purported acceptance of the allotment of New B Shares comprised in an Application Form if it:

(i) appears to the Company or its agents to have been executed, effected or dispatched from a Restricted Jurisdiction or in a manner that may involve a breach of the laws
or regulations of any jurisdiction or if the Company or its agents believe that the same may violate applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (i) purports to exclude the
representation and warranty required by this sub-paragraph.

77 Waiver
Applications may be waived, varied or modified as regards specific persons or on a general basis by the Company, in its absolute discretion.

Subject to this, the provisions of this paragraph 7 supersede any terms of the Offer inconsistent herewith. References in this paragraph 7 shall include references to the person
or persons executing an Application Form and, in the event of more than one person executing an Application Form, the provisions of this paragraph 7 shall apply to them
jointly and to each of them.

8. Issue

The result of the Offer is expected to be periodically announced on the Company’s website with the final results to be announced within five Business Days of the Offer
closing. Share certificates in respect of the New B Shares validly applied for are expected to be uploaded to the Registrar’s Investor Centre website (www.investorcentre.
co.uk) within one week of the New B Shares being allotted. No temporary documents of title will be issued pending the issue of electronic share certificates. All documents
sent by, to, from or on behalf of Applicants, or as they may direct, will be sent via email. In the event that an email or document is not received, Investors should contact the
Receiving Agent to arrange the dispatch of a replacement.

9. Times and dates

The result of the Offer is expected to be periodically announced on the Company’s website with the final results to be announced within five Business Days of the Offer
closing. Share certificates in respect of the New B Shares validly applied for are expected to be uploaded to the Registrar’s Investor Centre website (www.investorcentre.
co.uk) within one week of the New B Shares being allotted. No temporary documents of title will be issued pending the issue of electronic share certificates. All documents
sent by, to, from or on behalf of Applicants, or as they may direct, will be sent via email. In the event that an email or document is not received, Investors should contact the
Receiving Agent to arrange the dispatch of a replacement.

10. Taxation

Certain statements regarding UK taxation in respect of the New B Shares and the Offer are set out on pages 42-43. Applicants who are in any doubt as to their tax position
in relation to taking up their entitlements under the Offer, or who are subject to tax in any jurisdiction other than the UK, should immediately consult a suitable professional
adviser.

1. Governing law and jurisdiction

The terms and conditions of the Offer as set out in the Prospectus, the Application Form and any non-contractual obligation related thereto shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of Scotland. The courts of Scotland are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute which may arise out of or in connection

with the Offer, the Prospectus or the Application Form including, without limitation, disputes relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with
the Offer, the Prospectus or the Application Forms. By taking up New B Shares under the Offer in accordance with the instructions set out in the Prospectus and, where
applicable, either of the Application Forms, Applicants irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of Scotland and waive any objection to proceedings in any such court
on the ground of venue or on the ground that proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.

Further information

Your attention is drawn to the further information set out in the Prospectus and also to the terms, conditions and other information printed on either Application Form.
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TAXATION

1. UK Taxation

The following information, which sets out the taxation treatment for holders of New B Shares, is based on existing law in force in the UK and what is understood to be current
HM Revenue & Customs (“HMRC") practice, each of which may be subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. It is intended as a general guide only and applies to
Shareholders (and potential Shareholders) who are resident or ordinarily resident in the UK for tax purposes (except to the extent that specific reference is made to persons
resident or ordinarily resident outside the UK), who will hold the New B Shares as investments and who are the absolute beneficial owners of those New B Shares but is not
applicable to all categories of potential shareholders, and in particular, is not addressed to (i) special classes of potential shareholders such as dealers in securities or currencies,
broker-dealers or investment companies and (ii) potential shareholders who have acquired their New B Shares by virtue of or in connection with their or another’s office or
employment.

The information does not purport to be comprehensive or to describe all potential relevant tax considerations and does not generally consider tax relief or exemptions.
Applicants who are in doubt as to their tax position, or who are subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than the UK, are strongly recommended to consult their professional
advisers.

Dividends

Under current UK tax legislation, the Company will not be required to withhold UK tax from any dividends paid by the Company.

Individual Shareholders

Shareholders who are resident and domiciled in the UK for taxation purposes may, depending on their circumstances, be liable to UK income tax in respect of dividends paid
by the Company. All dividends received from the company by an individual Shareholder who is resident and domiciled in the UK will, except to the extent that they are earned
through a self-invested pension plan or other regime which exempts the dividend from tax, form part of the Shareholder’s total income for income tax purposes and will
represent the highest part of that income.

From 6 April 2018, a nil rate amount of income tax applies to the first £2,000 of dividend income received by an individual shareholder in the tax year (the Nil Rate Amount)
regardless of what tax rate would otherwise apply to that dividend income. If an individual shareholder receives dividends in excess of the Nil Rate Amount in a tax year, the
excess will be taxed as income tax at the dividend ordinary rate (7.5%) for individual Shareholders who are basic rate taxpayers, the dividend upper rate of (32.5%) for individual
Shareholders who are higher rate taxpayers and the dividend additional rate (38.1%) for individual Shareholders who are additional rate taxpayers. Dividend income that is
within the Nil Rate Amount counts towards an individual’s basic or higher rate limits — and will therefore affect the level of savings allowance to which they are entitled, and the
rate of tax that is due on any dividend income in excess of the Nil Rate Amount. In calculating into which tax band any dividend income over the Nil Rate Amount falls, savings
and dividend income are treated as the highest part of an individual’s income.

Where an individual has both savings and dividend income, the dividend income is treated as the top slice.

Corporate shareholders

Shareholders within the charge to UK corporation tax which are “small companies” for the purposes of Chapter 2 of Part 9A of the Corporation Tax Act 2009 will not be subject
to UK corporation tax on any dividend received provided certain conditions are met (including an anti-avoidance condition).

A UK resident shareholder within the charge to UK corporation tax that is not a “small company” for the purposes of Chapter 2 of Part 9A of the Corporation Tax Act 2009 will
be liable to UK corporation tax (currently at a rate of 19%) on any dividend received unless the dividend falls within one of the potentially exempt classes set out in Chapter 3

of Part 9A of the Corporation Tax Act 2009. Examples of exempt classes include: i) dividends paid on shares that are “ordinary shares” (that is, shares that do not carry any
present or future preferential right to dividends or to the Company’s assets on its winding up) and which are not “redeemable”; and ii) dividends paid to a person which holds
less than 10% of the issued share capital of the payer (or of any class of that share capital in respect of which the distribution is made), which is entitled to less than 10% of the
profits available for distribution to holders of the issued share capital of the payer (or of any class of that share capital in respect of which the distribution is made), and which
would be entitled on a winding up to less than 10% of the assets of the company available for distribution to holders of the issued share capital of the payer (or of any class of
that share capital in respect of which the distribution is made). However, the exemptions are not comprehensive and are subject to anti-avoidance rules.

The right of an Applicant who is not resident (for tax purposes) in the UK to a tax credit in respect of a dividend received from the Company and to claim payment of any part of
that tax credit from HMRC will depend on the existence of and the prevailing terms of any double taxation convention between the UK and the country in which the potential
shareholder is resident. Such a potential shareholder should consult his own tax adviser concerning his tax liability on dividends received, whether he is entitled to claim any
part of the tax credit, and if so, the procedure for doing so.

Chargeable Gains — Disposal of New B Shares

A disposal of New B Shares acquired under the Offer by an Applicant who is resident, or in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident in the UK for tax purposes in the
relevant year of assessment may give rise to a chargeable gain (or allowable loss) for the purposes of UK capital gains tax (where the Applicant is an individual) or UK
corporation tax on chargeable gains (where the Applicant is a corporation and liable for UK corporation tax), depending on the circumstances and subject to any available
exemption or relief.

An individual Applicant who ceases to be resident or ordinarily resident in the UK (for tax purposes) for a period broadly of less than five years and who disposes of the New B
Shares during that period may also be liable to UK capital gains tax on his return to the UK (subject to any available exemption or relief).

An Applicant who is not resident or, in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the UK (and is not temporarily non-resident as described above) will not
be liable for UK tax on capital gains realised on the sale or other disposal of his New B Shares unless such New B Shares are used, held or acquired for the purposes of a trade,
profession or vocation carried on in the UK through a branch or agency or, in the case of a corporate Applicant, through a permanent establishment. Such Applicant may be
subject to foreign taxation on any gain subject to the terms of any applicable double tax treaty.

Inheritance Tax (“IHT”)

The New B Shares are assets situated in the UK for the purposes of UK IHT. The gift of such shares by, or on the death of, an individual Applicant may give rise to a liability to
pay IHT.

Stamp Duty and stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”)

Any transfer by Applicants in the New B Shares will be subject to stamp duty or SDRT in the normal way. The transfer on sale of New B Shares will generally be liable to stamp
duty at the rate of 0.5% (rounded to the nearest multiple of £5) of the consideration paid. An unconditional agreement to transfer such shares will generally be liable to SDRT
at the rate of 0.5% of the consideration paid, but such liability will be cancelled if the agreement is completed by a duly-stamped transfer within six years of the agreement
having become unconditional.

The statements in this paragraph are intended as a general guide to the current UK stamp duty and SDRT position and do not apply (i) to persons such as market makers,
dealers, brokers, intermediaries and persons (or nominees or agents for such persons) who issue depositary receipts or operate clearance services to whom special rules
apply or (i) as regards transfers of shares to any of the persons mentioned in (i).

If New B Shares are issued or transferred (i) to, or to a nominee for, a person whose business is or includes the provision of clearance services (a “Clearance Service") or (i)

to, or to a nominee or agent for, a person whose business is or includes issuing depositary receipts (a “Depositary Receipts System”), stamp duty or SDRT will generally be
payable at the higher rate of 1.5 percent of the consideration payable, or in certain circumstances, the value of the New B Shares (rounded up to the nearest multiple of £5 in
the case of stamp duty).

2. Taxation outside the UK

Withholding taxation: Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Latvia, Lichtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg,
Malta, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia and Sweden.

As far as the Company is aware, under the current law of the above named jurisdictions, the Company will not be required to withhold tax in that jurisdiction at source from
dividend payments it makes. Please note however that the tax legislation of the Applicant’s country of residence and of the Company’s country of incorporation may have an
impact on the income received from the New B Shares.

Austria: Withholding Taxation

Any payments of dividends in respect of the New B Shares will generally be made free of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes in Austria, save as
described below. Under certain conditions, withholding tax at a rate of up to 25% may apply if the New B Shares, as applicable, are deposited with an Austrian resident entity
acting as depositary or custodian.

Belgium: Withholding Taxation

Dividends paid by the Company will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 25% if paid or made available through a professional intermediary in Belgium, and subject to
such relief as may be available under applicable domestic provisions. Dividends subject to the dividend withholding tax include all benefits paid on or attributed to the New
B Shares, irrespective of their form, as well as reimbursements of statutory capital, except reimbursements of fiscal capital provided certain conditions are complied with. In
principle, fiscal capital includes the paid-up statutory capital, paid-up issue premiums and the amounts subscribed to at the time of the issue of profit-sharing certificates, if
treated in the same way as capital according to the articles of association of the Company.

France: Withholding Taxation

Any payments of dividends by the Company will generally be made free of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes in France, save as described below.
A mandatory withholding tax is levied at the rate of 21% on any dividends paid by a paying agent established in France to French tax resident individuals holding ordinary
shares as part of their private assets, or upon election for such withholding at source by the individual if the paying agent is based elsewhere in the EU, in Iceland, Norway or
Liechtenstein.

Germany: Withholding Taxation

Any payments of dividends by the Company will generally be made free of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes in Germany, save as described below.
A mandatory German withholding tax (Kapitalertragsteuer) will be levied at the rate of 26.375% (including solidarity surcharge (Solidarit tszuschlag)) against any German

tax resident shareholders on dividends and on capitals gains realised upon the sale of New B Shares, subject to certain exceptions, if paid in its capacity as paying agent
(auszahlende Stelle) by a German branch of a German or non-German credit or financial services institution or by a German securities trading business or a German securities
trading bank established in Germany.

Italy: Withholding Taxation

Any payments of dividends by the Company will generally be made free of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes in Italy, save as described below. Under
certain conditions, withholding taxes may apply if the New B Shares are deposited with an Italian resident entity or in the event that an Italian financial intermediary intervenes,
in any way, in the collection of the dividend payments.

Spain: Withholding Taxation

Any payments of dividends by the Company will generally be made free of any withholding or deduction for or on account of any taxes in Spain. However, under certain
conditions, withholding taxes may apply if the New B Shares, as applicable, are deposited with a Spanish resident entity acting as depositary or custodian.

The statements above in relation to non-UK withholding tax do not amount to tax advice and Applicants in those jurisdictions should seek their own
independent advice.
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Definitions

The following definitions apply throughout the Prospectus, unless the context requires otherwise:

“2006 Act” the Companies Act 2006

"Applicants” means persons or corporate entities who complete and submit one or more Application Forms

“Application” an Online Application or a Hard Copy Application

"Application Forms” the Hard Copy Application Form and/or the Electronic Application (as the context requires)

"Articles” the articles of association of the Company (as amended or replaced from time to time)

"Approved Jurisdiction” includes and is limited to the following jurisdictions: Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Croatia, Republic of Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia,
Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Italy, Latvia, Lichtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania,
Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden and the UK

“A Shares” the A ordinary shares of £0.001 each in the capital of the Company with the rights and restrictions as set out in the Articles

"Asset Match” means Asset Match limited (company number 07681197) registered at 1 Bow Lane, London, EC4M 9EE

"B Shares” together the Existing B Shares and the New B Shares

“Board"” the board of directors of the Company

“BrewDog" or “Company” BrewDog plc, a company registered in Scotland with registered number SC311560

“Business Day"” any day on which banks are generally open in Aberdeen and London for the transaction of business, other than a Saturday or Sunday or a public holiday
“Computershare” Computershare Investor Services PLC (company number 03498808) registered at the Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol, BS13 8AE

“Directors” the directors of the Company, whose names are set out on page 36 of this Securities Note and “Director” shall mean any one of them

"Electronic Payment” payment by debit card or credit card as detailed on the Website will be accepted by the Receiving Agent, who may in its absolute discretion reject any
payment

“EU" the European Union

"Excluded Overseas Applicant” other than as agreed in writing by the Company and as permitted by applicable law, Applicants who are located or have registered addresses
in a Restricted Jurisdiction

“Executive Directors” James Watt, Martin Dickie, David McDowall and Neil Simpson, being the executive directors of the Company

"Existing Shares"” or “Existing Ordinary Shares"” the A and Existing B Shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus

“Existing B Shares” the 13,352,887 B ordinary shares of £0.001 each in issue prior to the date of the Prospectus

“Group” means the Company and all of its subsidiaries as described and set out on page 20 of the Registration Document

"FCA" the Financial Conduct Authority

“FSMA" the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 as amended

“Hard Copy Application” an application to subscribe for New B Shares pursuant to the Offer made via a Hard Copy Application Form

“Hard Copy Application Form” the Application Form which may be downloaded from the Website and completed in hard copy form for use by Applicants in applying for New
B Shares when they wish to pay by cheque or bankers draft or apply for more than the maximum number of New B Shares than may be applied for through an Electronic
Application

“"HMRC"” HM Revenue & Customs

“Issue” the issue of the New B Shares to the successful Applicants

"“Issue Price” £25.15 per New B Share

“London Stock Exchange” London Stock Exchange plc

“Maximum Amount” means the prescribed maximum amount to be raised under the Offer which is £7.5 million unless the size of the Offer is increased at the discretion of
the Directors to no more than £50 million

“Memorandum of Association” the Company’s memorandum of association

“Money Laundering Regulations” the Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017 (SI 2017/692) (as amended,
replaced and supplemented from time to time)

“Net Proceeds” approximately £7 million (or up to £49.1 million if the over-allotment facility is fully utilised) being the net proceeds from the issue of the New B Shares under
the Offer

“New B Shares” those B ordinary shares of £0.001 each proposed to be issued by the Company pursuant to the Offer

“Non-Executive Directors” Keith Greggor, Blythe Jack and Jamie O'Hara

"Offer” or “Equity For Punks " the invitation by the Company to Applicants to apply to subscribe for New B Shares on the terms and conditions set out in the Prospectus
"Official List” the Official List of the UK Listing Authority

"Online Application” an application to subscribe for New B Shares pursuant to the Offer made via the Website

“Online Application Form” the application form which may be completed online from the Website for use by Applicants relating to applications for New B Shares when they
wish to pay by Electronic Payment

“Order Book" an electronic order book containing details of the number of shares that a Shareholder would like to sell and the Reserve Price

“Ordinary Shares” means the A Shares and the B Shares

"Overseas Applicants” Applicants who have registered addresses in, or who are resident or ordinarily resident in, or citizens of, or which are corporations, partnerships or other

entities created or organised under the laws of countries other than the UK or persons who are nominees of or custodians, trustees or guardians for citizens, residents in or
nationals of, countries other than the UK which may be affected by the laws or regulatory requirements of the relevant jurisdictions

“Preferred C Shares” the preferred C shares of £0.001 each in the capital of the Company with the rights and restrictions as set out in the Articles
"Prospectus” together, this document, the Registration Document and the Summary

“Receiving Agent” Computershare

“Registrar” Computershare

“Registration Document” the registration document published by the Company of even date with this Securities Note, forming part of the Prospectus
“Regulation S” Regulation S promulgated under the Securities Act

"“Reserve Price” the minimum price a Shareholder would be willing to sell each Share which they wish to sell through the Trading Platform
“Restricted Jurisdiction” each of Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand, South Africa and the United States

“Sale Price” the set price for shares to be sold on the Trading Platform which is calculated using an algorithm that determines the price at which most shares will change
hands

“Securities Act” the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended)

“Securities Note" this document, forming part of the Prospectus

“Section 551 Amount” has the meaning set out in the Articles

“Shareholders” holders of A Shares, B Shares or Preferred C Shares, each individually being a “Shareholder”

“Statutes” the 2006 Act and every other statute (and any subordinate legislation, order or regulations made under any of them) concerning companies and affecting the
Company, in each case, as they are for the time being in force

“Summary” the summary published by the Company of even date with the date of this Securities Note, forming part of the Prospectus
“Takeover Code" the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

“Trading Platform” is an electronic trading platform hosted by Asset Match which provides a facility whereby Shareholders are able to buy and sell Ordinary Shares in the
Company

“UK" or “United Kingdom" the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“UKLA" the FCA acting in its capacity as competent authority for Part VI of FSMA

“United States” or “US" the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States and the District of Columbia
"Website” www.brewdog.com/equityforpunks

In the Prospectus all references to times and dates are a reference to those observed in London, UK. In this Prospectus the symbols “£” and “p” refer to pounds and pence
sterling respectively.
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SEZIONE I:INTRODUZIONE

Il presente documento di sintesi fa parte diun prospetto datato 9 settembre 2020 (il "Prospetto informativo") pubblicato da BrewDog plc
(""Azienda") e approvato nella stessa data dal Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), lautorita competente per il Regno Unito ai sensidella
Parte IV del Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. E possibile contattare FCA al seguente indirizzo: Financial Conduct Authority, 12
Endeavour Square, LondraE201JN

Il Prospetto informativo comprende la presente sintesi, un documento di registrazione e una nota sugli strumenti finanziari pubblicata da
BrewDog plc. Il Prospetto informativo descrive un'offerta (I"Offerta") per la sottoscrizione di Azioni B da 0,001 GBP ciascunadell Azienda
("Nuove Azioni B"). L'Azienda ha proposto un aumento del capitale sociale a 7,5 milioni di sterline mediante [ Offerta. L'Offertapotraessere
aumentataa discrezione degli Amministratori a non oltre 50 milioni di sterline.

| dati di contatto dellemittente sonoi seguenti:

Indirizzo E-mail Sitoweb Telefono LEI
Balmacassie Industrial Estate, info@brewdog.com www.brewdog.com 01358724924 213800DAEV1
Ellon, T2UOHJEO9
Aberdeenshire,

AB418BX

Awviso: la presente nota di sintesi va letta come un'introduzione al Prospetto informativo. Qualsiasi decisione diinvestire negli strumenti
finanziari descritti nel presente documento dovrebbe basarsi sullesame del Prospetto completo da parte del potenziale investitore. Gli
investitori potrebbero perdere tutto o parte del capitale investito. Qualora venga proposto un ricorso dinanzi allautorita giudiziaria in merito
alle informazioni contenute nel Prospetto informativo, linvestitore ricorrente potrebbe essere tenuto, in virtt della normativa nazionale, a
sostenere le spese ditraduzione del Prospetto prima dellinizio del procedimento. La responsabilita civile incombe alle persone che hanno
presentato la Nota di sintesi chiedendone la notifica, compresa la sua eventuale traduzione, ma soltanto se la Nota in questione risulta
fuorviante,imprecisa o incoerente se lettainsieme con le altre parti del Prospetto, o se non fornisce informazioni chiave che aiutino gli
investitoriavalutare leventuale investimento nelle Nuove Azioni B.

SEZIONE2:
INFORMAZIONI IMPORTANTISULLEMITTENTE

Chi & l'emittente degli strumenti finanziari?

Lemittente degli strumenti finanziari oggetto del presente Prospetto informativo &€ BrewDog plc (I "Azienda"). L'azienda € unasocieta per
azioni costituita e con sede in Scozia, con numero diiscrizione al registro delle imprese SC311560 e identificativo della persona giuridica
213800DAEVIT2UOHJEO9. Lanormativa principale che regolamenta le attivita dell’Azienda € il Companies Act 2006 (la"Legge”) ei
regolamentiin esso contenuti.

BrewDog & una delle aziende del Regno Unito produttrici di alimenti e bevande in pit rapida crescita nel corso degli ultimi otto anni. E
principalmente un birrificio che produce birre artigianali, ma gestisce anche oltre 100 bar nel Regno Unito e in altri Paesi (compresiibar
gestitiin franchising) e un hotel atema birra artigianale. Nel corso degli ultimi cinque anni, i ricavi di BrewDog sono cresciutiin media del 49%
annuo e dal 2009 'Azienda e la sua consociata statunitense BrewDog USA Inc. hanno aumentato il capitale sociale a oltre 79 milioni di
sterline tramite offerte al pubblico di Equity for Punks ed emissioni di obbligazioni.

L'Azienda ¢ la principale impresa commerciale del Gruppo e possiede sette consociate britanniche: BrewDog Retail Limited, 'azienda
che gestisceibar del Gruppo nel Regno Unito; Lone Wolf Spirits Limited, che & inattiva; BrewDog Admin Limited, che € inattiva; BrewDog
International Limited, holding che gestisce le attivita dei bar internazionali; Draft House Holding Limited, holding che gestisce le attivitadei
bar del Regno Unito che servono birra artigianale; Overworks Limited, che € inattiva; e Hawkes Cider Limited, che € inattiva.

L'Aziendahadue consociate statunitensi, BrewDog USA Inc, holding per le operazioni negli Stati Uniti, e BrewDog Media Inc; una
consociata australiana, BrewDog Group Australia Pty Ltd; una belga, BrewDog Belgium SPRL; una brasiliana, BrewDog do Brasil
Comércio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda; una tedesca, BrewDog GmbH; una svedese, Briidog Sweden AB, holding che gestisce le attivita
deibar della Svezia; unaa Hong Kong, Brewdog Group HK Limited; e una spagnola, BD Casanova SL. Alcune consociate dell Azienda
hanno le proprie consociate.

All'8 settembre 2020, TSG Consumer Partners, tramite due limited partnership con sede legale nelle Isole Cayman, deteneva 16160.849

Azioni privilegiate C e 891.383 Azioni A (che rappresentano circail 23% del capitale sociale emesso dell'Azienda).

All'8 settembre 2020, i seguenti soci principali della dirigenza aziendale detenevano complessivamente Azioni A per circail 52,07% del
totale delle azioniemesse, ripartito come segue:

IIrevisore contabile dell Azienda € Ernst & Young LLP di Blenheim House, Fountainhall Road, Aberdeen AB154DT.

Azionista

James Watt

Martin Dickie

Charles Keith Greggor*
Neil Simpson

Numero di azioni A detenute

18.004.237
15.744.233
3.822.039
597736

* Detenute tramite Griffin Group LLC e Kelso Ventures LLC

Quali sonoi principali dati finanziari riguardanti l'emittente?

Diseguito sono riportati alcuni dati chiave dello storico dell Azienda:

Fatturatolordo
Utile/Perditad'esercizio
Utile netto

Stato patrimoniale

Attivita totali
Capitale azionario totale

Flussi di cassa consolidati

Flussodicassanettoinentrata/
(inuscita) da attivita d'esercizio

Flusso dicassa netto utilizzatoin
attivita diinvestimento

Flussodicassanettodaattivita
difinanziamento

Aumento/(Decremento) netto
incontanti

Liquidita e attivita equivalentia
fineanno

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2019
(£°000)

214.896
3733
1050

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2019
(£°000)

361559
177060

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2019
(£‘000)

4700

(14.726)

6.212

(3.814)

35164

Percentuale di capitale sociale emesso

24.56%
2148%
521%
0,82%

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2018
(£°000)

171619
391
(1493)

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2018
(£°000)

233199
164.994

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2018
(£‘000)

(6.029)

(57.208)

13717

(49520)

38978

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2017
(£°000)

110.870
2704
870

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2017
(£°000)

203.224
146.823

Termine periodo della
revisione contabile:
31dicembre 2017
(£°000)

4.865
(25.216)

105.690

856.339
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Quali sonoirischi principali per FEmittente?

« '11marzo 2020, 'Organizzazione Mondiale della Sanita ha dichiarato la pandemia di COVID-19 causata da un nuovo ceppodi
coronavirus. llRegno Unito e altri governiin tutto il mondo hanno adottato misure per contenere la diffusione del virus, iviinclusi
autoisolamento, restrizioni ai viaggi, quarantena e annullamento di riunioni ed eventi. Gli effetti sulleconomia britannica e su quella
globale sono stati sinora considerevoli e hanno influito sulle prospettive di molte aziende, compresa la nostra. Nel periodo compreso
fral'ultimo esercizio conclusosiil 31 dicembre 2019 el 30 giugno 2020 (data dei piti recenti conti di gestione non verificati del Gruppo),
ilfatturato lordo complessivo ammontavaa £108.025463 (rispetto a quello atteso di £126.682.293). Cid ha determinato una perdita
nettacomplessiva diquesto periodo pari a £8151.071. La divisione retail che copre l'attivita di vendita dell Azienda € stata colpitain modo
particolare dalla pandemia; ha infatti registrato un fatturato lordo pari alla meta dellimporto previsto per il periodo compreso frail 31
dicembre 2019 eil 30 giugno 2020, con conseguente perdita netta di £9.242.044 per questo ramo aziendale. Limpatto complessivo a
lungo termine di questa pandemia sul Gruppo non & tuttora chiaro al momento della pubblicazione del presente Prospetto informativo.
L'Azienda non ha almomento piani per modificare oritardare limplementazione delle sue priorita strategiche e a giudizio dell Azienda
stessail capitale operativo disponibile al Gruppo & sufficiente per le sue necessita correnti,almeno per 12 mesi dalla data del presente
documento. Tuttavia, va precisato che un ulteriore rafforzamento delle restrizioni (inclusal'eventuale imposizione di nuovi periodi di
lockdown per i cittadini) in futuro potrebbe avere unimpatto concreto sull'attivita commerciale e sulle ambizioni di crescitaa lungo
termine del Gruppo, iviinclusa la sua capacita di attuare le strategie di crescita stabilite, e potrebbe in ultima analisi ridurre il valore delle
azionidellAzienda.

» Anche sel'Azienda haaperto birrificia Columbus (Ohio, Stati Uniti) e in Germania (Berlino), e sta per avviare la sua prima struttura
diproduzionein Australia (Brisbane), I'attivita di produzione birre nel Regno Unito e in Europa & prevalentemente concentratanello
stabilimento di Ellon (Scozia) e uninterruzione prolungata delle attivita produttive (ad es. dovuta a unincendio o ad agitazioni sindacali)
presso tale sito potrebbe avere effetti negativi sulla capacita dell’ Azienda di fabbricare i suoi prodotti. Cio potrebbe avere a sua voltaun
effetto negativo suirisultati operativi, sulle condizioni finanziarie e sui potenziali clienti dell'Azienda.

« Tuttiibar diBrewDog, o parte di essi, potrebbero perdere la proprialicenza per la vendita di bevande alcoliche, 0 essere costrettia
unariduzione dell'orario di attivita in seguito a udienze degli organi concedentile licenze nei relativicomuni o distrettiin cuiibar sono
ubicati, 0 in seguito amodifiche dellanormativa che regolailocali autorizzati nelle varie giurisdizioni nelle localitain cui sitrovanoibar di
BrewDog oibar dei qualil'azienda &€ comproprietaria, con conseguenze negative sulla redditivita dell Azienda.

« L'azienda potrebbe procedere a un ulteriore finanziamento tramite emissione di azioni che potrebbe risultare dilutivo per gli Azionisti
esistenti,0o comportare I'emissione dititoli (ad es. ulteriori Azioni C privilegiate o altre classi di azioni con maggiori diritti) i cui diritti,
preferenze e privilegi siano riservati aititolari di Azioni B, riducendoil valore delle Nuove Azioni B. L Azienda potrebbe intraprendere tali
azioni senza specifica autorizzazione deititolari delle Azioni B.

» L'Aziendahaimplementato le proposte stabilendo di assegnare annualmente in parti ugualiil 10% dei suoi profitti al personale e di
devolvere ogni anno un ulteriore importo fino a 1milione di sterline a favore della BrewDog Foundation, che destineralasommaa
organizzazioni dibeneficenza di sua scelta. Questa politica di donazioni annuali a enti di beneficenza ridurralimporto dei profitti
disponibili per la corresponsione dei dividendi agli Azionisti e per il reinvestimento nellampliamento delle attivita dell'Azienda.

 L'Aziendahastipulato accordi conisuoifornitori principali e fa affidamento su rapporti positivi e costanti con tali fornitori. Larisoluzione
ditaliaccordi, la variazione delle relative condizioni o linadempimento degli obblighi contrattuali da parte di un fornitore chiave (inclusa
l'eventuale insolvenza diun fornitore chiave) potrebbero avere un effetto negativo sulla redditivita dell Azienda.

SEZIONE 3:
INFORMAZIONIIMPORTANTI SUITITOLI

Quali sono le caratteristiche principali dei titoli?

| titoli propostiin conformita con I'Offerta sono Azioni B da £0,001 ciascuna ("Nuove Azioni B"). Il capitale sociale dellAzienda e
attualmente composto da Azioni A di £0,001 ciascuna, Azioni B di £0,001 ciascuna e Azioni C privilegiate di £0,001 ciascuna. Alladata
del presente documento sono state emesse 43.790.943 Azioni A, 13.352.887 Azioni B e 16160.849 Azioni C privilegiate (capitale
interamente versato).

Ilnumero massimo di Nuove Azioni B che € possibile emettere mediante [Offerta € di circa 298.210 a condizione che [ Offerta sia
interamente sottoscritta per 7,5 milioni di sterline. Se viene conseguito l'intero obiettivo di 50 milioni di sterline, verranno emesse circa
1.988.071Nuove Azioni B.

Le Nuove Azioni B produrranno dividendiidentici alle Azioni B esistenti.

Il Consiglio di Amministrazione potra a propria assoluta discrezione rifiutarsi diregistrare qualsiasi cessione diun'Azione. Inbase alla
nostra politica attuale non paghiamo dividendi mareinvestiamoi profitti per sostenere ulteriormente la crescita dell Azienda.

Dove saranno negoziatii titoli?

Le Nuove Azioni B non potranno essere oggetto dinegoziazione né di richiesta di negoziazione su nessun mercato regolamentato.
Ititoli sono coperti da una garanzia?

No, non sono previste garanzie per le Nuove Azioni B.

Quali sonoirischi principali connessi alle azioni?

« llvalore delle azioni di BrewDog pud aumentare o diminuire, quindi, se decidi diinvestire, potresti nonriuscire arecuperare il capitale
investito. Le prestazioniregistrate in passato non sono necessariamente indicative di quelle future.

« Primadiprendere unadecisione, devi pensare se linvestimento siao meno un'attivita adatta a te. Non effettuare investimenti superiori
alle tue possibilita economiche.

» BrewDog non € unasocieta quotatain Borsa, e anche se questa condizione potrebbe cambiare in seguito, non € possibile prevedere
selosarain futuro o entro quanto tempo. Pertanto, BrewDog non € soggetta alle Regole di quotazione in borsa di FCA, ai Regolamenti
dell'AIM, al Codice di governance aziendale del Regno Unito o ad altri simili regolamenti o regole che siapplicano alle societa con azioni
ammesse 0 negoziate in un mercato regolamentato o in Borsa. Di conseguenza, gli azionisti di BrewDog non godranno né dei dirittiné
delle protezioni di cui possono avvalersi gli azionisti di societa ufficialmente quotate in Borsa.

« |'Offertaé soggettaall'approvazione degliazionisti durante lanostra AGM (Assemblea Annuale Generale degli azionisti), prevista per
settembre 2020. Nellimprobabile eventualita di mancata approvazione delle risoluzioni, 'Offerta non avra seguito.

- Piudellametadelle azioni di BrewDog sono detenute dai nostri soci fondatori e dai nostri dipendenti. Pertanto, tali soggetti possono
votare le decisioni durante le assemblee generali,anche se gliinvestitori dell Offerta, come azionisti di minoranza, dovessero
manifestare parere contrario.

 Poco pitidel 22% delle azioni emesse da BrewDog sono Azioni C privilegiate e garantiscono precedenza in fase diliquidazione rispetto
alle Azioni A e B. Di conseguenza, il diritto degli Azionisti B in merito alle procedure di unaliquidazione o dellarestituzione dellintero
capitale potrebbe risultare limitato o nullo.

« Gli Amministratorihanno diritto arifiutare la registrazione di qualsiasi cessione di azioni. Cio significa che possiamo impedire alle grandi
multinazionali produttrici di birra diacquistare le azioni di BrewDog.

« Scontiealtrivantaggi a cui gliinvestitori hanno diritto potrebbero essere divolta in volta modificati (0 anche annullati o sostituiti) a
discrezione dellAzienda.

SEZIONE 4: INFORMAZIONI IMPORTANTISULL'OFFERTA
ALPUBBLICO DIVALORIMOBILIARI

Quali sono le condizioni e le tempistiche per effettuare investimentiin questo titolo?

L'Offertacomprende Azioni B dellAzienda vendute a gruppi di due al prezzo di £25,15 ciascuna. Le richieste dovranno essere presentate
entroenonoltre il 28 gennaio 2021 (ameno che [Offerta non venga chiusa anticipatamente per aver ottenuto lacompleta sottoscrizione
deititoli o prorogata a discrezione degli Amministratori). La sottoscrizione minima & di £50,30 per due Nuove Azioni B. llmassimo
investimento effettuabile online & di £12.575 per 500 Nuove Azioni B. Non sono previsti limiti se linvestimento viene effettuato tramite
modulo dirichiesta cartaceo (riportato in appendice nel Prospetto informativo) e il pagamento viene eseguito tramite assegno. Per
I'emissione delle Nuove Azioni B, il denaro delle sottoscrizioni verra detenuto dall Agente ricevente su un conto corrente che non frutta
interessi.

Le copie del presente Documento di sintesi, della Nota sugli strumenti finanziari e del Documento di registrazione sono disponibili (e
saradisponibile qualsiasi prospetto informativo supplementare pubblicato dall Azienda) gratuitamente presso gli uffici di BrewDog, in
Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB418BX, Scozia, sul sito web di BrewDog www.brewdog.com/equityforpunks e
presso gli ufficidi RW Blears LLP, consulente legale dell Azienda, allindirizzo 15 Old Square, Lincoln's Inn, London WC2A 3UE.
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Verranno emesse circa 298.210 Azioni Bin conformita conOfferta se interamente sottoscritta per il target iniziale di 7,5 milioni di sterline.

Le Nuove Azioni Bemesse nellambito dell'Offerta rappresenteranno pertanto circalo 0,41% delle Azioni totaliemesse alla chiusura
dell'Offerta se questa sarainteramente sottoscritta (manon aumentata). Se viene conseguito l'intero obiettivo di 50 milioni di sterline,

verranno emesse circa 1.988.071Nuove Azioni B che rappresenterannoil 2,64% del totale Azioni in circolazione alla chiusura dell Offerta.

| costiinizialicomplessivi dell'Offerta preventivatiammontano a circa £500.000. L Offerta potra essere aumentata a discrezione degli
Amministratorianon oltre 50 milioni di sterline e si stima che le spese ammonteranno approssimativamente a100.000 sterline per
ciascunimporto aggiuntivo di 10 milioni di sterline. Relativamente all'Offerta, I Azienda non addebitera alcuna spesa agliinvestitori.

Perché viene generato questo prospetto?

Gli Amministratori ritengono che [ Offerta fornira capitale aggiuntivo a supporto dell'ulteriore crescita dell' Azienda. L Aziendaintende
utilizzare i proventi netti dell Offerta per fini aziendali generici, in particolar modo per quelli elencati di seguito.

Se verraconseguitolintero obiettivo finale di 7,5 milioni di sterline, I'Azienda si propone di finanziare i seguenti progetti:

Vocedispesa

Energiaeolicadiretta

RecuperodiCO2

Impianto digestore anaerobico
Trasformazione discartidigranoingas verde
Bar BrewDog del futuro (x3)

Coltivazione diluppolia Columbus

Flotta diveicoli elettrici

Fondinecessari previsti
1mil. GBP

1mil. GBP

1mil. GBP

750.000 GBP

1mil. GBP

750.000 GBP

15mil. GBP

Se verra conseguitolintero obiettivo finale di 50 milioni di sterline, ' Azienda intende finanziare i seguenti progetti:

Hub BrewDog

Solare
Lineariempimento lattine
Birrificioin Francia
Birrificioin Asia
Distilleriaecologica
Prodottia provadifuturo

1mil. GBP
3mil. GBP
5mil. GBP
125mil. GBP
125mil. GBP
5mil. GBP
25mil. GBP

Se conl'Offertanonverraconseguito il nostro intero obiettivo di 50 milioni di sterline, continueremo ugualmente a portare avanti questi
progetti, a cui potremmo pero dover assegnare un diverso ordine di priorita rispetto a quello attuale. | progetti sopraindicati sono elencati
agrandilinee in ordine di priorita. Tale ordine potrebbe tuttavia essere soggetto a variazioni.

L'Offertanon & sottoscritta.

Per quanto a conoscenza dellEmittente, nessun soggetto impegnato nellemissione delle Nuove Azioni B ha interessi significativi

nell'Offerta e nonvisono conflitti diinteresse riguardanti ' Offerta.

g DOCUMENTO DI SINTESI 2020

BREWDOG




BREWDOG PLC

EQUITY FOR PUNKS TOMORROW:
TOMORROW STARTS TODAY

REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
OFFER FOR SUBSCRIPTION
9 SEPTEMBER 2020



This Registration Document, the Summary and the Securities Note, which together comprise a prospectus (the “Prospectus”)
relating to the Company, have been prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation Rules made under section 73A
and in accordance with section 84 of FSMA and the Prospectus has been approved by and filed with the FCA as the competent
authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129. The FCA only approves this Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness,
comprehensibility and consistency imposed by Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 and such approval shall not be considered as an
endorsement of the Company.

No application has been made, nor is intended to be made, for any shares (including the New B Shares) in the capital of the
Company to be dealtin or listed on any stock exchange or market. The New B Shares will rank pari passu with existing issued B
Shares from the date of issue.

The Company and its Directors, whose names appear on page 21, accept responsibility for the information contained in this
Registration Document. To the best of the knowledge of the Company and its Directors the information contained in this
Registration Document is in accordance with the facts and this Registration Document does not omit anything likely to affect

the import of such information.

Incorporated in Scotland under the Companies Act 2006
with registered number SC311560

OFFER FOR SUBSCRIPTION

for up to £7.5 million worth of New B Shares
(with an overallotment facility for up to an additional £50 million)

at a subscription price of £25.15 per New B Share (minimum investment of two New B Shares
for £50.30)

Share capital of the Company immediately following the Offer, assuming Full Subscription
(ignoring the Overallotment Facility):

Share class No. of Shares Nominal value
A Shares 43,790,943 £0.001

Existing B Shares 13,352,887 £0.001

New B Shares 298,210 £0.001
Preferred C Ordinary shares 16,160,849 £0.001

Total 73,602,889

The subscription list for the Offer will open on 10 September 2020 and will close on 28 January 2021 unless fully subscribed
at an earlier date or extended at the discretion of the Directors. There is a minimum subscription per Applicant of two New B

Shares for £50.30. The Offer is not underwritten. Assuming Full Subscription but no increase to the size of the Offer, the total
raised under the Offer will be approximately £7.5 million before issue costs.

Your attention is drawn to the risk factors set out on pages 4-7. An investment in the Company is only suitable for Investors
who are capable of evaluating the risks and merits of such an investment and who have sufficient resources to bear any
loss which might arise.

This document should be read in conjunction with the Summary and the Securities Note, which may both be obtained from
either the Company’s website www.brewdog.com or the offices of the Company’s lawyers:

RW Blears LLP
15 Old Square, Lincoln’s Inn, website: www.blears.com
London WC2A 3UE email: frank@blears.com
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RISKFACTORS

Your capitalis atrisk if you invest in the Company and you may lose some or all of your investment.

Any investment in New B Shares involves a high degree of risk. Accordingly, Applicants should carefully consider the specific risk
factors set out below, in addition to the other information contained in the Prospectus, before making any investment decision.

Therisks listed do not necessarily comprise all those associated with an investment in the New B Shares. Additional risks and
uncertainties currently unknown to the Directors, or which they consider to be immaterial at this time, may also have an adverse
effect on BrewDog's business and aninvestment in the New B Shares. Aninvestment in BrewDog may not be suitable for all
recipients of the Prospectus. Applicants are accordingly advised to consult an independent professional adviser authorised for the
purposes of FSMA who specializes in investments of this kind before making any decision to invest. Applicants should consider
carefully whether aninvestment in BrewDog is suitable in the light of their personal circumstances and the financial resources
available to them.

Risks associated with the New B Shares

« BrewDogis an unlisted company and whilst this may change in the future, there can be no guarantee that it will become listed or
onwhat timescale. As such, BrewDog is not subject to the Listing Rules of the FCA, the AIM Rules, the UK Corporate
Governance Code or any other similar rules or regulations applying to companies with securities admitted to or traded on a
regulated market or exchange. Accordingly, shareholders in BrewDog will have neither the rights nor the protections available
to shareholders in publicly quoted companies.

« The Offer is dependent on the approval of Existing Shareholders at our AGM. In the unlikely event the resolutions are not
passed, the Offer will not go ahead and any costs would be borne by the Company. The Company may seek to fund the
intended projects from its own resources but won't necessarily be able to do all of those things.

« Theholders of the A Shares, which represent more than 50% of the Company’s issued shares, will usually be able to carry any
vote to be made at a general meeting in relation to general commercial matters. The holders of the A Shares will not be capable
of approving any resolution which would impact upon the rights of the B Shares without a separate resolution of the holders of
the B Shares also being passed.

« Justover 22% of the issued shares of the Company are Preferred C Shares which are entitled to aliquidation preference over the
B Shares. Therefore, in the event that the Company’s entire capital is returned to shareholders or if the Company is
wound up, the C Shareholders will be entitled to a sum equal to the greater of (a) that which they would receive were all shares
inthe Company to rank pari passu and (b) their subscription price plus an 18% compound annual return on that subscription
price for the period fromissue to the point at which capital was returned. Therefore, holders of B Shares may be subject to
reduced (or nil) entitlement to liquidation or other capital proceeds in the event that the Company does not have enough capital
to satisfy (or satisfy in full) the Preferred C Shares' liquidation preference.

» The Company may undertake further equity financing which may be dilutive to Existing Shareholders or resultin anissuance of
securities (such as further Preferred C Shares or other classes with enhanced rights) whose rights, preferences and
privileges are senior to those of holders of B Shares, reducing the value of the New B Shares and the Company may take such
actions without the specific consent of the holders of B Shares.

« Aportion of the Company’s annual profits per year is given by the Company to the BrewDog Foundation, which then distributes
the money to selected charities. This policy of annual charitable donations will reduce the amount of profits available to pay
dividends to Shareholders and to reinvest in the expansion of the Company’s business.

« The Company distributes a further 10% of its annual profits evenly amongst its staff. While this will reduce the amount of profits
available to pay dividends to Shareholders and to reinvest in the expansion of the Company’s business, the Company consider
this key in motivating and rewarding its most important resource, its people, and in attracting new talent.

« The Directors have the right to refuse to register any transfer of shares. This means we can prevent multinational monolithic
beer companies from buying sharesin BrewDog.

« ltisthe Company'’s current policy not to pay dividends but to reinvest profits to fuel the growth of the Company.
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Risks associated with the Company’s operations and business

On11March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a strain of novel coronavirus disease, COVID-19,
aglobal pandemic. The UK and other governments worldwide have taken steps to contain the outbreak of the virus,
including advising self-isolation and implementing travel restrictions, quarantines and cancellations of gatherings

and events. The effect on the UK and the global economy has so far been significant and has impacted the prospects

of many businesses, including that of the Company. In respect of the period between the last financial year ending on 31
December 2019 and 30 June 2020 (being the date of the most recent unaudited management accounts of the Group),
overall gross revenue was £108,025,463 against a budget of £126,682,293. This has resulted in an overall net loss during
this period of £8,151,071. The retail division which covers the Company’s on-sales business has been particularly affected by
the pandemic; it achieved gross revenues of just under half of the budgeted amount in the period between 31 December
2019 and 30 June 2020, which resulted in a net loss of £9,242,044 for this part of the business. The overall long termimpact
of the pandemic on the Group remains uncertain at the time of publication of this Prospectus. The Company has no current
plans to alter or delay the implementation of its strategic priorities, and in the opinion of the Company, the working capital
available to the Group is sufficient for its present requirements, that is, for at least 12 months from the date of this document.
However, it remains the case that further tightening of restrictions (including any newly imposed ‘lock-down’ periods on

the general public) could yet have a materialimpact on the long term trading activity and growth ambitions of the Group,
including its ability to execute its chosen growth strategies, and ultimately in the long term could reduce the value

of the Company’s shares.

The Company has taken numerous operational and commercial steps to attempt to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on its employees and shareholders, but there can be no guarantee that these steps will be effective (or wholly
effective) at preserving the value of investments in the Company (including the value of the New B Shares), particularly
where ‘lock-down’ periods are re-introduced or if it takes longer for public attitudes towards frequenting bars and pubs to
return to pre-crisis levels.

Whilst the Company has opened brewing facilities in Columbus (Ohio, USA), Germany (Berlin) and is about to launchiits first
brewing operation in Australia (Brisbane), the Company’s UK and European brewing business is highly concentrated on one
site at Ellon (Scotland) and a prolonged disruption to brewing activities (e.g. due to fire or industrial action) at the Ellon
brewing site could have a negative effect on the Company’s ability to brew its products. Thisin turn could have a negative
effect on the Company’s operating results, financial condition and prospects.

BrewDog USA Inc., the US subsidiary of the Company, launched its third common stock offering on 13 May 2020 (‘Equity for
Punks USA) with a target maximum offering of $39,000,000. If the maximum amount is raised by this offering, the

Company willown 96.79 % of BrewDog USA Inc. and US investors (from this current offering and the previous two offerings)
willin aggregate own 3.21%. BrewDog USA Inc. intends to use the proceeds of these offers to fund construction costs,
salaries, equipment purchases, working capital and marketing expenses associated with the Group's US operations

which are centered around its brewery in Columbus, Ohio. In the event that this latest offering programme is

ultimately unsuccessful or additional costs are incurred as a consequence of this offering, the Company may

need to provide further funding from its other reserves, in the first instance from its cash holdings (which were
approximately £29.48 million as at 31 December 2019), to ensure the on-going operation of its US business and this

could have a detrimental impact on the Company’s profitability.

The Company has incurred and intends to continue to incur debt finance in a number of forms including bank loans and
overdrafts, hire purchase contracts and corporate bond issues. In the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company’s total
finance costs were £3.68 million. Whilst complying with its repayment obligations under this indebtedness on a continuing
basis is an expense to the Company and breaches of financial covenants under these arrangements may lead to lenders
torequire repayment of the fullamount of the loan which could have an adverse effect on the Company’s

profitability, the Directors do not consider these debt arrangements to be materially restrictive onits operations.
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Some or all of the BrewDog bars could lose their licences to sell alcoholic beverages or have their hours of operation curtailed
as aresult of hearings of the licensing boards in the relevant councils or borough areas where each of the barsis located, or as
aresult of any changes in legislation governing licensed premises in the various jurisdictions barsin

which BrewDog has aninterest are or may be located, with an adverse effect on the Company’s profitability.

The costs of establishing and operating new BrewDog bars, licensed to sell alcohol, may be higher than expected. Although
the directors have undertaken projections and opened similar-sized licensed premises in other cities in the last year, costs may
be greater in the other intended locations for new BrewDog bars and may increase as a result of economic or other factors
outside of the Company’s control, with a resulting adverse effect on the Company’s profitability.

The Company’s success depends on the activities of its executive management team. If one or more of the current executive
management team were unable or unwilling to continue in his or her position, the Company’s business would be disrupted and
it might not be able to find replacements on a timely basis or with the same level of skilland experience. Finding and hiring such
replacements may be costly and might require the Company to grant significant equity awards or incentive compensation,
which could adversely impact its financial results.

The Company’s operating and other expenses could increase without a corresponding increase in turnover, materially
impacting the Company’s financial results. Factors which could increase operating and other expenses include:

(@) increasesintherate of inflation;
(b) increasesintaxes and other statutory charges;

(¢) changesinapplicable laws, regulations or government policies which increase the costs of compliance with such laws,
regulations or policies;

(d) significantincreases ininsurance premiums;or
(e) increasesinborrowing costs.

The Company has agreements with all of its key suppliers and is reliant on positive and continuing relationships with such
suppliers. Termination of those agreements, variations in their terms or the failure of a key supplier to comply with its obligations
under these agreements (including if a key supplier were to become insolvent) could have a negative effect on the Company’s
profitability.

Anincrease in the cost of raw materials or energy could affect the Company’s profitability. Commodity price changes may
resultinunexpected increases in the cost of raw materials, glass bottles and other packaging materials used by the Company.
The Company may also be adversely affected by shortages of raw materials or packaging materials. In addition, energy cost
increases could result in higher transportation, freight and other operating costs. The Company may not be able toincrease its
prices to offset these increased costs without suffering reduced volume, sales and operating profit.

Itisimportant that the Company has the ability to maintain and enhance the image of its existing products. The image and
reputation of the Company’s products may be impacted for various reasons including litigation, complaints from customers/
regulatory bodies resulting from quality failure, iliness or other health concerns. Such concerns, even when

unsubstantiated, could be harmful to the Company’simage and the reputation of its products.

Deterioration in the Company’s brand equity (brand image, reputation and product quality) may have a negative effect onits
operating results, financial condition and prospects.

Computer and/or website and/or information system breakdowns could impair the Company’s ability to service its customers
leading to reduced revenue from sales and/or reputational damage.

BrewDog will not own the BrewDog bars which are or may be established overseas pursuant to alicensing arrangement
and, although BrewDog will operate some of these, most of them will be operated by local operators. As aresult, BrewDog
will not always be able to directly influence their operation, save as may be specifically provided in the individual licence
agreement between BrewDog and the respective licensees. The bars operators may, therefore, take decisions which lead to
reductions in profitability and/or reputational damage negatively affecting the value of shares in BrewDog.
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Risks associated with the brewing industry and the general economy

» Asoutlinedin the section above (Risks associated with the Company’s operations and business), the brewing industry
and the general economy as a whole is currently under significant pressure as a result of the spread of the COVID-19 virus
and the resulting policy measures taken by governments worldwide to impede its spread. As an industry particularly
sensitive to a closure of all physical outlets for customers (save for supermarkets), the bar and brewing industry will take a
long time to adjust to the new environment as policy restrictions begin to be lifted, and it remains to be seen the extent
to which operational measures are imposed on a permanent basis by governments with respect to the trading of pubs
and bars.

» Changesinthe general economic climate could have a detrimental impact on consumer expenditure and therefore on
the Company’s revenue. It is possible that recessionary pressures and other economic factors (such as declining incomes,
future potential rising interest rates, higher unemployment and tax increases) may decrease the disposable income that
customers have available to spend on drinking and may adversely affect customers’ confidence and willingness to spend.
This could lead to areduction in the Company’s revenues.

« The Company uses agricultural commodities in the manufacturing of its beers. Commodity markets are volatile and
unexpected changes in commodity prices can reduce a producer’s profit margin, and make budgeting difficult. Many f
actors can affect commodity prices, including but not limited to political and regulatory changes, weather, seasonal
variations, technology and market conditions. Some of the commodities used by the Company are key ingredientsin
its beers and may not be easily substituted. In particular, the Company uses large quantities of hops from multiple suppliers
but which are all grown in a single area of the United States and environmental or agricultural problems in this area could
affect the Company’s ability to source this essential ingredient of its product.

- Brexitandits effects, particularly the on-going weakness of sterling raising the cost of capital expenditure, may adversely
affect the Company, and as a UK company with significant exports to Europe (accounting for approximately 14% of total
exports), tariffs and other measures could negatively impact the Company’s profitability. To mitigate potential disruption,
BrewDog has been considering the impact on the Company's business of such tariffs, the physical movement of goods and
people and any intellectual property implications.

« Despite the strong growth of the Company’s business and the craft beer market as a whole over the last eight years, there
is no certainty that this will continue, especially due to the recent COVID-19 virus and the changing policy measures which
governments globally are implementing with a view to contain the virus in the future and the impact which those policies will
have on the way that the Company’s business has operated to date.

Risks associated with the regulatory framework applicable to the Company

« Thebrewingindustry inthe UKis highly regulated at both national and local levels and brewing operations require licences,
permits and approvals. Delays and failures to obtain or renew required licences or permits could negatively affect the
Company'’s operations and lead to increased costs, reducing profitability.

»  Government sponsored campaigns (in the UK and in other countries where BrewDog has aninterest in bars or where
BrewDog sells its products) against excessive drinking, licensing reforms relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages and
changes indrink driving laws may reduce demand for the Company’s products and any change in the
brewing legislation could impact upon future products which the Company may produce, reducing profitability.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement. This Registration Document includes statements that
are (or may be deemed to be) “forward-looking statements”, which can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology
including the terms “believes”, “continues”, “expects”, “intends”, “may”, “will”, “would”, “should” or, in each case, their negative

or other variations or comparable terminology. These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical
facts. Forward-looking statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and circumstances.
Forward-looking statements contained in this Registration Document, based on past trends or activities, should not be taken
as arepresentation that such trends or activities will continue in the future. Any such statements do not, nor are intended to,
qualify the Company’s working capital statement. Information in this document will be updated as required by the Prospectus
Regulation Rules, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (as appropriate).
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DEFINITIONS

Where used in this document the following words and expressions will, unless the context otherwise requires, have the
following meanings:

“2006 Act”— Companies Act 2006, as amended from time to time

“Applicant” — person who completes and submits an application form to subscriber for New B Shares

“Approved Jurisdictions” —jurisdictions into which the Offer is specifically made, being Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Croatia, Republic of
Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, ltaly, Latvia, Lichtenstein, Lithuania,
Luxembourg, Malta, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain, Sweden and the UK

“Articles” —the articles of association of the Company as at the date of this document

“A Shares” — A ordinary shares of £0.001 each in the capital of the Company

“B Shares” — B ordinary shares of £0.001each in the capital of the Company

“Business Days” —any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which clearing banks in London are open for all normal banking business
“Company” or "BrewDog" — BrewDog plc (registered number SC311560)

“C Share Investors” - TSG AIVand TSG LL

“CREST” -the relevant system (as defined in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (S 2001 No. 3755)) for the paperless settlement
of transfers and the holding of shares in uncertificated form which is administered by Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (registered number
02878738)

“Directors” or “Board” — directors of the Company

“Existing B Shares” —those B Shares inissue at the date of this document

“Existing Shareholders” —holders of Existing Shares

“Existing Shares” — Shares with are in issue at the date of this document

“FCA’ -Financial Conduct Authority

“FSMA” —Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended from time to time

“Full Subscription” — the raising of approximately £7 million under the Offer

“Group” —means together BrewDog plc, its subsidiaries set out on page 20 and such other subsidiaries of the Company from time to time
“Investor” — subscriber for New B Shares under the Offer

“Management” —individuals engaged in the business of the Company

“New B Shares” —those B Shares to be issued pursuant to the Offer

“Offer Price” - price per New B Share under the Offer being £25.00

“Offer” — offer for subscription of New B Shares being made on the terms set out in the Prospectus

“Overallotment Facility” — the facility pursuant to which the Directors may choose to increase the size of the Offer to no more than £50 million
“Preferred C Shares” — the preferred C Shares of £0.001 each in the capital of the Company, with the rights attaching to them in the Articles
“Prospectus” - this Registration Document, the Securities Note and the Summary which together describe the Offer in full

"Prospectus Regulation” - Prospectus Regulation (EU) 2017/1129

“Registrar” — Computershare Investor Services PLC (registered number 03498808)

“Registration Document” — this document

“Securities Note” —document which has been prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation in connection with the Offer
“Share(s)” — A Shares and/or B Shares and/or Preferred C Shares (as the context dictates)

“Shareholders” —holders of Shares

“Summary” —summary of the Offer which has been prepared in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation in connection with the Offer
“TSGAIV'-TSG7 A AV Il (Cayman), L.P, an exempted limited liability partnership established and registered in the Cayman Island with
registration number 89628

“TSGLL"-TSG7 A Lassies and Laddies (Cayman) LP, an exempted limited liability partnership established and registered in the Cayman
Island with registration number 89627

“UK”  United Kingdom
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PART1-THE COMPANY
1.BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The number of pubs in the UK has declined steadily over the last few years and Britons are consuming less alcohol. However,
the craft beer industry has grown rapidly over the last few years as craft beers are becoming more popular in the UK and
globally. In the UK, more pubs are stocking craft beers and the number of breweries has increased significantly, it being
reported by the Financial Times in 2018 that the UK then had the highest number of breweries per capita in the world . Due to
the increasing popularity of craft beer and its faster growth than the wider beer industry, a number of large multinational beer
companies have been acquiring craft breweries in an effort to share in this growth market .

BrewDog plcis a brewer of craft beers and one of the fastest growing food and drinks manufacturer of any kind in the UK over
the last eight years with distribution into more than 60 countries. There are now over 100 BrewDog craft beer bars which are
operational across the UK and internationally, some of which are operated by local partners, and more under construction.
These bars promote craft beers brewed by BrewDog as well as craft beers from other breweries from around the world and
offer an environment in which to indulge in and explore the world of craft beer. BrewDog has previously carried out six crowd-
funding style public offers in the UK and Europe and three in the USA. BrewDog also raised a further £10 millionin 2017 and £3.3
millionin 2020 through two crowdfunded mini-bond issues. BrewDog now has over 130,000 shareholders each of whom enjoy
arange of regular benefits and discounts as well as being part of the BrewDog story. BrewDog has amassed an international
following in the hundreds of thousands. BrewDog’s combined social media audiences account for more than 1.5 million users .

2017 saw the launch of BrewDog USA, with the establishment of a new brewing facility in the world’s most exciting craft beer
market. The brewery, located in Columbus, Ohio, provides BrewDog beer for the United States, Canada and South America.
The US Brewers' Association has reported that the craft beer industry is still growing rapidly, with production volume for the
industry having increased 4% during the first half of 2019 . BrewDog USA has also launched a series of American craft beer
BrewPubs as well as a craft beer hotel.

In 2019, BrewDog took on a new brewing site in Berlin, and now brews craft beer for the German market locally in the capital.
The site offers both a100HL brewing facility as well as a bar, visitor centre and homebrew school.

BrewDog is about to launch its first brewing operation in Australia, located in Brisbane. The site will house a 25HL brewckit,
and will brew beer for the Australian market locally as well as for New Zealand. In 2019, DogTap Brisbane opened, marking
BrewDog's first footprint on Australian soil, and the business is aiming to start releasing its own beers in the next 12 months.

BrewDog produces a wide range of craft beers. The Headliners range consists of sub-6% beers of varying styles, often based
on classic beer styles with a modern twist. The Amplified range offers slightly higher ABV beers with bolder flavour profiles
than the Headliners. The Tuned Range offers an array of specialist beers that cater for dietary requirements, and BrewDog also
offers a series of Overworks brews, which are dedicated to sour and wild beers with alternative fermentation techniques.

COVID-19

The international on-trade industry for bars and restaurants has been severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and as
aresult BrewDog lost a significant portion of its expected revenue for this particular trading period. In respect of the period
between the last financial year ending on 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2020 (being the date of the most recent unaudited
management accounts of the Group), overall gross revenue was £108,025,463 against a budget of £126,682,293. This has
resulted in an overall net loss during this period of £8,151,071.

4 https:/ftalphaville.ft.com/2018/09/17/1537185867000/Craft-beer-euphoria/

5 https://www.ft.com/content/66b99bcb-1287-3d82-b3bb-023af63accda

8 https://www.fasttrack.co.uk/?post_type%5B%5D=company_profile&s=brewdog
”Combined Twitter and Instagram followers and Facebook page ‘likes’

8 https://www.brewersassociation.org/press-releases/continued-growth-for-small-and-independent-brewers/
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The retail division which covers the Company’s on-sales business has been particularly affected by the pandemic; it achieved
gross revenues of just under half of the budgeted amount in the period between 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2020, which
resulted inanetloss of £9,242,044 for this part of the business. As described in more detail below, beer and spirit sales to the
off-trade and through e-commerce channels have offset some of these losses.

In response to the trading headwinds, the Company has taken up all means of government support that have been made
available internationally to mitigate the effects onits business. This hasincluded business rate reliefs, tax deferrals and
employee furlough schemes (in respect of which, 850 of the Company’s employees were placed on furlough at the height of
the crisis). Inaddition, the Company implemented a voluntary redundancy process which resulted in just over 4% of its total
employees leaving the business, all of which were based in the UK.

This currentimpact of the pandemic on the Group has been offset to some degree by significant increases in off-trade and
ecommerce sales and revenues generated by the ‘BrewDog Now’ delivery service, which allows for the direct delivery of beer
fromits UK bar network. In the same period gross revenues from the production of beer (including products sold through the
grocery market and on e-commerce channels) are above the amount budgeted and have resulted in a net profit of £2,524,127.

In particular, the Company has focused its resources on developing its online business, which has led to an increase in sales
through e-commerce channels increasing tenfold from approximately £300,000 to approximately £3 million per monthin
response to the shift in consumer demand. Similarly, the Company has responded to increased demand for its products from
its grocery customers, which has allowed the Company to maintain shelf space amongst its key customers in this sector.
Efficiencies have also been introduced on the supply side, including a simplified product mix and packaging process. It was also
widely reported that BrewDog pivoted its distilling facility to produce medical-grade hand sanitiser for the NHS and care homes
across Scotland to aid in the response to the health crisis.

The overall long term impact of the pandemic on the Group remains uncertain at this time, but the Company has implemented
measures throughout its international bar network to maintain consumer and staff confidence. Thisincludes producing a

60 page re-opening deck, setting out the policies and procedures for staff to follow in all of its bars and takes into account
any guidance that has beenissued by the local government in each case. As a further demonstration of the Company’s
commitment to staff and customer safety, the Company achieved Covid certification from Food Alert (a food safety
consultancy) in its Manchester Bar, being the first such venue in the UK to go through their new process. °

9 See https://www.foodalert.com/covid-19-standard-certification-scheme
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2.DIRECTORS

The Company has a Board, comprising seven executive Directors and three non-executive Directors.

JAMES BRUCE WATT, MBE

James was a fully qualified deep sea Captain, having earlier completed an honours degree in Law and Economics. He traded in
being a salty sea dog to become a BrewDog in 2007, pursuing his passion for great craft beer by setting up the company with
Martin Dickie. James was awarded Great British Entrepreneur of the Year in 2014, and is one of Europe’s only holders of the title
of Master Cicerone®. He was awarded the MBE in the 2016 Queen'’s birthday honours list.

ALAN MARTIN DICKIE, MBE

Martin Dickie has afirst class honours degree in Brewing & Distilling from Herriot Watt University. He is a renegade artist on
amission to change people’s perceptions about beer and challenge their taste buds. Along with James, Martin hosts the hit
international TV show BrewDogs. He was awarded the MBE in the 2016 Queen’s birthday honours list.

CHARLESKEITH GREGGOR
Keith has decades of successful brand building with brands such as Skyy Vodka. Former President & CEO of Anchor Brewers
and Distillers in San Francisco, he plays an active role in management and guiding BrewDog'’s growth.

NEIL ALLAN SIMPSON

Neil Simpson joined BrewDog in August 2012 bringing with him over 20 years’ experience (10 of those at partner level) advising
and acting for a wide variety of businesses through the Ritson Smith accountancy practice. Neil is a qualified chartered
accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountantsin Scotland.

DAVID MCDOWALL

David joined BrewDog from G1 Group PLC, where he held the position of Group Operations Director for six years. At G1, David
was responsible for managing over 50 large scale sites across Scotland and heading up a team of over 2000 employees. For
the past four years David has been responsible for overseeing the strategic growth and management of BrewDog's bar division
around the globe as Chief Executive Officer of our bars division.

FRANCES BLYTHE JACK

Blythe is a partner and managing director at TSG Consumer Partners where she is responsible for originating new investment
opportunities, diligence, new business opportunities, structuring transactions and working with our partner companies. She is
also a member of the investment committee. Blythe has extensive private equity and consumer experience, having spent over
10 years at Rosewood Capital and, most recently, having served as CEO of a high-growth consumer products company. While
apartner at Rosewood Capital, Blythe sourced and structured investments in the health & beauty, apparel, specialty retail,
restaurant, consumer products and services segments. She has also served as a National Judge for Ernst & Young's acclaimed
Entrepreneur of the Year® program. Blythe received a BA, with honors, in Communication Studies from Vanderbilt University.

JAMES LEWIS OHARA

Jamie is a Partner and the President of TSG Consumer Partners where he oversees transaction structuring, diligence, financing
and investment execution and is a member of the investment committee. His experience also includes business unit strategy,
facility rationalization and new business development for consumer and household products companies. Jamie is a former
practicing corporate and securities attorney and a former consultant at Bain & Company. At Bain, Jamie conducted strategic
and operational due diligence and developed portfolio company strategy for leading private equity clients. He holds aBA in
Economics and Philosophy and a JD, both from Georgetown University.

© Master Cicerone@is the fourth and highest level of the Cicerone Certification Program. It recognizes an exceptional understanding of
brewing, beer, and pairing — combining outstanding tasting abilities with an encyclopaedic knowledge of commercial beers.
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Remuneration

In the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate total remuneration paid (including contingent or deferred
compensation) and benefits in kind granted (under any description) to each of the Directors of the Company was £890,776 as
setoutin the table below.

FEE/BASIC PENSION

DIRECTOR SALARY BONUS BENEFITS CoNTRIBUTION  TOTAL
d?;?tes Bruce £163125 £840 £3,201 £9,838 £177,094
Alan Martin Dickie | £190,000 £840 £2913 £11450 £205203
Charles Keith Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Greggor

Neil Allan £190,000 £840 £3.268 £19,084 £213192
Simpson

David McDowall | £246,667 £20,314 £113,500 £06,695 £407176
Frances Blythe n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Jack

James Lewis £789,792 n/a n/a n/a n/a
O'Hara

£789,792 £22,834 £122,972 £67,067 £1,002,665

In the financial year ended 31 December 2019 the Company paid/set aside or accrued £67,067 to provide pension benefits to
the Directors.

Shareholdings

The directors hold the following shares in the Company as at the date of this Prospectus:

NUMBER OF “A” PERCENTAGE OF PERCENTA,GE o7
. COMPANY'’S ISSUED SHARE
DIRECTOR ORDINARY SHARES COMPANY’SISSUED CAPITAL AFTER TO THE
HELDPRIORTOTHE SHARE CAPITAL PRIOR
OFFER TO THE OFFER OFFER (ASSUMING FULL
SUBSCRIPTION)
James Bruce Watt 18,004,237 24.56% 24.46%
Alan Martin Dickie 15,744,233 21.48% 21.39%
Charles Keith Greggor* 3,822,039 521% 519%
Neil Allan Simpson 597,736 0.82% 0.81%
David McDowall 45450 0.06% 0.06%
Frances Blythe Jack n/a n/a n/a
James Lewis O'Hara n/a n/a n/a
TOTAL 38,213,695 5213% 51.92%

*Held through Griffin Group LLC and Kelso Ventures LLC
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Options

The Company has granted the following share options over A Shares to certain of its directors and employees which remain
outstanding as at the date of this Prospectus.

OPTIONHOLDER NUMBER OF A SHARES EXERCISE PRICE PER A SHARE
Neil Simpson 391,300 £014
David McDowall 441668 £110
Richard Kilcullen 5,000 £5.00
Richard Kilcullen 15,000 £1.00
Fraser Gormley 3,000 £2.38
Fraser Gormley 15,000 £1.00
Tanisha Robinson 40,000 £1.00
Simon Wright 42,000 £1.00
James Brown 50,000 £1.00
Bethany Burns 20,000 £1.00
Steven Kersley 10,000 £1.00
Sarah Warman 3,000 £2.38
Sarah Warman 15,000 £1.00
Ben Sanderson 8,000 £1.00
Jesse Ebert 2,500 £1.00
Dan Bolton 25,000 £1.00
Alex Dullard 15,000 £1.00
Jonathan Reid 2,500 £1.00
Michiel Herkemij 200,000 £1.00
Jason Block 60,000 £1.00
Karen Bates 10,000 £1.00
Karl Ottomar 5,000 £1.00
Lauren Carroll 5,000 £1.00
Richard Street 5,000 £1.00
Sam Hughes 5,000 £1.00
Martin Keith 5,000 £1.00
Sophie More 12,500 £1.00
Tom Reding 50,000 £1.00
Matt Richards 200 £1.00
Neil Sumner 15,000 £1.00
Simon Shaw 5,000 £1.00
Alan Moore 5,000 £1.00
Ross Watson 5,000 £1.00

TOTAL 1,455,668
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Save inrespect of aloan of £22,558 made to David McDowall, with no fixed repayment date or interest chargeable, there are no
outstanding loans granted by any member of the Company to any of the Directors and there are no guarantees provided by any
member of the Company for the benefit of any of the Directors.

As at 8 September 2020 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Prospectus), the Directors had no
options and other rights to acquire any shares in the Company beyond those set out above.

None of the Directors has, within the period of five years preceding the date of the Prospectus:
(a) had any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences;

(b) been adirector or senior manager (who is relevant to establishing that a company has the appropriate expertise and
experience for the management of that company) of any company at the time of any bankruptcy, receivership, liquidation,
administration or other similar insolvency proceeding of such company (nor is any bankruptcy, receivership, liquidation,
administration or insolvency proceeding pending or in progress);

(c) received any official public incrimination and/or sanction by any statutory or regulatory authorities (including
designated professional bodies) or has been disqualified by a court from acting as a director of acompany or from actingin
the management or conduct of the affairs of acompany.

Directors’ Terms of Office

James Bruce Watt — director since 07/11/2006

Alan Martin Dickie — director since 07/11/2006
Charles Keith Greggor —director since 22/06/2009
Neil Allan Simpson - director since 06/08/2012
David McDowall - director since 21/09/2015
Frances Blythe Jack —director since 06/04/2017
James Lewis O’'Hara —director since 06/04/2017

Directors’ Other Interests

In addition to being directors of the Company, the Directors hold or have held directorships of the companies and/or are or were
partners of the partnerships specified below within the five years prior to the date of the Prospectus.
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DIRECTOR

James Bruce Watt

CURRENT DIRECTORSHIPS/
PARTNERSHIPS

The Company

JBW (77) Limited

Musa 77 Limited

Lone Wolf Spirits Limited
BrewDog USAInc.

BrewDog Retail Limited
BrewDog GmbH

BrewDog Columbus LLC
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC
BrewDog Pittsburgh LLC
Mouse House Franklinton LLC
BrewDog Dogtap LLC

BrewDog Licensing LLC

Pie & Mouse Ltd

Johanna Basford Ltd

The BrewGooder Foundation
Tollymore Investment Partners LLP
Inky Lobster Limited

Hawkes Cider Limited

Draft House Holding Limited

Jet Pack Pie Limited

BrewDog International Limited
Overworks Limited

Big Teeth Media Limited

Simcoe Ventures LLC

Draft House NC Limited
64BCMHLLC

63DCMHLLC

Ten Tonne Mouse Inc

BrewDog Bars France SAS
BrewDog Group Australia PTY Limited
BrewDog Brewing Australia PTY
Limited

BrewDog Indianapolis LLC
BrewDogNYCLLC

BrewDog MediaInc

Drink TVLLC

Drink TV Inc

PREVIOUS DIRECTORSHIPS/
PARTNERSHIPS

JBW (Aberdeen) Limited
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DIRECTOR

Alan Martin Dickie

CURRENT DIRECTORSHIPS/
PARTNERSHIPS

The Company

BrewDog Retail Limited

Lone Wolf Spirits Limited
BrewDog Group Australia PTY Limited
BrewDog Brewing Australia PTY
Limited

BrewDog MediaInc

Drink TVInc

Drink TVLLC

BrewDog USA Inc.

BrewDog Columbus LLC
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC
BrewDog Pittsburgh LLC
BrewDog Licensing LLC
Akounts Limited

Doctor Gonzo Limited

Hawkes Cider Limited

Draft House Holding Limited
Draft House NC Limited
BrewDog International Limited
Overworks Limited

Steadman Waterside Ltd
Steadman Holdings Ltd
BrewDog Dogtap LLC
BrewDogNYCLLC

BrewDog Indianapolis LLC
Vertegrow Ltd

Gonzo Holdings Ltd

PREVIOUS DIRECTORSHIPS/
PARTNERSHIPS

BrewDog Franklinton LLC

Charles Keith Greggor

The Company
Kelso Ventures, LLC
The Griffin Group, LLC

Anchor Brewers & Distillers, LLC
Anchor Distilling Company, LLC
Anchor Brewing Company, LLC
Anchor Properties, LLC

Anchor Taphouses, LLC

Vinde Soleil, LLC

Griffin Brewers & Distillers, LLC
D.A.Folkes,LLC

Neil Allan Simpson

The Company

Lone Wolf Spirits Limited
BrewDog GmbH

BrewDog Retail Limited

BrewDog USA Inc

BrewDog Columbus LLC
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC
BrewDog Pittsburgh LLC
BrewDog Dogtap LLC

Briidog Sweden AB

BrewDog Licensing LLC
BrewDog Belgium SPRL
BrewDog International Limited
Hawkes Cider Limited

Draft House Holding Limited

Draft House TB Limited

BrewDog Admin Limited
BrewDog Group Australia PTY Ltd
BrewDog Brewing Australia PTY Ltd
BD Casanova SL

BrewDog Verwaltungs UG
BrewDog Franklinton LLC
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DIRECTOR

Neil Allan Simpson cont.

CURRENT DIRECTORSHIPS/
PARTNERSHIPS

Draft House NC Limited
BrewDog Canada Limited
BrewDog Ireland Limited
BrewDog Bars France SAS
Bryggmester Bob AS

BrewDog Canada Limited
BrewDog Group HK Limited
BrewDog Indianapolis LLC
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japan
BrewDog Italy SRL

BruDog Malmo AB

BruDog Bar GBG AB

BruDog Norrkoping AB

BruDog Sodermalm AB

BruDog Bar St Eriksgatan AB
BrewDogNYCLLC

BrewDog (Shanghai) Beer Co Limited

PREVIOUS DIRECTORSHIPS/PARTNERSHIPS

David McDowall

The Company

BrewDog Retail Limited
BrewDog GmbH

BrewDog Belgium SPRL
Bridog Sweden AB

Draft House Holding Limited
BrewDog Bars France SAS
Bryggmester Bob AS

Draft House NC Limited
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japan
BrewDog Ireland Limited
BrewDog Italy SRL

BruDog Malmo AB

BruDog Bar GBG AB

BruDog Norrkoping AB

BruDog Sodermalm AB

BruDog Bar St Eriksgatan AB
BrewDog (Shanghai) Beer Co Limited

Verlog Consulting Limited

Frances Blythe Jack The Company My Fit Holdings LLC
TSG Consumer Partners and affiliates | IT Cosmetics LLC
BackCountry.comLLC VILLA Inc dbaRUVilla
Canyon Bicycles GmbH Beauty Brands LLC
SW Brewing Company LLC Prive Revaux
Rosewood Capital LP
Dutch Bros. Coffee

James Lewis O'Hara The Company J.A. Cosmetics US Inc.
TSG Consumer Partners and affiliates | Alterna Holdings Corp.
Backcountry.com LLC Garden Protein International Inc.
yon Bicycles GmbH Cytosport Holdings Inc.
SW Brewing Company LLC Pevonia International LLC
Mallard HoldCo LLC MonaVie LLC
Powerstop Holdings LLC Stumptown Coffee Corp.
CG Group Holdings, LLC PPD Holding LLC
nuun & Company, Inc Raybern Foods LLC
Georgetown University Lucky Vitamin LLC
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5. OPERATION OF THE COMPANY AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Company is an unlisted company and therefore does not specifically comply with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code nor the AIM rules, Listing Rules or Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

The Board comprises 7 directors in total, three of whom are non-executive directors.

The Board as a whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of the Directors, reviewing the Company’s annual and
half yearly accounts and for supervising its auditors and has not delegated these responsibilities to any remuneration or audit
committees respectively.

No member of the Board has a service contract with the Company which provides for any benefits on termination of
employment.

4. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

Other than members of the Management and Digby Holdings LLC (the investment vehicle for a former associate of Charles
Keith Greggor), no one person or entity owns more than 3% of the Company’s issued share capital or voting rights save for TSG
AlV and TSG LL which together hold an aggregate of 16,160,849 Preferred C Shares representing 22.05% of the Company’s
totalissued share capitaland TSG7A AlV Il (Cayman), L.P.and TSG7 A Lassies and Laddies (Cayman) LP which together hold
an aggregate of 891,383 Orindary A Shares, representing 1.2% of the Company's total issued share capital (as at the date of this
document). TSG AlV and TSG LL are exempted limited partnerships established and registered in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by any individual, company or other body.
No major shareholder in the Company has voting rights which are different from any other shareholder.

There are no arrangements in place which are known to the Company the operation of which may at a subsequent date resultin
achange of control of the Company.

9. EMPLOYEES

As at 8 September 2020 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Prospectus), the Group had
approximately 1,600 employees.
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6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the table below, no related party transactions between the Company or members of the Company were
entered into in the three year period ended on 8 September 2020 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of
the Prospectus) which are still subsisting.

CONTRACTINGPARTY COUNTERPARTY CONTRACT RELATION TO COMPANY

BrewDog Retail Limited JBW (77) Limited BrewDog Retail Limited leases James Watt owns 100% of the
BrewDog's a bar in Aberdeen shares of JBW (77) Limited
from JBW (77) Limited. Annual
rent from the bar is approximately
£23,000.

The Company JBW (77) Limited The Company pays immaterial James Watt owns 100% of the
rentto JBW (77) Limited forthe | shares of JBW (77) Limited
use of flatin London

Draft House Holding JBW (77) Limited Draft House Holding Limited James Watt owns 100% of the

Limited leases BrewDog's abar in shares of JBW (77) Limited
Aberdeen from JBW (77) Limited.

Annual rent fromthe bar is
approximately £30,000.

The Company Jet Pack Pie Limited The Company has paid atotalof | James Watt owns 100% of the
approximately £125,000 annually | shares of Jet Pack Pie Limited
to Jet Pack Pie Limited for flights.

The Company The Brewgooder The Company brews beer on James Watt and Martin Dickie

Foundation behalf of The Brewgooder are trustees of The Brewgooder
Foundation at cost at anaverage | Foundation
value of £170,000 per year.

BrewDog USA Inc. JBW (77) Limited BrewDog USA INC reimbursed James Watt owns 100% of the
JBW (77) Limited £2,976 for shares of JBW (77) Limited
entertainment costs

The Company 63DCMHLLC The Company pays an annual James Watt owns 100% of the
rent of $43,200 to rent a property | shares of 63DCMH LLC
inthe US from 63DCMH LLC.

BrewDog USA Inc. Mouse House BrewDog Brewing Company LLC | James Watt owns 100% of the

Franklinton LLC

pays amonthly rent of $12,500
for the Franklinton bar.

shares in Mouse House Franklinton
LLC

The Company

Ten Tonne Mouse Inc

Ten Tonne Mouse LLC acquired
the company BrewDog
Franklinton LLC (now Mouse
House Franklinton LLC) in
December 2017 for $657,000.

James Watt owns 100% of the
shares in Ten Tonne Mouse Inc
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7.THECOMPANY’S HOLDINGS

The Company is the principal operational and holding company of the Group and has the following direct interests and
subsidiary undertakings:

COMPANY HOLDING DESCRIPTION

BrewDog Retail Limited 100% of the issued shares Bar operating company
(SC389114) Incorporated in Scotland

Lone Wolf Spirits Limited 100% of the issued shares Dormant

(SC534706) Incorporated in Scotland

BrewDog International Limited 100% of the issued shares Holding company for the
(SC311560) Incorporated in Scotland international bars business
Hawkes Cider Limited 100% of the issued shares Dormant

(08223038) Incorporated in England and Wales

Draft House Holding Limited 100% of the issued shares Bar operating company
(06947531) Incorporated in Scotland

BrewDog Admin Limited 100% of the issued shares Dormant

(SC589885) Incorporated in Scotland

OverWorks Limited 100% of the issued shares Dormant

(SC579924) Incorporated in Scotland

BrewDog USA Inc. 96.79% of the issued stock (3.21% held | US holding company
(5733488) Incorporated in USA by third party investors)

BrewDog Media Inc 100% of the issued shares US holding company
(6759053) Incorporated in USA

BrewDog Group Australia Pty Ltd 100% of the issued shares Australia Holding Co mpany
(623 403 841) Incorporated in Australia

BrewDog Belgium SPRL 100% of issued shares Established to operate
(0501789 017) Incorporatedin Belgium BrewDog bar in Brussels
BrewDog do Brasil Comércio de Alimentos e 100% of the issued shares Established to operate
Bebidas Ltda BrewDog bar in Brazil
(35.227.615.645) Incorporated in Brasil

BrewDog GmbH 100% of the issued shares Established to operate bars
(HRB173836) Incorporated in Germany and brewery in Germany
Briidog Sweden AB 100% of the issued shares Swedish holding company
(5656910-6320) Incorporated in Sweden

Crown & Hops Inc. 4% of the issued shares Minority holding in US brewing
(7206119) Incorporated in USA company

BrewDog Group HK Limited 100% of the issued shares Hong Kong holding company
(2662477) Incorporated in Hong Kong

BrewDog Bar Korea 48% of the issued shares Established to operate
(110111-6540599) Incorporated in South Korea BrewDog bar in South Korea
BD Casanova SL 100% of the issued shares Established to operate
(B66312737) Incorporated in Spain BrewDog bar in Spain
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8.PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT

The Company’s material tangible fixed assets are as follows:

PROPERTY FORM OF TENURE / ENCUMBRANCES

Brewery at Balmaccassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Owned
Aberdeenshire, AB418BX

Brewery in Columbus, Ohio Owned
Brewery in Brisbane, Australia Leased
Brewery in Berlin, Germany Leased
Brewing Equipment Owned
Distribution centre in Glasgow Leased

There are no known environmental issues which could affect the Company’s utilisation of these fixed assets.

9.DIRECTORY

Directors James Bruce Watt
Alan Martin Dickie
Neil Allan Simpson
Charles Keith Greggor
David McDowall
Frances Blythe Jack
James Lewis O'Hara

Company Secretary Alan Martin Dickie

Registered Office BrewDog plc, Balmacassie Commercial Park
Ellon, Aberdeenshire AB418BX, Scotland

Company Number SC311560

Solicitors to the Company RW Blears LLP
15 Old Square
Lincoln’s Inn
London
WC2A 3UE

Auditors Ernst&YoungLLP
Blenheim House
Fountainhall Road
Aberdeen, AB15 ADT

Registrar Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol
BS138AE
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PART Il - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. Introduction

Consolidated audited historical information for the Company and the Group, covering the latest three financial years, have
been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards in respect of the years ended 31 December
2017,2018 and 2019 (the “Relevant Years”), and are available from the Company’s registered office and from the offices of the
Company'’s lawyers: RW Blears LLP, 15 Old Square, Lincoln’s Inn, London WC2A 3UE.

The information below is extracted from the Company’s audited financial statements for the Relevant Years (the “Audited
Financial Statements”). The Audited Financial Statements are available for viewing as set out above and are set out in the Annex
to thisdocument.

None of the audit reports for the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the Relevant Years (which are reproducedin the
Annex hereto) contained any qualifications or disclaimers.

2. Selected Financial Information

GROUP STATEMENT OF INCOME

Auditedyearended Auditedyearended Audited year ended
31December2019  31December2018  31December 2017
£000 £000 £000
GROSS REVENUE 214,896 171,619 110,870
Cost of sales + Duty (139,457) (113,878) (73,244)
GROSS PROFIT 75439 57,741 37,626
Operating expenses (88,677) (58,021) (35140)
Gain on acquistion of Berlin Brewey and Taproom 14,249 - -
Gain/(Loss) on property, plant and equipment 766 (303) (1406)
Other operatingincome 1,956 974 218
OPERATING PROFIT 3,733 391 2,558
Financeincome 1,053 354 121
Finance costs (3,671) (1,321) (1,273)
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 115 (576) 1,406
Income tax expense (65) (917) (536)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION (1,050) 1493 870
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Audited year ended 31 Audited year ended 31 Audited year ended 31
December 2019 December 2018 December 2017

£000 £000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Property plant and equipment 145192 124477 80,329
Right-of-use asset 98,464 - -
Intangible assets 21102 17,016 2146
Other non-current financial assets 157 - 52
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 45,923 37,364 24,498
Inventory 14,653 15,033 7,283
Corporation tax receivable 904 331 418
Cash and cash equivalents 35,164 38,978 88,498
TOTAL ASSETS 361,559 233199 203,224
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 40,418 35,967 21482
Lease Liabilities 7,791 - -
Financial liabilities 10,583 10,776 8,451
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities 2,653 2,399 1,965
Lease Liabilities 97,922 - -
Financial liabilities 21,828 16,555 22,310
Government grants 3,304 2,508 2,193
TOTAL LIABILITIES 184,499 68,205 56,401
NET ASSETS 177,060 164,994 146,823
EQUITY
Called up share capital 73 73 72
Share premium 158,226 147,535 128,880
Treasury shares (1185) (1185) (1185)
Foreign currency translation 170 514 548
reserve
Retained earnings 19,955 18,149 18,515
Non-controlling interests (179) (92) (7)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 177,060 164,994 146,823
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CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT Auditedyearendto  Auditedyearended Auditedyearendto

31December2019  31December 2018  31December 2017

£000 £000 £000
Cashflows from operating activities
(Loss) / Profit before tax 1115 (576) 1,406
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,567) 303 143
Release of contingent consideration (1,000) - -
Gain on acquisition of brewery and taproom (14,249) - -
Depreciation 11,014 7,855 4,640
Amortisation of ROU assets 6,902 - -
Impairment 614 - -
Foreign exchange 1,585 (1,651) 1,771
Write off of other payables - (37) (803)
Financialincome (1,053) (216) (121)
Financial charges 3,671 1,321 1,273
Grant amortisation (149) (138) (136)
Loss on disposal of associate - - 3
Decrease/(Increase) ininventory (380) (7,466) (1,885)
Increase in trade and other receivables (8,559) (11,058) (8,275)
Increase in trade and other payables 5,486 6,043 8,436
Interest received 903 217 121
Interest paid (1,640) (842) (943)
Taxation paid (271) (400) (820)
Taxation refunded 876 78 55
Share based payment expense 642 501 -
Net cashinflow/(outflow) from operating activities 4,700 (6,029) 4,865
Cashflows frominvesting activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (26,888) (44137) (24,235)
Purchase of intangible assets (428) - (35)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (705)
Investment in an unlisted entity (157) - -
Proceedsfromdisposal of associate - - 49
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (2,022) (13,071) (290)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 14,769 - -
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Net cashinflow/(outflow) frominvesting activities (14,726) (57,208) (25,216)

Cashflows fromfinancing activities

Issue of ordinary share capital 9,016 17,683 112,360
Transaction costs of issue of shares (705) (989) (3,726)
Proceeds from exercise of share options - - 59
Proceeds from new borrowings - - 897
Proceeds from government grants 251 453 250
Proceeds frombondissue - 10,000
Repayment of bonds (1659) (1) -
Principle elements of lease payments - (7,340) -
Repayment of borrowings (247) (259) (10,523)
Payments for finance leases and hire purchase contracts 6,986 (3,160) (3,627)
Net cashflow usedinfinancing activities 5,888 13,717 105,690
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,814) (49,520) 85,339
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of period 38,978 88,498 3159
Cashand cash equivalents atend of period 35,164 39,978 88,498

3. Audited financial statements for years ended 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019

Audited Financial Statements for the Relevant Years are reproduced in the Annex to this document.

4. Significant Change

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a significant change to the Group’s financial performance and financial
position since 31 December 2019 (the date to which the Company’s last audited financial information was published). The
international on-trade industry for bars and restaurants was severely impacted by the pandemic and as a result BrewDog lost
asignificant portion of its expected revenue for this particular trading period. In respect of the period between the last financial
year ending on 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2020 (being the date of the most recent unaudited management accounts of
the Group), overall gross revenue was £108,025,463 against a budget of £126,682,293. This has resulted in an overall net loss
during this period of £8,151,071. The retail division which covers the Company’s on-sales business has been particularly affected
by the pandemic; it achieved gross revenues of just under half of the budgeted amount in the period between 31 December
2019 and 30 June 2020, which resulted in a net loss of £9,242,044 for this part of the business.

On 3 August 2020, the Company took out a Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan for £25 million with HSBC Bank
PLC. Theloanis repayable in a single repayment 3 years from the date of the loan agreement.

Save as noted above, as at the date of this document there has been no other significant change in the finanical performance
or financial position of the Group which has occurred since 31 December 2019, the date to which the Company’s last audited
financial information was published.
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PART Ill - CAPITAL RESOURCES AND OPERATING AND
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Part A: Capital Resources

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity are its existing cash and cash equivalents and its cash generated from operations
along with existing debt facilities. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net cash position of £3516 million. The Company'’s
long-term positive cash position is mainly due to a very large investment received from TSG Consumer Partners in April 2017
and from the Company’s successful crowdfunding raise of £8.67 million (less costs) which closed in April 2020.

Contractual obligations and commitments

The Group’s contractual obligations consist mainly of payments related to loans and borrowings and related interest, operating
leases and unconditional purchase obligations. The following table summarises the Group's contractual obligations as of 31
December 2019:

Total Within1year 1toSyears Over 5years
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Bank loans and borrowings 7311 5,300 1,200 811
Bonds 10,640 641 9,999
Hire purchase obligations x 14,460 4642 9,23 585
Operating lease obligations 105,713 7,791 30,798 67124
Capital commitments 1,835 1,835
139,959 20,209 51,230 68,520

The capital commitments relate to buildings and equipment obligations that have been committed to by the Group as at 31
December 2019.

Details of the terms of the other obligations referred to in the table above are set out below.
Bank loans
£1,820,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a maximum of £1,820,000 and is repayable by monthly
instalments until October 2027 and bears interest at 1.40% over the base rate.

£2000000 bank loan

This fixed rate loanis in the name of the parent company, originally for a maximum of £2,000,000 and is repayable by monthly
instalments until May 2029 and bears interest at 1.40% over the base rate. This loan is secured by a mortgage over the land and
buildings.

£5000000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a maximum of £5,000,000 and is repayable by quarterly
installments until January 2025. It bears interest at 21% over the base rate.

CLBILS Loan

On 3 August 2020, the Company took out a Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan for £25 million with HSBC Bank plc.
The loanis repayable in a single repayment 3 years from the date of the loan agreement.

Bonds

In November 2015, the Group issued £2,312,000 non-convertible bonds, which matured in November 2019. During the year,
bonds totaling £1,658,000 were re-paid. The purpose of these bonds was to finance expansion.
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The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 6.5%, paid bi-annually. The amounts not repaid of £642,000 were reinvested into
the new January 2020 bond (see below).

In January 2017, the Group issued a further £10,000,000 of non-convertible bonds with a maturity in January 2021. The
purpose of the bond issue was to finance expansion. The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 7.5%. Interest is paid bi-
annually with subsequent repayment of the principal amount in January 2021.

On 22 January 2020, the Group raised a further £3,309,000 through the issue of non-convertible bonds with a maturity in
January 2024. The purpose of the bond was to finance further expansion. The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 6%,
5% payable in cash, 1% payable in ‘Beer Interest’ payable bi-annually.

Hire purchase

The Group uses finance leases and hire purchase contracts to acquire plant and machinery. These leases have terms of
renewal but no purchase options and escalation clauses.

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on certain land and buildings. These leases have an average duration of
between three and 25 years. Only the property lease agreements contain an option for renewal, with such options being
exercisable three months before the expiry of the lease term at rentals based on market prices at the time of exercise. There are
no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Part B: Operating and Financial Review

A description of the changes in the performance of the Company, both capital and revenue, and changes to the Company's
portfolio of investments is set out below.

OVERVIEW

BrewDog has continued to grow year on year from formation in 2007. Notwithstanding the higher base each year growth
has not slowed. The move to the state of the art new brewery in Ellon, Aberdeenshire at the end of 2012 helped to increase
production and a significant investment of approximately $39 million in a new brewery in Columbus, Ohio will be key to
continuing this growth by opening up BrewDog's beers to the much larger US craft market.

There has been major capital expenditure in both bars and breweries (including in Berlin and Australia) over the last few years
and there are plans to increase this level of investment going forward. We have also significantly increased the team to over
1,450 people worldwide.

All of this has been made possible through Equity for Punks, our innovative public share offering which (together with the
crowdfunded bond issues) has now seen over £79 million invested in the Group. Furthermore, in April 2017, a £102.5 million
investment by private equity house TSG Consumer Partners which saw them take approximately 22% of the Company’s
shares (based on the number of shares inissue at the time), valuing the Company at £1 billion, will be used to accelerate our five
year growth plan, turbo-charging our plans for breaking the US market and facilitating expansion into Asia and beyond.

The following table sets out the Group's revenue, operating profit and profit after tax for the three years ended 31 December
2017,2018 and 2019:

Year Ended 31December
2019 2018 2017
£000s £000s £000s
Revenue 214,896 171,619 110,870
Operating Profit 3,733 391 2,558
Profit after tax 1,050 (1,493) 870

Revenue increased 25.22% in 2019 compared to 54.8% in 2018. There are a number of risks which can have animpact on the
Group's performance. These are referred to on pages 4-7.

Allrevenue streams for the Group have increased in the last three years. The table sets out the geographical breakdown of
income for the three years ended 31 December 2017,2018 and 2019:
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Year Ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017

£000s £000s £000s
UK 154,981 132,357 89,242
Europe 30,062 21,003 912,959
US and Canada 21,004 13,314 3,964
Rest of the World 8,849 4,945 4,705

214,896 171619 110,870

Export sales have increased as have sales in the UK to both the on and off trade. UK growth has been assisted by the opening of
19 BrewDog bars in this period. 2018 to 2019 saw anincrease in the sales teams for the UK and overseas to support the planned
growth.

Gross profitincreased by 30.65% in 2019 compared to 2018, an increase of 2x since 2017. Margins are being maintained
despite volume pressures. The Company has secured raw material supplies along with economies of scale as we have
continued to grow in our current facility in Ellon.

Operating expenses are approximately 41.3% of revenue in 2019 compared to 33.8% in 2018. The costs have increased as
the business has grown with the main increases being in staff wages and salaries costs as we grow the team to meet current
business challenges and planned expansion.

BALANCE SHEET

Please see page 23 for the balance sheet.
CASH FLOW

Please see page 24 for the cash flow statement.

Cashinflow from operating activities grew steadily between 2016 and 2017 but reversed in 2018 with a further small reductionin
2019 due to continued investment in working capital and inventory to support growth.

Net cash out flow used for investing activities increased steadily year on year until 2018 as the Company heavily invested in
pursuing expansion opportunities. 2019 however has seen net cash out flow used for investing activities reduce by 34%. As
planned 2019 was another year of growth and investment, particualrly in our teams marketing our increasing bar network both
inthe UK and overseas and in acquisitions. This led to anincrease in overheads.

The Company’s net cash position as at 31 December 2019 was positive £29.48 million.
Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred £26.9 million of capital expenditure in 2019, with £16.8 million of this being the fit out costs of bars and £1.7
million being the costs of establishing the new brewery in Australia.

Total capital investment from 1January 2017 to 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately £96.7 million on tangible fixed
assets.

Financing

The significant investment in buildings, equipment and people has been financed in a number of ways. Improved profitability has
generated cash inflows from operating activities. This has been supplemented by the following sources of finance referred to
under the heading “Contractual obligations and commitments” in Part A above.

The sixth round of Equity for Punks closed in April 2020 and, raised approximately £8.7 million less costs.
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PART IV- TAXATION

The following information, which sets out the taxation treatment for holders of New B Shares, is based on existing law in force
in the UK and what is understood to be current HM Revenue & Customs (“HMRC”) practice, each of which may be subject

to change, possibly with retroactive effect. It is intended as a general guide only and applies to potential shareholders who
are resident or ordinarily resident in the UK for tax purposes (except to the extent that specific reference is made to potential
shareholders resident or ordinarily resident outside the UK), who will hold the New B Shares as investments and who are

the absolute beneficial owners of those New B Shares but is not applicable to all categories of potential shareholders, and in
particular, is not addressed to (i) special classes of potential shareholders such as dealers in securities or currencies, broker-
dealers or investment companies and (i) potential shareholders who have acquired their New B Shares by virtue of orin
connection with their or another’s office or employment.

The information does not purport to be comprehensive or to describe all potentially relevant tax considerations and does not
generally consider tax relief or exemptions. Applicants who are in doubt as to their tax position, or who are subject to taxina
jurisdiction other than the UK, are strongly recommended to consult their professional advisers.

DIVIDENDS

Shareholders who are resident and domiciled in the UK for taxation purposes may, depending on their circumstances, be
liable to UK income tax in respect of dividends paid by the Company. All dividends received from the company by an individual
Shareholder who is resident and domiciled in the UK will, except to the extent that they are earned through a self-invested
pension plan or other regime which exempts the dividend from tax, form part of the Shareholder’s total income for income tax
purposes and will represent the highest part of that income.

From 6 April 2019, a nil rate amount of income tax applies to the first £2,000 of dividend income received by an individual
shareholder in the tax year (the “Nil Rate Amount”) regardless of what tax rate would otherwise apply to that dividend income.
If an individual shareholder receives dividends in excess of the Nil Rate Amount in a tax year, the excess will be taxed as
income tax at the dividend ordinary rate (7.5%) for individual Shareholders who are basic rate taxpayers, the dividend upper
rate of (32.5%) for individual Shareholders who are higher rate taxpayers and the dividend additional rate (381%) for individual
Shareholders who are additional rate taxpayers. Dividend income that is within the Nil Rate Amount counts towards an
individual's basic or higher rate limits —and will therefore affect the level of savings allowance to which they are entitled, and the
rate of tax that is due on any dividend income in excess of the Nil Rate Amount. In calculating into which tax band any dividend
income over the Nil Rate Amount falls, savings and dividend income are treated as the highest part of an individual’sincome.

Where anindividual has both savings and dividend income, the dividend income is treated as the top slice.
CHARGEABLE GAINS -DISPOSAL OF NEW B SHARES

A disposal of New B Shares acquired under the Offer by an Applicant who is resident, or in the case of an individual, ordinarily
resident in the UK for tax purposes in the relevant year of assessment may give rise to a chargeable gain (or allowable loss)

for the purposes of UK capital gains tax (where the Shareholder is an individual) or UK corporation tax on chargeable gains
(where the Applicant is within the charge to UK corporation tax), depending on the circumstances and subject to any available
exemption or relief.

Anindividual Applicant who ceases to be resident or ordinarily resident in the UK (for tax purposes) for a period broadly of less
than five years and who disposes of the B Shares during that period may also be liable to UK capital gains tax on his return to the
UK (subject to any available exemption or relief).

An Applicant who is not resident or, in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the UK (and is not
temporarily non-resident as described above) will not be liable for UK tax on capital gains realised on the sale or other disposal
of his New B Shares unless such New B Shares are used, held or acquired for the purposes of a trade, profession or vocation
carried onin the UK through a branch or agency or, in the case of a corporate Shareholder, through a permanent establishment.
Such an Applicant may be subject to foreign taxation on any gain subject to the terms of any applicable double tax treaty.
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INHERITANCE TAX (“IHT”)

The New B Shares will be assets situated in the UK for the purposes of UK inheritance tax. A gift of New B Shares by, or on the
death of, an individual Shareholder may (subject to certain exemptions and reliefs) be subject to UK inheritance tax, evenif the
Shareholder is neither domiciled nor deemed to be domiciled in the UK. For inheritance tax purposes, a transfer of assets at
less than full market value may be treated as a gift. Special rules apply to gifts where the donor reserves or retains some benefit
and these rules could give rise to a liability to UK inheritance tax on the death of the donor.

STAMP DUTY AND STAMP DUTY RESERVE TAX (“SDRT”)

No stamp duty or SDRT will be payable on the issue of the New B Shares unless New B Shares are issued or transferred (i) to,
or toanominee for, a person whose business s or includes the provision of clearance services (a “Clearance Service”) or (ii)
to, or to a nominee or agent for, a person whose businessis or includes issuing depositary receipts (a “Depositary Receipts
System”). In this event, stamp duty or SDRT will generally be payable at the higher rate of 1.5% the consideration payable, orin
certain circumstances, the value of the New B Shares (rounded up to the nearest £5 in the case of stamp duty).

Any transfer by an Applicants in the New B Shares will be subject to stamp duty or SDRT in the normal way. The transfer on
sale of New B Shares will generally be liable to stamp duty at the rate of 0.5% (rounded to the nearest multiple of £5) of the
consideration paid. An unconditional agreement to transfer such shares will generally be liable to SDRT at the rate of 0.5% of
the consideration paid, but such liability will be cancelled if the agreement is completed by a duly-stamped transfer within six
years of the agreement having become unconditional.

The statements in this paragraph are intended as a general guide to the current UK stamp duty and SDRT position
and do not apply (i) to persons such as market makers, dealers, brokers, intermediaries and persons (or nominees or
agents for such persons) who issue depositary receipts or operate clearance services to whom special rules apply or
(ii) as regards transfers of shares to any of the persons mentioned in (i).
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PARTV - GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

1. Incorporation and Administration

The Company was incorporated and registered Scotland as a private company with limited liability on 7 November 2006
with registered number SC311560, with the name BrewDog Limited. On 15 October 2009, it re-registered as a public limited
company pursuant to section 90 of the 2006 Act and changed its name to BrewDog plc.

The principal legislation under which the Company operates is the 2006 Act. The principal activity of the Company since that
date has been to operate as a brewer of craft beers. The Company is domiciled in Scotland in the UK. The registered office
of the Company and its principal place of business is Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB418BX. The

telephone number is 01358 724924.
2. Share Capital

21 Asat8September 2020, the last practicable date prior to the publication of this document, the issued share capital of the

Company was:
Class of Share Number of Shares Aggregate Nominal Value (£)
A Ordinary 43,790,943 43,790.95
B Ordinary 13,352,887 13,352.89
Preferred C Shares 16,160,849 16,160.85
TOTAL 73,304,679 73,304.69

2.2 Atthe Company’'s AGM expected to be convened in September 2020, resolutions are proposed to grant the Directors
authority to allot andissue up t0 1,988,071 new B Shares. The Directors intend to utilise this authority to allot New B Shares
pursuant to the Offer.

2.3 Save for the options described on page 13, no share or loan capital of the Company is under option or has been agreed,
conditionally or unconditionally, to be put under option. No shares of the Company represent anything other than capital.

24 Thereare no convertible securities, exchangeable securities or other securities with warrants attached to them currently
inissue by the Company.

2,5 Nosharesinthe Company are held by or on behalf of the Company itself or any of its subsidiaries. The Company holds
157,673%2 B Shares in treasury.

3. The Company

31 There has not been any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the Company is aware) in the 12 months prior to the date of this Prospectus which may
have or have had in the recent past a material effect on either the Company and/or the Group's financial position or
profitability.

3.2 Other than pursuant to the Offer and the authorities referred to above in sub-paragraph 2.2 above, no material issue of
shares (other than where offered to Shareholders pro rata to existing holdings) will be made within one year without the
prior approval of Shareholders in general meeting.

g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020

31



3.3 The B Shares will be inregistered form and can be held in certificated or uncertificated form. Title to certificated B Shares
will be evidenced in the register of members of the Company and title to uncertificated B Shares will be evidenced by entry
into the operator register maintained by the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions,

Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS13 8AE (which will form part of the register of members of the Company). CREST

is a paperless settlement system enabling securities to be transferred from one person’s CREST account to another’s
without the need to use share certificates or written instruments of transfer. The Company has applied for the B Shares

to be admitted to CREST and the Articles permit the holding of B Shares under the CREST system. Accordingly,
settlement of transactions in the B Shares may take place within the CREST system if any Shareholder so wishes. CREST
is avoluntary system and holders of B Shares who wish to receive and retain share certificates will be able to do so.

34 ltisthe Company’s current policy not to pay dividends but to reinvest profits to fuel the growth of the Company.

4. Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
The Memorandum of Association and the Articles are available for inspection at the address specified in paragraph 8 below.
The Memorandum of Association is a historic document containing no substantive provisions.

The Articles contain provisions to the following effect:

41 Votes of Members

Each holder of an A Share, B Share or Preferred C Share has one vote in respect of each share held and accordingly such
shares rank pari passu at any general meeting of the Company.

4.2 Dividends
4.21 Final Dividends

(@) Subject to the Companies Acts, the Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends in
accordance with the respective rights of the members but no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. Subject to the Companies Acts, any determination by the Board of the
amount of profits at any time available for distribution shall be conclusive

(b) The A Shares and B Shares rank pari passu in relation to the declaration and payment of any dividend.

422 Interimand Fixed Dividends

Subject to the Statutes, the Board may pay interim dividends if it appears to the Board that they are justified
by the financial position of the Company. If the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes,
the Board may pay interim dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred rights to dividends
as well as on shares which confer preferential or special rights to dividends, but no interim dividend shall

be paid on shares carrying deferred or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any preferential
dividendisin arrears. The Board may also pay at intervals settled by it any dividend payable at a fixed

dateif it appears to the Board that the financial position of the Company justifies the payment. If the

Board acts in good faith, it shall not incur any liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred rights for
any loss which they may suffer by reason of the lawful payment of an interim dividend on any shares having
deferred or non-preferred rights.
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4.3 Returns of capital, share sales, disposals and listing

4.31 Onareturnof the Company’s entire capital or a winding, the Preferred C Shares shall have a first entitlement to greater
of (i) their acquisition price plus an annual compounded return of 18% and (i) such amount as would be applied to the
Preferred C Shares were they to rank pari passu with the A Shares and B Shares, and thereafter shall be distributed pari
passu amongst the holders of the A Share and B Shares.

4.3.2 Any returnonaparticular class of Share shall be made amongst their holders pro rata as nearly as possible to their
respective holdings of Shares of that class.

4.3.3 Any consideration received by way of a Share Sale (an acquisition of 50% or more of the Company’s shares) or disposal
(an acquisition of all or substantially all of the Company’s business or assets) shall be applied in accordance with 4.31.

4.3.4 The principles set out in 4.31will be applied in calculating the allocation of shares to be listed in the Company immediately
prior to such Listing.

4.3.5 Any holder of Preferred C Shares may, at any time prior to the first to occurrence of a Listing, a Share Sale, a Disposal, or a
return of capital, require conversion of all of Preferred C Shares held by it into A Shares.

4.4 Permitted Share Transfers

4.41 Members shall be permitted to transfer the legal title to and/or beneficial ownership of a share if the member holds A

Shares:

(a) if acompany, to any holding company or subsidiary of that Member or to any other subsidiary of any such
Member’s holding company; or

(b) to aperson who s the beneficial owner of such share or (in the case of the legal title only) to a different or
additional nominee or trustee on behalf of such beneficial owner provided that such person has not become
the beneficial owner thereof other than in accordance with the provisions of the Articles; or

(c) to amember of his or her immediate family, including spouse (or ex-spouse), parents, step-parents, adoptive
parents, grandparents, children, step-children, adopted children, grandchildren, brothers, sisters, motherin
law, father in law, brothers in law, sisters in law, daughters in law and sons in law; or

(d) with the prior written consent of the holders of not less than 90 per cent (by number) of the aggregate number
of shares for the relevant time being in issue; or

(e) to aholder of Preferred C Shares.

4.5 Permitted Share Transfers

4.51 The Articles provide that in the event that an offer from a potential buyer is accepted for 66 per cent or more of the issued
share capital of the Company, that buyer shall be obliged to extend such an offer to all other shareholders of the Company

on the same terms. This is in addition to any obligations which the buyer may have in law or pursuant to the Takeover Code.

4.5.2 Inthe event that within the period prescribed in the Articles, all other shareholders have not accepted such an offer,
they will be deemed to have accepted such an offer and be obliged to deliver up an executed stock transfer form and
share certificate and failing which the Directors may instruct a person to execute the stock transfer form on behalf of such
ashareholder and hold the remittance for such shares until instructed to transfer the sums to that shareholder.
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4.6 Mandatory Transfer Notices

If any person shall purport to transfer or otherwise dispose of any share or any interest in or right arising from any share
otherwise than as permitted under Article 381 of the Articles or otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the Articles,
such person and any Associate of such person who is a Member shall, unless and to the extent (if any) that the Directors
otherwise determine at the relevant time, be deemed to have given, on the date on which the Directors give notice to such
person that they have become aware of the purported transfer or other disposal, a transfer notice in respect of all shares of
which such person and any such Associate of such personis then the holder.

4.7 Rightto Refuse Registration

4.71 The Board may, inits absolute discretion, refuse to register any transfer of any Certificated Share, whether
or notitis afully paid Share. For such a time as the Shares remain unlisted on any Recognised Investment Exchange,
the Board may exercise its discretion to refuse to register any transfer of any Certificated Share to a
transferee who is a monolithic purveyor of bland industrial beer.

4.7.2 If the Board refuses to register a transfer it shall within two months after the date on which the transfer was lodged or the
instructions to the relevant electronic system were received, send the transferee notice of the refusal together with its
reasons for the refusal.

4.7.3 The Board may also refuse to register a transfer of a share in the following circumstances:

(a) if it is not lodged, duly stamped (if necessary), at the registered office or at such other place as the Board may
appoint and accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates (where a certificate has
beenissued in respect of the shares and the Articles do not provide for such a transfer to be valid
without production of the certificate) and/or such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to
show the right of the transferor to make the transfer;

(b) ifitis notin respect of one class of share only;

(c) if itis in favour of more than four transferees;

(d) if itis in favour of a minor, bankrupt or person of mentaliill health; or

(e) where the Board is obliged or entitled to refuse to do so as a result of any failure to comply with a notice under

section 793 of the Companies Act 2006.

4.7.4 Holders of Preferred C Shares shall be permitted to transfer such shares (or A Shares held by themif they also hold
Preferred C Shares) to certain of their associates and certain investment vehicles.

4.8 Pre-emption Rights

Exceptin the case of a Permitted Transfer, the right to transfer or otherwise dispose of a share or any interest or rightin or
arising from a share shall be subject to the provisions contained in the Articles and any such transfer or other disposal made
otherwise than in accordance with those provisions shall be void.

4.9 Lien and Forfeiture

491 The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being a fully paid share) for all monies (whether
presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time in respect of that share. The Company’s lien on a share shalll
extend to any amount payable in respect of it.

4.9.2If acall orinstallment of a call remains unpaid after it has become due and payable the Board may at any time serve a
notice on the holder requiring payment of so much of the call or installment as remains unpaid together with
any interest which may have accrued thereon and any costs, charges or expense incurred by the Company by reasons
of such non-payment. The notice shall specify a further day (not being less than 14 clear days’ from the date of the notice)
on or before which, and the place where the payment required by the notice is to be made and shall indicate that if the
notice is not complied with the shares in respect of which the call was made or installment is payable will be liable to be
forfeited.
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4.9.3 The Board may accept the surrender of any share liable to be forfeited and, in such case, references in the Articles to
forfeiture shall include surrender.

4.10
4101

4102

410.3

411
4111

41.2

413

414

4115

412

General Meetings

The Board may convene a general meeting whenever it thinks fit and shall do so on requisition in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

An AGM shall be convened by at least 21 clear days’' notice. All other general meetings shall be convened by at least 14
clear days’ notice.

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless two members are present in person or by proxy and
allowed to vote and that shall be a quorum for all purposes.

Directors

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution of the Company, the number of directors (disregarding alternates)
shall not be less than two and shall be subject to a maximum number of ten.

The Board may from time to time appoint one or more of its body to hold any employment or executive office with the
Company for such period (subject to the Companies Acts) and on such other terms as the Board or any

committee authorised by the Board may decide and may revoke or terminate any appointment so made. Any
revocation or termination of the appointment shall be without prejudice to any claim for damages that the

Director may have against the Company or that the Company may have against the Director for any breach of any
contract of service between him and the Company. A Director so appointed may be paid such remuneration
(whether by way of salary, commission, participation in profits or otherwise) in such manner as the Board

or any committee authorised by the Board may decide.

Subject to the Articles, the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint any person whois willing to act tobe a
Director, either tofilla vacancy on or as an addition to the existing Board, but so that the total number of Directors shall
not at any time exceed any maximum number fixed by or in accordance with the Articles. A resolution for

the appointment of two or more persons as Directors by a single resolution shall be void unless a resolution that it shall
be so proposed has first been agreed to by the meeting without any vote being given against it.

No person other than a director retiring shall be appointed or reappointed as a director at any general meeting unless:
(a) he is recommended by the Board; or

(b) not less than seven nor more than 42 clear days’ before the day appointed for the meeting, notice executed by
amember qualified to vote at the meeting (not being the person to be proposed) has been delivered
to the registered office of the Company (or received in electronic form at the electronic address at which the
Company has or is deemed to have agreed to receive it) of the intention to propose that person for
appointment or reappointment stating the particulars which would, if he were so appointed
or reappointed, be required to be included in the Company’s register of directors together with notice
executed by that person of his willingness to be appointed or reappointed.

Without prejudice to the power of the Company in general meeting under the Articles to appoint any personto be
adirector, the Board may appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either to fill a vacancy or as an addition t
o the existing Board, and any director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following AGM.

Borrowing

The Company is empowered to borrow money.
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412 Proxies

4131  Appointments of proxies may only be in electronic form and the proxy shall be executed by or on behalf of the
appointor.

413.2 Subjectas provided in the Articles, in the case of an appointment of proxy purporting to be executed on behalf of
acorporation by an officer of that corporation it shall be assumed, unless the contrary is shown, that such officer was
duly authorised to do so on behalf of that corporation without further evidence of that authorisation.

4133 Aproxy need not be amember of the Company.

414 Untraceable Shareholders

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best price reasonably obtainable any shares of a holder where a shareholder is
untraceable within the meaning of Article 35.

4.15Transmission of Shares on Death

If amember dies, the survivor or survivors where he was a joint holder, and his executors where he was a sole holder or the

only survivor of joint holders shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his shares; but nothing
contained in the Articles shall release the estate of a deceased member from any liability in respect of any share solely or jointly
held by him.

4.16Calls

4161  Subject to the terms of issue, the Board may from time to time make calls upon the members in respect of any money
unpaid on their shares (whether in respect of the nominal amount or by way of premium). Each member shall (subject
toreceiving at least 14 clear days’' notice specifying when and where payment is to be made) pay to the Company as
required by the notice the amount called on his shares. A call may be made payable by instalments. A call may, at any
time before receipt by the Company of any sum due under the call, be revoked in whole or in part and payment of a call
may be postponed in whole orin part, as the Board may determine.

416.2 Apersonuponwhom acallis made shall remain liable for all calls made upon him notwithstanding the subsequent
transfer of the shares in respect of which the call was made.

417 Certificates

Every person whose name is entered in the register of members as a holder of shares in the Company is entitled, within the time
specified by the Statutes and without payment, to one certificate for all the shares of each class registered in his name.

418 Authority to Allot

4181 Thedirectors are generally authorised to allot shares in accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 for a
prescribed period and up to an aggregate nominal amount equal to the Section 551 Amount.

418.2 Inaccordance with, and within the terms of, the above authority, the Directors may allot equity securities during a
prescribed period wholly for cash:

(a) in connection with arights issue, subject to section 561 of the Companies Act 2006;

(b) up to an aggregate nominal amount equal to the Section 561 Amount, otherwise than in connection with a
rightsissue, asif section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply.
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5

Material Contracts

The following contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, are all of the contracts which have
been entered into by the Company since its incorporation and which are, or may be, material, or have been entered into by the
Company and contain provisions under which the Company has obligations or entitlements which are material to it at the date
of this document.

()

(b)

6
(a)

(b)

Aninvestment agreement dated 6 April 2017 between (1) the Company (2) James Watt, Martin Dickie, Griffin Group

LLC, Digby Holdings LLC, Neil Simpson (3) TSG AlV and (4) TSG LL pursuant to which TSG AIV and TSG LL (the “C
Share Investors”) made investments totalling £102,449,99012 in the Company and in which the Company was required
to give undertaking in relation to the provision of information to the Investors and which contained certain obligations and
restrictions on the Company in relation to its conduct.

Pursuant to this agreement and the Articles, the C Share Investors have the right to appoint two investor directors (the
first such appointments being Blythe Jack and Jamie O’Hara) and the attendance of at least one investor director is
required to transact business at a meeting of the Board. The Company has also given positive covenants, inter alia,

to keeping full accounting records, protect its intellectual property and comply with all laws and licences as well as
negative covenants to desist, without the prior consent of the C Share Investors, from making changes to the Company’s
business or board composition, incurring significant indebtedness or taking steps to list or dissolve the Company.

A warranty and indemnity deed dated 6 April 2017 between (1) the Company (2) James Watt, Martin Dickie, Griffin Group
LLC, Digby Holdings LLC, Neil Simpson and (3) the C Share Investors pursuant to which the Company gave warranties
and indemnities to the C Share Investors in respect of its business, trading history and tax position.

Other than as set out above, there are no contracts, other than those entered into in the ordinary course of business, that
have been entered into by the Company within the two years immediately preceding publication of the Prospectus which
are or may be material to the Company and there are no other contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary
course of business) which contains any provision under which the Company has any obligation or entitlement which is
material to the Company as at the date of this document.

General

Aside from those interests noted in the table on page 15 (Directors’ Interests), the Company is not aware of any persons
who, directly or indirectly, exercises or could exercise control over the Company.

Other than the matters disclosed at paragraph 6 on page 19 (Related Party Transactions), there are no conflicts of

interest between any Director or any member of the Company's administrative, management or supervisory bodies and
his duties to the Company and the private interests and/or duties he may also have.

(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

None of the Company's major holders of Shares have voting rights different from other holders of Shares.

Other than as set out in the table at paragraph 6 on page 19, the Company has not entered into any related party
transactions since the date of its incorporation and up to the date of this document.

Ernst & Young LLP are the auditors of the Company and are registered in accordance with the Statutory Audit Directive
(2006/43/EC) and are amember of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.

Reporting to Shareholders - the Company's annual report and accounts are made up to 31 December in each year and
are normally published in March. The Company's next accounting period willend on 31 December 2020.

All material contracts of the Company will be in English and the Company will communicate with Investors and/or
Shareholdersin English.

Complaints about the Company should be referred to the chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company at
Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB418BX.
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(i

(k)

(m)

The Company operates in the brewing industry in the UK which is highly regulated at both national and local levels and
brewing operations such as BrewDog'’s business requires a number of licences, permits and approvals. In the UK, the
production of certain alcoholic products (notably spirits) requires a number of licences, approvals and confirmations
from HMRC. Similarly, the warehousing of alcoholic products is subject to approval from HMRC. The

Licensing Act 2003 imposes strict requirements on vaiours activitis including the retail sale of alcohol. A premises
licence is required for any premises selling alcohol (which includes all of BrewDog's UK bars), which must be held by a
named individual. Enforcement of these laws is undertaken by the applicable local authorities.

Similarly, the Group's worldwide operations are subject to extensive regulatory requirements regarding, among other
things, production, distribution, importation, marketing, promotion, labelling, advertising and consumer protection. For
example, the common system of licensed on-trade outlets applies in many countries throughout Europe. Inthe

United States, federal and state laws regulate most aspects of the brewing, sale, marketing, labelling and wholesaling

of Group products. At the federal level, the Alcohol & Tobacco Tax & Trade Bureau of the US. Treasury

Department oversees the industry, and each state in which the Group sells or produces products, and

some local authorities in jurisdictions in which it sells products also have regulations that affect the business conducted by
the Group and other brewers and wholesalers. Itis the Group’s policy to abide by the laws and regulations that apply to it
or toits business and the Group has an in-house function to ensure compliance with all local laws.

Labelling of the Group's products is also regulated in certain markets, varying from health warning labels to importer
identification, alcohol strength and other consumer information. Specific warning statements related to the risks of
drinking alcohol products, including beer, have also become prevalent in recent years. The Group believes that the
regulatory environment in most countries in which it operates is becoming increasingly strict with respect to health issues
and expects this trend to continue in the future.

As at the date of this document, there are certain governmental policies in place to combat the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic which have affected (and continue to affect) the Company’s operations. These measures have included

the enforced closure of the Group’s bars and restaurants, restrictions on the movement of both the Group’s employees
and customers and new measures implemented to ensure social distancing between such employees and customers (as
the bars and restaurants have begun to re-open for business). As at the date of publication, it is unknown as to whether
these measures will subsist, be tightened or be relaxed or on what timescale this may occur.

The Company and the Directors consent to the use of the Prospectus by financial intermediaries and accept
responsibility for the content of the Prospectus also with respect to subsequent resale or final placement of securities by
financial intermediaries within the period of the Offer. This consent is valid from the date of the Prospectus until the close
of the Offer, for the purpose of introducing subscribers for New B Shares. The Offer will close on the earlier of

Full Subscription and 28 January 2021 (unless previously extended by the Directors). Financial intermediaries may use
the Prospectus only in the Approved Jurisdictions.

In the event of an offer being made by a financial intermediary, the financial intermediary must provide information to
investors on the terms and conditions of the Offer at the time that the Offer is made. Any financial intermediaries
using the Prospectus must state on its website that it is using the Prospectus in accordance with the consent set out
in paragraph (j) above.

All third party information in this document has been identified as such by reference to its source and has been accurately
reproduced and, so far as the Company is aware, and is able to ascertain from information published by the relevant party,
no facts have been omitted which would render such information inaccurate or misleading.
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7 Stamp Duty, Stamp Duty Reserve Tax and Close Company Status

The Company has been advised that no stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax ("SDRT") will be payable on the issue of the
Shares issued under the Offer.

The transfer on sale of any Shares will be liable to ad valorem stamp duty normally at the rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of
the consideration (rounded up to the nearest £5). An unconditional agreement to transfer Shares also gives rise to an obligation
toaccount for SDRT, which is payable within seven days of the start of the month following that in which the agreement was
entered into. The payment of stamp duty givesrise to aright to repayment of any SDRT paid. There will be no stamp duty or
SDRT on the transfer of the Shares into CREST unless such a transfer is made for consideration in money or money's worth,

in which case a liability to SDRT will arise usually at a rate of 0.5%. A transfer of Shares effected on a paperless basis through
CREST will generally be subject to SDRT at a rate of 0.5% of the value of the consideration. Following the issue of the Shares
pursuant to the Offer, the Company is likely to be a close company for tax purposes.

8 Documents for Inspection

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the offices of RW Blears LLP at 15 Old Square, Lincoln’s Inn,
London WC2A 3UE and at the registered office of the Company at Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB41
8BX during normal business hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted) from the date of this document until the closing
date of the Offer:

(@ the Memorandum of Association and Articles of the Company;
(b) theProspectus;and

(c) the Company's audited annual accounts for the years ended 31 December 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019.

9 September 2020

23 RWB: 2020 AGM rescheduled date to be confirmed (delayed due to COVID-19).
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ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 2019
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES 2019£000 2018 £000
Gross Revenue 4 171,619
Duty (31,966)
Net revenue 139,653
Cost of sales (81912)
Gross Profit 57,741
Operating expenses (58,021)
Gain on acquisition of Berlin brewery and taproom 15 -
Gain/(Loss) ondisposal of property, plant and equipment (303)
Other operatingincome 5 974
Operating Profit 6 391
Finance income 9 354
Finance costs 10 (1,321)
Profit /(Loss) before taxation (576)
Income tax expense 11 (917)
Profit /(Loss) for the year (1,493)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1,373)
Non-controlling interests (120)
(1,493)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (34)
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (34)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (1,527)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1,407)
Non-controlling interests (120)
(1,527)
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2019 NOTES 2019 £000 2018 £000
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 12 124477
Right-of-use asset 22 -
Intangible assets 13 17,016
Other non-current financial assets 14 -
141,493
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 37,364
Inventory 17 15,033
Corporation tax receivable 331
Cash and cash equivalents 18 38,978
91,706
Total assets 233,199
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 35,967
Lease liabilities 22 -
Financial liabilities 20 10,776
46,743
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 1 2,399
Lease liabilities 22 -
Financial liabilities 20 16,555
Government grants 26 2,508
21462
Total liabilities 68,205
Net Assets 164,994
Equity
Called up share capital 24 73
Share premium account 24 147,535
Treasury shares 25 (1,185)
Foreign currency translation reserve 25 514
Retained earnings 18,149
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 165,086
Non-controlling interests (92)
Total Equity 164,994
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 28th August 2020 J.BWatt N.A.Simpson
Director Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31December 2019
NOTES 2019 £000 2018 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 68,575 71537
Right-of-use assets 22 7,001 -
Intangible assets 13 2,101 1,294
Other non-current financial assets 14 31,096 28,098
108,773 100,929
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 98,689 76,860
Inventory 17 10,853 8,900
Corporation tax receivable 499 434
Cash and cash equivalents 18 29479 34,633
139,520 120,827
Total assets 248,293 221,756
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 22,741 18,948
Lease liabilities 22 705 -
Financial liabilities 20 10,540 10,690
33,986 29,638
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 1 2400 2,241
Lease liabilities 22 12122 -
Financial liabilities 20 21,828 16,555
Government grants 26 2157 2,055
38,507 20,851
Total liabilities 72493 50,489
Net assets 175,800 171,267
Equity
Called up share capital 24 73 73
Share premium account 24 158,226 147535
Treasury shares 25 (1185) (1185)
Retained earnings 18,686 24,844
Total Equity 175,800 171,267

The group has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the
company income statement. The loss after tax recorded by the company for the year was £6,158,000 (2018:
profit of £3193,000).

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 28 August 2020 J.BWatt N.A.Simpson
Director Director
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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At1January 2018 72 128,880 (1,185) 548 18,515 146,830 (7) 146,823
Loss for the year - - - - (1,373) (1,373) (120) (1,493)
Other comprehensive loss - - - (34) - (34) - (34)
Issue of share capital 1 19,143 - - - 19,144 - 19,144
:iSS‘:J?O‘S’T dsigf‘;e capital - - - - 1007 1007 35 1042
Share options granted - 501 - - - 501 - 501
Transaction costs - (989) - - - (989) - (989
At1January 2019 73 147535 (1,185) 514 18149 165,086 (92) 164,994
Profit for the year - - - - 1162 1162 (112) 1,050
Other comprehensive loss - - - (344) - (344) - (344)
Issue of share capital - 10,667 - - - 10,667 - 10,667
:iz‘fb‘s’r dSiZf;e capital - ; ; _ 644 644 o5 669
Share options granted - 642 - - - 642 - 642
Share options exercised - 87 - - - 87 - 87
Transaction costs - (705) - - - (705) - (705)
At 31 December 2019 73 158,226 (1,185) 170 19,955 177,239 (179) 177,060
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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At1January 2018 72 128,880 (1185) 21,651 149,418
Profit for the year - - - 3,193 3,193
Issue of share capital 1 19,143 - - 19,144
Share options granted - 501 - - 501
Transaction costs - (989) - - (989)
At1January 2019 73 147535 (1185) 24,844 171,267
Loss for the year - - - (6,158) (6,158)
Issue of share capital - 10,667 - - 10,667
Share options granted - 642 - - 642
Share options exercised - 87 - - 87
Transaction costs - (705) - - (705)
At 31 December 2019 73 158,226 (1185) 18,686 175,800
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31December 2019

NOTES

Cashflows from operating activities

2019 £000 2018 £000

Profit/(Loss) before tax (576)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 303
Release of contingent consideration -
Gain on Acquisition of Berlin brewery & taproom -
Depreciation 7,855
Amortisation of ROU assets -
Impairment -
Grant amortisation (138)
Foreign exchange (1,651)
Financialincome (216)
Financial charges 1,321
Share based payment expense 501
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease / (increase) ininventory (7,466)
Increase in trade and other receivables (11,058)
Increase in trade and other payables 6,043
Interest received 217
Interest paid (842)
Taxation paid (400)
Taxation refunded 78
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (6,029)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (44137)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment -
Purchase of intangible assets -
Investment in an unlisted entity -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (13,071)
Net cash flow used ininvesting activities (57,208)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 17,683
Transaction costs of issue of shares (989)
Proceeds from government grants 453
Repayment of bonds (1)
Repayment of borrowings (259)
Principle elements of lease payments -
Hire purchase Payments / (Receipts) (3,160)
Net cash flow from financing activities 13,717
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (49,520)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 88,498
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 38,978
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTE 2019 £000 2018 £000
Cashflows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax 3974
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Gain ondisposal of property, plant and equipment -
Release of contingent consideration -
Depreciation 3,065
Amortisation of ROU assets -
Impairment 52
Grant amortisation (138)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (938)
Finance income (804)
Finance Charges 1,308
Share based payment expense 501
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in inventory (3,267)
Increase in trade and other receivables (9,113)
Increase in trade and other payables 3,567
Interest received 217
Interest paid (975)
Taxation paid (400)
Taxation refunded 78
Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,873)
Investing activities
Investment in Subsidiary -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (26,09)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment -
Purchase of intangible assets -
Loan provided to subsidiaries (22,574)
Investment in an unlisted associate -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (12,856)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (61,539)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 16,643
Transaction costs of issue of shares (989)
Proceeds from government grants -
Repayment of bond (1)
Repayment of borrowings (259)
Principal elements of lease payments -
Hire Purchase Receipts / (Payments) (3,143)
Net cash flows from financing activities 12,241
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (52171)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 86,804
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 34,633
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31December 2019
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The financial statements of BrewDog PLC and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the group) for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 August 2020. The company is
incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006.

2.BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated and parent company financial statements are prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for other non-current financial assets that have

been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(£000), except as otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the company and entities controlled by the company. Control is achieved
where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the company, using consistent accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows
relating to transactions between members of the group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable, directly and indirectly, to the parent company. This is
presented within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the parent. Losses within a subsidiary
are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit
balance.

Going concern

The directors continue to closely monitor the Coronavirus outbreak, with
particular regard to the wellbeing of their people and their ability to make,
distribute and sell great beers.

Widespread protective measures have been put in place throughout

the Group globally to respond to the pandemic. All bars were closed

and brewing facilities adjusted operating procedures to ensure social
distancing was maintained. Staff who are not currently required given the
reduced operations have been furloughed. For our office staff many were
furloughed or are working from home.

These actions have significantly impacted the cash flows generated;
however, the impact has been mitigated by the expansion of online sales
and increased distribution through major retailers due to changesin
consumers demands, and the utilisation of Government schemes such
as the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme and the deferral of HMRC
payments. Such preparation and planning has allowed the Directors to
maximise cash resources available to the Group and, as far as possible,
mitigate the impact of the virus on the business.

As lockdown restrictions ease and we start to be allowed to reopen bars
across our network we have putin place a number of protective measures
to ensure we are complying with various governments guidelines on social
distancing, track and trace, face coverings and also further enhanced

our hygiene practices. Our brewing facilities continue to operate with our
adjusted procedures and operation of shift patterns allows us to limit the
number of staff onsite.

The directors do not yet know what further measures may need to be put
in place to contain this virus, but are continuing to review and make plans
to minimise the likelihood of transmission within BrewDog workplaces and
retail outlets.

Management have performed stress testing of cashflow forecasts to
take account of the potentialimpacts of Covid-19, including adjustments
to capacity and expansion plans, and are satisfied in the most severe,

yet plausible, ‘Downside’ scenario, including the potential for asecond
pandemic wave that would impact the group for alonger period including
into 2021, that the group has access to sufficient liquidity through the going
concern period. As such, the directors have areasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report
and accounts.

3.ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards and interpretations

The company has considered all new and amended IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily
effective for the year ending 31 December 2019. Where the changes affect
the company, the relevant application and disclosure has been made
during the year to 31 December 2019. The new and amended IFRSs during
the year are as detailed below:

» Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
 IFRS 16: Leases
« IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first

time in 2019, but do not have animpact on the consolidated financial
statements of the group. The group has not early adopted any standards,
interpretations or amendments that have beenissued, but are not yet
effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

The group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January
2019 but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period,

as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1January 2019.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under the
principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 2.23%.

Practical expedients applied

Inapplying IFRS 16 for the first time, the group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the standard:

« applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics

« accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than
12 months as at 1January 2019 as short-term leases

« excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at the date of initial application, and

« using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

The group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a, lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the group relied onits assessment
made applying IAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

The lease liabilities of the Group as at 1January 2019 can be reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as of 31 December 2018 as follows:

£000
Operating lease commitments 82,031
as at 31 December 2018
Less: Impact of discounting (21151)
Add: Extension and termination 6,365
options reasonably certain to be
exercised
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 67,245

New standards and interpretations - not yet adopted

The following standards and amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the company’s
accounting period beginning on or after 1January 2020 or later periods,
but the company has not early adopted them:

» References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (1 January
2020)

« IFRS 3 Business Combinations. References to Conceptual Frameworkin
IFRS Standards and Definition of a Business

« I[FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. Interest rate benchmark
reform (1January 2020)

« IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

« |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. Definition of material (1
January 2020), References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
and classification of liabilities as current or non-current (1 January 2022)

« I1AS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors.
Definition of material and References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards (1 January 2020)

« Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Interest rate benchmark reform (1 January 2020).

Itis not anticipated that the application of the above standards and
amendments will have any materialimpact on the company’s financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank
and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents are as defined above and net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets, other than land, are stated at cost or valuation less
depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off
the cost or valuation less estimated residual value of each asset over its
expected useful life, as follows:
Land not depreciated

Buildings 2% on cost

Long-term leasehold property over lease term

Plant and machinery 10 - 25% on reducing balance
and 33-50% on cost

Computer equipment 33% on cost

Fixtures and fittings 20-50% on cost
Motor vehicles 25% on reducing balance
Assets under construction not depreciated

Certain brewing equipment, included within plant and machinery, is
depreciated at 10% on reducing balance method and has been allocated
aresidual value of between 10% and 55% of cost, dependant on the
equipment’s use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss whenitisincurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or
indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changesin accounting estimates. The amortisation expense onintangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are
tested forimpairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating
unitlevel. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Non-current financial assets

Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less any provision for
impairment. The company assesses at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that an asset isimpaired.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition

method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value,
and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
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share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses.

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets

and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designationin
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS
9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS
9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9

is measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwillis initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If
the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gainis
recognised in profit or loss.

Each of the group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU)

and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values
of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises revenue recognised by the group in respect of goods
and services supplied during the year, exclusive of value added tax and
trade discounts but inclusive of excise duty. Revenue is recognised in the
financial statements when the risks and rewards of owning the goods have
passed to the customer and when cash has been received or is receivable.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises brewery, warehouse maintenance costs,
ingredients, packaging and direct staff costs.

Taxation
Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that
are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements, with the following exception:

« Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
itis probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an
undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related asset is realised, or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at period end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. The principal
foreign currencies used by the group are US dollars ($), Euro (€) and
Australian dollars (AUS $).

Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into
sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses are translated at weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Research and development

Research and development expenditure is written off in the year in which it
isincurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, whichit is intended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

Leases and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are
capitalised in the statement of financial position. Those held under hire
purchase contracts are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Those
held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
or the lease term, whichever is the shorter. The interest element of these
obligations is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
relevant period. The capital element of the future payments is treated as a
liability.

Asindicated in note 2 above, the group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1January 2019 but has not restated comparatives

for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
fromthe new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance
sheet on1January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in

note 2. On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on
1January 2019 was 2.23%.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes party to the
contracts that give rise to them and are classified as financial assets

g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020

50



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

at fair value through profit or loss or loans and receivables, as appropriate.
The company determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates

this designation at each financial year-end. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction
price plus, in the case of financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of
agroup of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either:

- the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but had transferred control of the
asset, or

- the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset nor transferred of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLS)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due

in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows willinclude cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, aloss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The group has established a
provision matrix that is based onits historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of
loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Share-based payments

The group operates three equity-settled, share based compensation
plans. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense over the vesting
period. The total amount expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options at the date on which they
were granted.

Fair value is calculated with reference to the last substantial share
purchase. Non-market performance vesting and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. At each balance sheet date, the company revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest.

The company recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with corresponding adjustment to equity.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised and new shares are issued.

Treasury shares

BrewDog PLC shares held by the group are deducted from equity as
“treasury shares” and are recognised at cost. Consideration received for
the sale of such shares is also recognised in equity, with any difference
between the proceeds from sale and the original cost being taken to
reserves. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costsincurredin bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted for, as follows:

Raw materials - Purchase cost on afirst-in, first-out basis.

Finished goods and work in progress - Cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
tosell.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 60-90 day terms, are
recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced value
and recoverable amount. Where the time value of money is material,
receivables are carried at amortised cost.
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Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans

Loans are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing.
Loans are subsequently measured at their amortised cost applying the
effective interest rate method.

Finance charges on the loans are recognised as finance costs in the
income statement.

Pensions

The pension planin place is a defined contribution plan. Pension
contributions are charged to the income statement as an expense in the
period to which the contributions relate. Once the contributions have
been paid, there are no further payment obligations.

4. REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced amount of goods and services supplied,

inclusive of excise duty. Revenue is recognised when the risks and
rewards of owning the goods has passed to the customers. Allitems are
stated net of value added tax and trade discounts.

The analysis by geographical area of the group’s revenue is set out as
below:

7. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The group paid the following amounts toits auditors in respect of the audit
of the financial statements and for other services provided to the group:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Audit of the financial statements 230 161
Tax advisory services 2 24
Other advisory services 75 73
307 258

8.STAFF COSTS AND DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS

a. Staff Costs 2019 2018
£000 £000

Wages and salaries 48,104 35,321
Pension costs 1,659 1,206
Social security costs 4181 3,289
Share based payment expense 350 31
54,294 39,847

The previous excludes directors’ remuneration. The company makes
contributions to a defined contribution scheme for all eligible employees
up to amaximum of 10% of salary. Contributions are charged to the

2019 2018 income statement as incurred.
Geographical segment £000 £000 The average monthly number of employees during the year was made
UK 154,081 132,357 up asfollows:
2019 2018
Europe 30,062 21,003
No. No.
USA and Canada 21,004 13,314
Directors 8 9
Rest of the world 8,849 4,945
214,896 71619 Administration 180 147
Production 232 199
5.0THER OPERATING INCOME ) T
2019 2018 Selling and distribution 193 98
£000 £000 Bar staff 1154 794
Release of contingent consideration 1,000 - 1,767 1,247
R&D tax credit 384 633
Other income 579 341 b. Director’s remuneration 2019 2018
1956 974 £000 £000
Director’s remuneration 1639 1119
6. OPERATING PROFIT Pension contributions 123 89
This is stated after charging/(creditin
ging/( 9 2019 2018 Share based payment expense 292 470
£000  £000 2,054 1678
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 12) 1,014 7,855 In respect of the highest paid director:
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (note 22) 6,902 - 2019 2018
Operating lease rentals - 5,024 £000 £000
Auditors remuneration (note 7) 307 258
Aggregate remuneration 442 237
Research and development 3,200 3,187 . o
Pension contributions 43 24
Loss/(profit) on foreign exchange 1,585 (1,497) 485 61
Impairment - property, plant and equipment (note 12) 337
Impairment - goodwill (note 13) 277 -
Share based payment expense (note 24) 642 501
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Payments include an extended notice payment agreed on takingona b) Reconciliation of the total 2019 2018
new role and are non-recurring income tax charge
2019 2018 £000 €000
£000 £000 Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations 115 (576)
Number of directors who received share 1 3
options during the year. Tax calculated at UK standard rate of corporation tax 212 (109)
of 19%
9. FINANCE INCOME soto pois (2018-19%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 471 218
£000 £000 Other fixed asset related movements 55 326
Bank interest received 904 216 Other timing differences @7) 920
Capital grant release (note 26) 149 138 Foreign tax credits 5 6
Total finance income 1053 354 Tax over provided in previous years (267) (37)
Change in tax laws and rate 2 (176)
10.FINANCE COST 2019 2018 Deferred tax not recognised (2161) 140
£000 £000 R&D expenditure 73 (47)
Bank loans and overdrafts 47 184 Non-taxable income (28) (174)
Lease interest from adoption of 2,031 - Unrecognised tax losses in other jurisdictions 873 690
IFRS 16 (note 22) Tax losses utilised - (10)
Hire purchase interest 300 212 Chargeable Gains 1301 _
Bond interest 923 925 Income tax charge in the group statement of compre- 65 917
Total finance costs 3,671 1,321 hensive income
11.INCOME TAX The income tax expense above is computed at profit before taxation
Group multiplied by the effective rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018:
19%).
a) Income tax on profit .
for the year 2019 2018 c) Deferred income tax
£000 £000 The deferred income tax included in the statement of financial position is
UK corporation tax on the profit for the year - 571 as follows:
Amounts over provided in previous years (103) (37) G;%L:g G;%L;g Comgg?g Comgg?g
Foreign taxes 9 6 £000  £000  £000  £000
Total currentincome tax (136) 540 Deferred tax liability
Deferred income tax: Temporary differences 3712 2471 3450 2241
Origination and reversal of temporary 337 510 relating to property, plant
differences and equipment
Deferred tax adjustments in previous (136) (133) Deferred tax asset
periods Tax losses carried forward (1,059) (72) (1,059) -
Total deferredincome tax charge 201 sr7 Net deferred tax iability 2653 2399 2400 2241
Income tax charge in the group statement 65 917 Deferred tax in the
of comprehensive income income statement
Temporary differences 201 377 159 429
relating to property, plant
and equipment
201 377 159 429
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group Land and Longterm  Fixturesand Motor Plantand Computer Assets under Total
buildings leasehold fittings vehicle machinery equipment construction
property

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2019 54,527 16,699 13,729 290 51,392 2137 4,669 143,443
Additions 1462 9432 8,982 135 5725 682 470 26,888
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 7376 - 7954 - - 15,330
Disposals (7,591) (891) (731) (57) (688) (5) - (9,963)
Transfers 1,230 30 6,905 - (3572) 76 (4,669) -
Exchange differences (498) 110 (50) 2) (475) (1) - (926)
At 31December 2019 49130 25,380 36,211 366 60,336 2,879 470 174,772
Depreciation:
At1January 2019 1,454 2,533 6,101 147 7919 812 - 18,966
Charge for the year 1,099 946 5467 47 2,676 779 - 11,014
Ondisposals (78) (129) (324) - (68) )] - (602)
Impairment - 337 - - - - - 337
Transfers - (2 2,237 - (2,235) - - -
Exchange differences (1) (14) (66) (1) (51) (2) - (135)
At 31December 2019 2474 3,671 13,415 193 8,241 1586 - 29,580
Net book value:
At 31December 2019 46,656 21,709 22,796 173 52,095 1,293 470 145192
At 31December 2018 53,073 14,166 7,628 143 43473 1,325 4,669 124,477

Included previous are assets held under finance leases or hire purchase
contacts as follows:

Plantand
machinery

£000
Net book value:
At 31December 2019 22,714
At 31December 2018 15,116
Depreciation charge for the year:
31December 2019 2,764
31December 2018 2146
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Company Land and Longterm Fixtures and Motor Plantand Computer Assetsunder Total
buildings leasehold fittings vehicle machinery equipment construction
property

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2019 37,929 11 632 202 35434 1,779 4,669 80,656
Additions 1476 123 1,845 78 4723 600 - 8,845
Disposals (7,591) - (285) - - - - (7,876)
Transfers 1,337 - 6,828 - (3,572) 76 (4,669) -
At 31December 2019 33,151 134 9,020 280 36,585 2455 - 81,625
Depreciation:
At1January 2019 1,061 2 418 120 6,793 726 - 9120
Charge for the year 433 5 1492 35 1,416 627 - 4,008
Disposals (78) - - - - - - (78)
Transfers - - 2,234 - (2,234) - - -
At 31December 2019 1416 7 4144 155 5975 1,353 - 13,050
Net book value:
At 31December 2019 31,735 127 4,876 125 30610 1102 - 68,575
At 31December 2018 36,368 9 214 82 28,641 1,053 4,669 71537

Included previous are assets held under hire purchase contacts as follows:

Plantand

machinery
£000
Net book value:
At 31 December 2019 22,628
At 31 December 2018 15,116
Depreciation charge for the year:
31December 2019 2,754
31December 2018 2,146
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13.INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Group Other  Goodwill o ;)Bn?er]rgr Distrig;gi;r; Total
£000  £000 £000 £000

Cost:

At1January 2019 154 15,568 - 1294 17,016

Additions - - 768 42 810

Acquisition of - 3,706 - - 3706

subsidiaries

Transfer (39) - 39 - -

At 31December 2019 15 19274 807 1336 21532

Amortisation

At1January 2019 - - - - -

Amortisation 115 38 - - 1563

Impairment - 277 - - 277

At 31December 2019 115 315 - - 430

Net book value:

At 31December 2019 - 18,959 807 1,336 21,102

At 31December 2018 154 15,568 - 1294 17016

During the year to 31 December 2019, Goodwill relating to international retail
cash generating units was impaired by £277,000. This was due to tradingin
these bars not meeting the company’s expectations.

Company Brand Distribution Total
development Rights

£000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2019 - 1,294 1,294
Additions 768 - 768
Transfer from another 39 - 39
group at cost
At 31December 2019 807 1,294 2,101

14. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group Unlisted
investments
Cost £000
At1January 2019 -
Addition of Crown & Hops 157
At 31 December 2019 157
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 157
At 31 December 2018 -
Company Unlisted Shares Total
investments ingroup
undertakings
Cost £000 £000 £000
At1January 2019 - 28,098 28,098
Additions - 500 500
Acquisition of associate 157 - 157
Acquisition of - 3,820 3,820
subsidiaries
At 31 December 2019 157 32418 32575
Depreciation £000 £000 £000
At1January 2019 - - -
Impairment - 1479 1479
At 31 December 2019 - 1,479 1,479
Net book value:
At 31December 2019 157 30,939 31,096
At 31December 2018 - 28,098 28,098

During the year to 31 December 2019, investments in international retail
cash generating units were impaired by £229,000. This was due to
trading in these bars not meeting our expectations.

The trading and net assets of Lone Wolf Spirits Limited was transferred
to the Company during the year, and the investment in Lone Wolf was
fully impaired, resulting in a charge to the Company income statement of

£1,250,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the following subsidiaries are
entitled to an exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies; Lone Wolf Spirits Limited,
Hawkes Cider Limited and BrewDog International Limited.
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Details of the investments in which the company holds 20% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:

Name of HoIdings Country of Proportion of Nature of
registration or voting rights and i
company incorporation shares held business
Subsidiary
undertakings:
BrewDog Retail Ordinary  Scotland 100% Bar
Limited (1) operator
Lone Wolf Spirits ~ Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant
Limited (1)
BrewDog Admin Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant
Limited (1)
Overworks Ordinary  Scotland 100% Dormant
Limited (1)
BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Holding
International company
Limited (1)
Draft House Ordinary England 100% Bar
Holding Limited operator
2
Hawkes Cider Ordinary England 100% Cider
Limited (3) producer
BrewDog GmbH Ordinary Germany 100% Bar
(4) operator &
brewery
BrewDog Group Ordinary Australia 100% Holding
Australia Pty company
Ltd (5)
BrewDog do Ordinary Brazil 100% Bar
Brasil Comercio operator
de Alimentos e
Bebidas Ltda (6)
BrewDog Ordinary Belgium 100% Bar
Belgium SPRL (7) operator
BrewDog Group Ordinary  Hong Kong 100% Holding
HK Ltd (10) company
BD Casanova Ordinary Spain 100% Bar
SL (1) operator
BrewDog Bar Ordinary  South Korea 70% Bar
Korea (13) operator
BrewDog USA Ordinary USA 97% Holding
Inc (14) company
BrewDog Media Ordinary USA 100% Holding
Inc (14) company
BrewDog Ordinary Sweden 100% Holding
Sweden AB (20) company

Indirectly held

Draft House TB Limited (2) Ordinary England
Draft House NC Limited (2) Ordinary England
BrewDog Verwaltungs UG (4) Ordinary  Germany
BrewDog Brewing Australia Pty Ltd (5) Ordinary Australia
BrewDog Canada Ltd (8) Ordinary Canada
BrewDog Bars France SAS (9) Ordinary France
Bryggmester Bob AS (12) Ordinary Norway
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Brewing Company Franklinton LLC Ordinary USA
(14)

BrewDog Dogtap LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Doghouse LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Short North LLC (14) Ordinary Ordinary USA
BrewDog Licensing LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Pittsburgh LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Indianapolis LLC (14) USA Ordinary USA
BrewDog NYC LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Columbus LLC (15) Ordinary USA
DrinkTV LLC (16) Ordinary USA
Drink TV Inc (16) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Ireland Ltd (17) Ordinary Ireland
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japan (18) Ordinary Japan
BrewDog ltaly S.R.L (19) Ordinary Italy
BruDog Malmo AB (20) Ordinary Sweden
BruDog Bar GBG AB (20) Ordinary Sweden
BruDog Norrkoping AB (20) Ordinary Sweden
BruDog Sodermalm AB (20) Ordinary Sweden
BruDog Bar St Eriksgatan AB (20) Ordinary Sweden

(1) Registered office address; Baimacassie Commercial Park,
Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB418BX

(2) Registered office address; 3rd and 4th Floor,
Fergusson House, 124-128 City Road, London, EC1V 2NJ

(3) Registered office address; 92 and 96 Druid Street,
London, SE12HQ

(4) Registered office address; IM Marienpark 23,
12107, Berlin, Germany

(5) Registered office address; Level 29/12 Creek Street,
Brisbane City, QLD 4000

(6) Registered office address; 41 Rua Corope’s — Pinheiros,
Sao Paulo-SP, 05426-010, Brazil

(7) Registered office address; Putterie 20,1000 Brussels, Belgium

(8) Registered office address; 2800 Park Place,
666 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 227
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(9) Registered office address; 1rue Favart, 75002 Paris

(10) Registered office address; Suites 3701-3710,
37/F Jardine House, 1 Connought Place, Central, Hong Kong

(11) Registered office address; Calle Casanova 69,
08011, Barcelona, Spain

(12) Registered office address; Markveien 57,0505 Oslo

(13) Registered office address; (04780) 12,
Seongsuil-ro 4-gil, Seongdong-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea

(14) Registered office address; 96 Gender Rd,
Canal Winchester, OH 43110

(15) Registered office address; PO Box 361715,
Columbus, OH 43236

(16) Registered office address; 1209 Orange St,
Wilmington, DE 19801

(17) Registered office address; 2 Grand Canal Square,
Dublin, Ireland, DO2 A342

(18) Registered office address; Saitoh Building 1F, 5-3-2,
Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo

(19) Registered office address; Corso Vercelli 40, 20145, Milan
(20) Registered office address; Baltzarsgatan 25 21136 MALMO

15.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisitionsin 2019
Acquisition from Stone Brewing GmbH

On 30 April 2019, the Group acquired certain assets and employees from
Stone Brewing GmbH.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of
acquisition were

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition £000
Tangible fixed assets 15,029
Financial assets 514
15,543

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (1,237)
(1,237)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 14,306
Gain on acquisition 14,249
Purchase consideration 58

The total consideration paid was £58,000 and was cash settled. The fair value
of net assets acquired was £14,306,000, resulting in a gain of £14,249,000.
This gain has been disclosed separately on the face of the income statement.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 30 April
2019 contributed by the assets acquired was £3,317,000, with a loss of
£1,375,000.

Had the assets been acquired and consolidated from 1January 2019, the
consolidated income statement would have included revenue of £4,976,000
and aloss of £2,063,000.

Stone operated the site in Berlin for three years, and despite best efforts,
struggled to make inroads to the German market. This coupled with the ability
of BrewDog to move quickly and complete the acquisition resulted in the
purchase gain.

Acquisition of Brudog Sweden AB

On1March 2019, BrewDog plc acquired 100% of the voting shares of Brudog
Sweden AB, an unlisted holding company based in Sweden. This company
owns the share capital of five subsidiaries, each responsible for operating a
barin Sweden.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Brudog Sweden AB as
at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition £000
Fixtures and Fittings 242
Other assets 119
Inventory 32
Cash & Cash Equivalents 146
539

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (353)
(353)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 186
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3,635
Purchase consideration 3,821

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £3,821,000, with
£1,821,000 settled in cash, and the remaining balance of £2,000,000 being
settled by the issue of 84,211 shares to the owners of Brudog Sweden AB.
The issue of shares to the owners of Brudog Sweden related wholly to the
acquisition of control.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 1March
2019 were contributed by Brudog Sweden was £2,425,000. Brudog Sweden
incurred a pretax profit of £23,000 over the same period.

Had Brudog Sweden been consolidated from 1January 2019, the
consolidated income would have included revenue of £2,910,000 and a profit
of £28,000.
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Acquisition of Kabushiki Kaisha BrewDog Japan

On 8 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Kabushiki
Kaisha BrewDog Japan, an unlisted company that operates a bar in Roppongi,
Japan.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Kabushiki Kaisha
BrewDog Japan as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition £000
Fixtures and fittings 59
Financial assets 203
Inventory 19
Cash & Cash Equivalents 75
356

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (83)
(63)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 293
Goodwill arising on acquisition 71
Purchase consideration 364

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £364,000 and was cash
settled.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 8 January
2019 contributed from the Company was £710,000. The Company incurred a
pre-tax loss of £68,000 over the same period.

Acquisitions in 2018
Acquisition of Draft House Holding Limited

On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Draft
House Holding Limited, an unlisted company based in London which
operated bars, primarily in the London area.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Draft House
Holding Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition £000
Property, plant and equipment 5,938
Financial assets 1,325
Inventory 203
7,466

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (6,253)
(6,253)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value 1,213
Goodwill arising on acquisition 10,453
Purchase consideration 11,666

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £10,666,000, all cash
settled. The remaining £1,000,000 was contingent upon Draft House meeting
defined sales and EBITDA targets for the 12 months to 31 October 2019. As
these targets were not met this amount has been recognised in the income
statementin 2019.

The revenue included in the 2018 consolidated income statement since
26 March 2018 contributed by Draft House was £9,782,000. Draft House
incurred a profit of £89,000 over the same period.

Had Draft House been consolidated from 1January 2018, the consolidated
income statement would have included revenue of £12,597,000 and a loss of
£83,000.

Acquisition of Hawkes Brewing Company Ltd (hame changed to Hawkes
Cider Limited post acquisition)

On 4 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Hawkes
Brewing Company Ltd, an unlisted company based in London whichis a
brewer of craft cider.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Hawkes Brewing
Company Ltd as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition £000
Property, plant and equipment 343
Financial assets 300
Inventory 46
689

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (384)
(384)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 305
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3,715
Purchase consideration transferred 4,020

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £4,020,000. £2,020,000
of the consideration was settled in cash at the completion date, and the
remaining £2,000,000 was settled by the issue of 84,211 shares to the owners
of Hawkes in May 2018. The issue of shares to the owners of Hawkes related
wholly to the acquisition of control, and none relates to the provision of future
services by a shareholder who remained employed by BrewDog following the
acquisition.

The revenue included in the 2018 consolidated income statement since 4 April
2018 contributed by Hawkes was £1,658,000. Hawkes incurred a pre-tax loss
of £142,000 over the same period.

Had Hawkes been consolidated from 1January 2018, the consolidated income
statement would have included revenue of £1,914,000 and aloss of £186,000.

Acquisition of Bryggmester Bob AS

In February 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of
Bryggmester Bob AS, an unlisted company based in Norway which operates
abar.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Bryggmester Bob AS
at the date of acquisition were:
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Assets Fair value recognised on acqui- 16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
sition £000
) The carrying value of financial assets approximates fair value. The carrying
Property, plant and equipment 42 amount of these items represents the maximum credit exposure.
Financial assets 80
Inventor 35
v Group 2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 20
aum £000 £000
77 Trade receivables 34132 27,206
. Prepayments and other receivables 1,791 10,158
Liabilities
) o 45,923 37,364
Financial liabilities (196)
(196) Trade and other receivables due after one year amounted to £2,295,000
(2018:£2,119,000)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value (19) Company 2019 2018
Goodwill arising on acquisition 274 £000 £000
Purchase consideration transferred 255 Trade receivables 31,918 26140
Prepayments and other receivables 3,486 5462
The revenue included in the 2018 consolidated income statement since Receivable from group undertakings 63,285 45,258
February 2018 contributed by the Company was £763,000. The loss
incurred by the company over the period was £70,000. 98,689 76,860
Had Bryggmester Bob AS been consolidated from 1January 2018,
the consolidated income statement would have included revenue of Group Neithgr pa_st due Pas; due'but not
£1,017,000 and a loss of £93,000. notimpaired impaired
Total <30 30-60 60-90 60-90 Over90
Acquisition of BrewDog do Brasil Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda days days days days days
On 4 January 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of BrewDog £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
f:lo Bra;ll Cgmermo de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda, an unlisted company based 2019 34132 12480 12050 2664 1706 5232
in Brazil which operates a bar.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 2018 27,206 10121 1,01 1570 1631 2873
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BrewDog do Brasil Company Neither past due Past due but not
Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda as at the date of acquisition were: notimpaired impaired
Total <30 30-60 60-90 60-90 Over 90
Assets Fair value recognised on acqui- days days days days days
sition £000
£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 174
. . 2019 31,918 11,967 11,922 2,539 1,706 3,784
Financial assets 19
193 2018 26,40 9496 10,800 1,573 1,631 2,640
Liabilities
Financial liabilities (64)
(64)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 129
Goodwill arising on acquisition 4
Purchase consideration 170
Acquisition related costs of £24,000 were included within BrewDog'’s income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 4 January
2018 contributed by the Company was £489,000. The loss incurred by the
company over the period was £89,000.
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17.INVENTORY

20.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group 2019 2018
Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
£000 £000
Raw materials 4483 3,067
Current:
Work in progress 1183 1,730
£1,820,000 bank loan 143 143
Finished goods and goods for resale 8,987 10,236
£2,000,000 bank loan 157 157
14,653 15,033
£5,000,000 bank loan 5,000 5,000
Company 2019 2018 6% non-convertible bonds 641 2,300
£000 £000 Obligations under 4642 3176
hire purchase contracts
Raw materials 3,158 2,989
Total current borrowings 10,583 10,776
Work inprogress 1,056 1179
Non-current:
Finished goods and goods for resale 6,639 4732
£1,820,000 bank loan 844 964
10,853 8,900
£2,000,000 bankloan 1167 1,294
18.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Obligations under hire 9,818 4,298
purchase contracts
Group 2019 2018 .
7.5% non-convertible bonds 9,999 9,999
£000 £000
Total non-current borrowings 21,828 16,555
Cashat bank andin hand 35,164 38,978
Company 2019 2018 Company 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash atbank andin hand 29479 34,633 Current:
) ) ) ) £1,820,000 bank loan 143 143
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. The £2,000,000 bankloan 157 157
carrying amount of the above items represents the maximum credit exposure. £5000,000 bank loan 5000 5000
6% non-convertible bonds 641 2,300
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Obligations under 4509 3090
The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. hire purchase contracts
Total current borrowings 10,540 10,690
Group 2019 2018 Non-current:
£000 £000 £1,820,000 bankloan 844 964
Trade payables 10431 14477 £2,000,000 bank loan 1167 1,294
Accruals and other payables 23,390 17,298 Obligations under hire 0818 4298
Taxes and social security 6,597 4192 purchase contracts
40418 35967 7.5% non-convertible bonds 9,999 9,999
Total non-current borrowings 21,828 16,555
Company 2019 2018
£000 £000
Trade payables 4,502 9,359
Accruals and other payables 14,576 6,765
Taxes and social security 3,663 2,824
22,741 18,948
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Bank loans
£1,820,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a
maximum of £1,820,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until October
2027 and bears interest at 1.4% over the base rate.

£2,000,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a
maximum of £2,000,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until May
2029 and bears interest at 1.4% over the base rate. This loanis secured by a
mortgage over the land and buildings.

£5,000,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a
maximum of £5,000,000 and is repayable on demand. It bears interest at 1.4%
over the base rate.

6.5% non-convertible bonds

In November 2015, the group issued £2,312,000 non-convertible bonds, which
matured in November 2019. During the year bonds totalling £1,658,000 were
re-paid. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The bonds were
issued with aninterest rate of 6.5%, paid bi-annually. The amounts not repaid
of £642,000 were reinvested into the new four year 6% bond. Applications

for this new bond finalised in January 2020 and therefore at year end, these
amounts were repayable on demand.

7.5% non-convertible bonds

In January 2017, the group issued £10,000,000 non-convertible bonds with a
maturity in January 2021. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion.
The bonds were issued with an interest rate of 7.5%. Interest is paid bi-annually
with subsequent repayment of £10,000,000 in January 2021.

The bank loans are secured by standing and floating charges over the assets
of the group. In addition, there is an unlimited cross guarantee between
BrewDog PLC and BrewDog Retail Limited.

The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.

21. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Group 2019 2018
£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in the financial 1,835 9,656

statements

Company 2019 2018
£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in the financial 213 6,095

statements

22.LEASES

Lease agreements where the group is lessee

The group has entered into commercial leases on certain land, buildings and
equipment. These leases have an average duration of between 3 and 25
years. Certain property lease agreements contain an option for renewal, with
such options being exercisable three months before the expiry of the lease
term at rentals based on market prices at the time of exercise. There are no
restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Total future minimum lease payments under leases:

Group
31Dec 1Jan
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet 2019 2019
£000 £000
Right-of-use assets net book value
Buildings 97,709 66,709
Vehicles 535 297
Equipment 220 239

98464 67,245

31Dec 1Jan

2019 2019
£000 £000

Lease liabilities
Current 7,791 5400
Non-current 97,922 61,845

105713 67,245

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial year were
£38,122,000.

g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020

62



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Group

Company

2019 2019 2019 2019
Amounts recognised in the Amounts recognised in the
statement of proft or loss £000 £000 statement of proft or loss £000 £000
Amortisation of right-of-use assets Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Buildings 6,646 - Buildings 223 -
Vehicles 208 - Vehicles 182 -
Equipment 48 - Equipment 36 -
Amortisation included in operating profit 6,902 - Amortisation includedin operating profit 441 -
(note 6)
2019 2019
2019 2019
£000 £000
£000 £000 - —
Interest expense included in finance costs 131 -
Interest expense included in finance costs (note 2,031 -
10)
23.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Company Foreign currency risk
31Dec 1Jan
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet 2019 2019 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in Sterling against the US dollar and Euro exchange rates with all
£000 £000 other variables held constant, of the group’s profit before tax (due to foreign
Right-of-use assets net book value exchange translation of intercompany balances). The impact of translating
o the net assets of foreign operations into sterling is excluded from the
Buildings 6,367 416 sensitivity analysis. There are no effects on equity beyond those on profit
Vehicles 494 228 before tax.
) Change in Sterling vs Effect on profit
Equipment 140 148 USDollar/Eurorate  before tax £000
7,001 792 2019
US Dollar/Sterling +10% (3,196)
31Dec 1dan 10% 3196
2019 2019
I 0,
£000 £000 Euro/Sterling +10% 799
Lease liabilities 0% (799)
Current 705 363 2018
Non-current 12122 499 US Dollar/Sterling +10% (3,022)
12,827 792 0% 3,022
Euro/Sterling +10% 153
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial 10% (153)
year were £6,175,000. During the year a gain of £1,567,000 °
was recognised on the Sale and Leaseback of Hop Hub. Cash
consideration of £14,769,000 was received for this property, which
was acquired in June 2018 for £7,591,000.
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24. SHARE CAPITAL

Group and company 2019 2019 2018 2018
No.000 £000  No.000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

Ashares

At1January 43,625 43 43625 43

Share options exercised 81 - - -

Issued during the year 85 - - -
43,791 43 43,625 43

Group and company 2019 2019 2018 2018

No.000 £000  No.000 £000

25.RESERVES

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of BrewDog PLC shares

purchased in the market and held by BrewDog PLC.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries.

26.GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

Bshares

At1January 12,901 13 12,076 12
Issued through Equity for 539 - 825 1
Punks

At 31December 13,440 13 12,901 13
Group and company 2019 2019 2018 2018

No.000 £000  No.000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Preferred

C Ordinary shares
At1January and 31 16,161 17 16,161 17
December 2019
Total 73,392 73 72,687 73

During the year the company issued 279,000 (2018: 825,000) Ordinary B
shares to the public under its Equity for Punks VI (2018: V) crowdfunding
initiative with an issue price of £25.00 (2018: £23.75) per share. This created
additional share premium of £6,985,000 (2018: £16,643,000) in the year.

All classes of shares rank equally in terms of rights to receive dividends, rights
to participate in a distribution of the assets of the company and voting at
general meetings, except that Preferred C shares have an 18% compounding
liquidation preference in the event of certain conditions.

Equity for Punks members are entitled to certain additional rights in relation to
product purchases and other membership benefits.

At the year-end £nil (2018: £nil) of share capital and share premium remains
unpaid.

At the year-end there were 1,317,968 (2018: 1,526,370) share options granted
and not exercised.

Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
At1January 2,508 2193
Received during the year 250 453
Acquired on business combinations 723 -
Translation of grants denominated in (28) -
foreign currency
Released to the statement of (149) (138)
comprehensive income
At 31December 3,304 2,508
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current 291 185
Non-current 3,013 2,323
3,304 2,508
Company 2019 2018
£000 £000
At1January 2,055 2193
Received during the year 251 -
Released to the statement of (149) (138)
comprehensive income
At 31 December 2157 2,055
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current 149 138
Non-current 2,008 1917
2157 2,055

Group and company 2019 2018
Share premium  Share premium

account account

£000 £000

At1January 147,535 128,880
Issued through Equity for Punks 6,985 16,643
Issued during the year 3,682 2,500
Share options granted 642 501
Share options exercised 87 -
Transaction costs (705) (989)
At 31December 168,226 147535

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certainitems
of land, property, plant and equipment. Provisions are made if required in
relation to unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.
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27.SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The company operates three share based payment schemes for the
benefit of senior management.

Options granted under the unapproved CSOP are generally exercisable
between two and five years, with three awards made under this scheme
being exercisable on grant. Three awards only have service vesting

EMI, Approved and Unapproved Company Share Option Plans (CSOPs) conditions, the remaining have non market performance vesting
conditions attached to their exercise, including achievement of a strong
individual performance rating, and sales exceeding, or no less than 10%
below, the target for the most recent financial year ending prior to the
relevant vesting date.

Options granted under the EMI plan are exercisable four to ten years
following the date of grant. One award under this scheme has both service
vesting conditions, and a non market performance vesting condition
attached to their exercise: annual net profit target of 10%. If not met in any
year then an average can be applied over the term to meet target. The following table details the number, weighted average exercise price
(WAEP) and weighted average contractual life (WACL) of share options for

Options granted under the approved CSOP are exercisable four to nine the approved and unapproved schemes as at the balance sheet date:

years following the date of grant, subject to service vesting conditions.

EMI Approved CSOP Unapproved CSOP

Number WAEP WACL Number WAEP WACL Number WAEP WACL

£ Years £ Years £ Years
QOutstanding at 1 January 2018 641,300 0.27 498 57,820 191 6.27 - - -
Granted during the year - - - - - - 827,250 1.03 3.85
Exercised during the year - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2018 641,300 0.27 4.98 57,820 191 6.27 827,250 103 3.85
Granted during the year - - - - - - 515,000 1.00 295
Exercised during the year - - - - - - (81,064) 1.08 0.52
Lapsed during the year (250,000) 048 2.00 (14,550) 110 6.00 (377,788) 1.00 314
Outstanding at 31 December 2019 391,300 014 6.88 43,270 218 6.36 883,398 102 293
Exercisable at 31 December 2019 - - - - 51,598 110
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 - - - - 85,000 110 -

The fair value of the options granted during the period was £5 (2018: £5). This was calculated with reference to the last substantial share purchase.

During 2019 the company issued 15,297 Ordinary B shares with anissue price of £23.75 (consistent with EFPV) as consideration for services received. This
created additional share premium of £382,000.

28.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Group Company

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have

The financial statements include the financial statements of the group and . ) .
group been entered into with related parties for the relevant year:

the subsidiaries listed in note 12.

Sales and purchases between related parties are made at normal market Salesto  Purchases  Amounts  Amounts

prices. Outstanding balances are unsecured and cash settlement terms related from owed by owed to

vary. The company has provided guarantees for anumber of related party parties related related related

payables. The company has not made any provision for doubtful debts parties parties parties

relating to amounts owed by related parties. £000 £000 £000 £000
Subsidiaries:

BrewDog Retail Ltd

2019 9,578 - 11,430 -
2018 8,626 - 5173 -
BrewDog USA Inc

2019 22 - 31,652 -
2018 313 - 29,921 -

g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020



Salesto  Purchases Amounts  Amounts
related from owed by owed to
parties related related related

parties parties parties

£000 £000 £000 £000
Subsidlaries:
BrewDog GMBH
2019 429 - 3,663 -
2018 M - 633 -
Lone Wolf Spirits Ltd
2019 - 3171 - -
2018 - 1,228 1415 -
BrewDog Belgium SPRL
2019 116 - 734 -
2018 133 - 701 -
BD Casanova SL
2019 64 - 607 -
2018 45 - 273 -
Draft House Holding Ltd
2019 1137 - 4,348 -
2018 625 - 4,084 -
Hawkes Cider Ltd
2019 29 80 1138 -
2018 - 278 367 -
BrewDog Korea
2019 - - 897 -
2018 17 - 788 -
BrewDog Brasil
2019 - - 214 -
2018 1 - 25 -
Bryggmester Bob AS
2019 - - 170 -
2018 - - 95 -
BrewDog International
2019 - - 666 -
2018 - - 285 -
BrewDog Sweden
2019 1 - 57 -
2018 - - - -
BrewDog Australia
2019 140 - 2,357 -
2018 - - 212 -
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japan
2019 - - 142 -
2018 - - - -
BrewDog Ireland
2019 19 - 2,342 -
2018 - - - -

Salesto  Purchases Amounts Amounts
related from owed by owedto
parties related related related

parties parties parties

£000 £000 £000 £000
Subsidiaries:
BrewDog France
2019 52 - 1,983 -
2018 - - - -
Drink TV
2019 - 909 1,517 -
2018 - - - -
BrewDog Group HK Ltd
2019 - - 628 -
2018 - - - -
Other directors’ interests
2019 166 221 92 49
2018 185 661 a7 5

During 2019 a number of assets held by one of the directors have been
divested, resulting in lower levels of purchases from related parties.

Director’sloan Amounts owed by Amounts owed to

related parties £000 related parties £000
2019 45 -
2018 45 -

Director’s loan

Amounts due to directors are non-interest bearing and are repayable on
demand.

Other directors’interests

During both 2019 and 2018, purchases at normal market prices were made
by group companies from JBW (77) Limited, Musa 77 Limited, Jet Pack Pie
Limited, 63FCMH LLC and Ten Tonne Mouse Inc, companies controlled by
one of the directors.

During 2019, purchases at normal market prices were made by group
companies from Pie & Mouse Limited, a company controlled by one of the
directors.

29.POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Asaresult of the COVID-19 pandemic, the company has conducted an
assessment on the potential financial and operational risks to the business. This
assessment is described in more detail under the Going Concern assessment.
Despite the potentialimpact across the business, the Directors do not currently
expect any impairments due to the headroom available when animpairment test
was undertaken at the year end.

Subsequent to the year end the company raised £3,309,000 onissue of abond
on 22 January 2020 paying 6% interest (5% in cash and 1% in beer). There have
been no other events since the balance sheet date.

The company also converted arepayable on demand loaninto a structured
termloan, repayable quarterly in equalinstalments over 10 years. Interest will be
calculated quarterly and charged at 21% per annum over the Base Rate.

Furthermore, the company entered into aninvoice financing arrangement which
states that the company can obtain a prepayment of up to 90% of outstanding
accountsreceivable in the UK, up to a facility limit of £20m.

It should be noted that the agreement does not contain any financial covenants
which the company is to adhere to. The company also secured a £25,000,000
CLBILS loan, repayable over 3 years. There have been no other events since the
balance sheet date.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For year ended 31 December 2018 Restated
NOTES 2018£000 2017 £000
Gross Revenue 4 110,870
Duty (16,960)
Net revenue 93,910
Cost of sales (56,284)
Gross Profit 37,626
Administrative expenses (35140)
Other operatingincome 218
Operating Profit 5 2,704
Financeincome 121
Finance costs 8 (1273)
Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment (146)
(Loss)/Profit before taxation 1406
Income tax expense 9 (536)
(Loss)/Profit for the year 870
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 957
Non-controlling interests (87)
870
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 345
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax 345
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, net of tax 1,215
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,302
Non-controlling interests (87)
1,215
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018 NOTES 2018 £000 2017 £000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 80,329
Intangible assets 11 2146
Other non-current financial assets 12 52
82,527
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 24,498
Inventory 15 7,283
Corporation tax receivable 418
Cashand cash equivalents 16 88,498
120697
Total assets 203,224
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 21482
Financial liabilities 18 8451
29933
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 9 1,965
Financial liabilities 18 22,310
Government grants 24 2193
26468
Total liabilities 56,401
Net Assets 146,823
Equity
Called up share capital 22 72
Share premium account 22 128,880
Treasury shares 23 (1185)
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 548
Retained earnings 18,515
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 146,830
Non-controlling interests (7)
Total Equity 146,823

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019 JBWatt  JKMarshall
Director  Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2018 NOTES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10
Intangible assets 11
Other non-current financial assets 12
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14
Inventory 15
Corporationtax receivable
Cashand cash equivalents 16
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17
Financial liabilities 18
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 9
Financial liabilities 18
Government grants 24
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Called up share capital 22
Share premium account 22
Treasury shares 23
Retained earnings
Total Equity

2018 £000

2017£000

47993
1,294
12,291

61,578

45,086
5633
464
86,804

137,987

199,565

15,381
8451

23,832

1812
22,310
2193

26,315

50,147

149418

72
128,880
(1185)
21,651

149418

The group has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the company income

statement. The profit recorded by the company for the year was £3193,000 (2017: £4,658,000).

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019

JBWatt
Director

JK Marshall

Director
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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At1January 2017 63 23188 (495) 203 14,631 37,590 15 37605
Profit for the year - - - - 957 957 (87) 870
Other comprehensive income - - - 345 - 345 - 345
Purchase of treasury shares - - (690) - - (690) - (690)
Issue of share capital 9 109,418 - - - 109427 - 109,427
Issue of share capital : . . - 207 2927 65 2992
insubsidiary
Transaction costs - (3,726) - - - (3,726) - (8,726)
At 31December 2017 72 128,880 (1185) 548 18515 146,830 (7) 146,823
Loss for the year - - - - (1,373) (1,373) (120) (1,493)
Other comprehensive loss - - - (34) - (34) - (34)
Issue of share capital 1 19143 - - - 19144 - 19144
Issue of share capital . . . - 1007 1007 35 1042
insubsidiary
Issue of share options - 501 - - - 501 - 501
Transaction costs - (989) - - - (989) - (989)
At 31 December 2018 73 147535 (1185) 514 18149 165,086 (92) 164,994
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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At1January 2017 63 23188 (495) 16,993 39,749
Profit for the year - - - 4658 4658
Purchase of treasury shares - - (690) - (690)
Issue of share capital 9 109,418 - - 109427
Transaction costs - (3,726) - - (3,726)
At 31December 2017 72 128,880 (1185) 21651 149418
Profit for the year - - - 3193 3193
Issue of share capital 1 19143 - - 19144
Issue of share options - 501 - - 501
Transaction costs - (989) - - (989)
At 31December 2018 73 147535 (1185) 24844 171,267
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 NOTES 2018 £000 2017 £000

Cashflows from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before tax 1406
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment 143
Depreciation 4640
Grant amortisation (136)
Loss ondisposal of associate 3
Foreign exchange 1,771
Write off of other payables (803)
Financial Income (121)
Financial charges 1273
Share based payment expense -
Working capital adjustments:
Increase ininventory (1,885)
Increase intrade and other receivables (8,275)
Increase intrade and other payables 8,436
Interest received 121
Interest paid (943)
Taxation paid (820)
Taxation refunded 55
Net cash flow from operating activities 4,865
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24,235)
Purchase of intangible assets (35)
Purchase of treasury shares (705)
Cashacquired on business combinations -
Proceeds from disposal of associate 49
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) (290)
Net cash flow used ininvesting activities (25,216)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 112,360
Transaction costs of issue of shares (3,726)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 59
Proceeds from new borrowings 897
Proceeds from bond issue 10,000
Proceeds government grant 250
Repayment of bonds -
Repayment of borrowings (10,523)
Payments for finance leases and hire purchase contracts (3627)
Net cash flow from financing activities 105,690
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 85,339
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3159
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 88,498
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

NOTE 2018 £000 2017 £000

Cashflows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:

LLoss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss ondisposal of associate
Depreciation

Impairment

Grant amortisation

Foreignexchange

Finance Income

Finance Charges

Share based payment expense
Working capital adjustments:

Increase ininventory

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Interest received

Interest paid

Taxation paid

Taxation refunded

5,091

ll

2186

(136)
1766

(121)
1264

(735)
(11,864)
5635
121
(935)
(820)
55

Net cash flows (used in)/from in operating activities
Investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of associate

Purchase of treasury shares

LLoan provided to subsidiary

Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

1,701

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Issue of ordinary share capital
Transaction costs of issue of shares
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Proceeds from new borrowings
Proceeds from government grant
Proceeds frombondissue

Repayment of bond

Repayment of borrowings

Payments for finance leases and hire purchase contracts

109,368
(3726)
59

897
250
10,000
(9,201)
(3627)

Net cash flows used in financing activities

104,020

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

84,520
2,284

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

86,804
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2018
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The financial statements of BrewDog PLC and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the group) for the year ended 31 December 2018 were authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 15 March 2019. The company is incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006.

2.BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated and parent company financial statements are prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for other non-current financial assets that have been measured at
fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000), except as otherwise
indicated.

Change in presentation

The comprehensive income statement has been restated for 2017 in respect of
contributions from non-controlling interests in a subsidiary, with the proceeds
being recorded directly in equity. There is no change to the equity position of
the group.

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
company and entities controlled by the company. Controlis achieved where
the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits fromits activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the company, using consistent accounting policies. Al
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,income, expenses and cashflows
relating to transactions between members of the group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable,
directly and indirectly, to the parent company. This is presented within equity in
the consolidated balance sheet, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the parent. Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

3.ACCOUNTING POLICIES
New standards and interpretations

The group applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The nature and effect
of the changes as a result of adoption of these new accounting standards are
described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018,
but do not have animpact on the consolidated financial statements of the
group. The group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or
amendments that have been issued, but are not yet effective.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model
toaccount for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that
revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which

an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
toacustomer.

The group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of
adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January 2018. Under this
method, the standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not completed as this date. The group
elected to apply the standard to all contracts as at 1 January 2017.

The presentation of revenue in the statement of comprehensive income

has changed to show revenue both gross and net of duty. Gross revenue is
inclusive of duty, as this is a production tax, which is not passed to the customer
with the risks and rewards of ownership (or as a performance obligation under
asales contract).

Porterage agreements are now treated as consignment agreements, with
revenue recognised when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the final customers. Revenue in the previous period has not been
restated as the impact would be immaterial.

Thereis noimpact on the income statement other than to present gross and
net revenue and there has been no requirement to restate opening reserves.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after
1January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge
accounting.

The group applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, with an initial application date of 1
January 2018. The group has not restated the comparative information, which
continues to be reported under IAS 39.

(a) Classiftation and measurement

Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss, amortised cost, or fair value through OCI. The
classification is based on two criteria: the group's business model for
managing the assets; and whether the instrument’s contractual cash flows
represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amounts
outstanding.

The assessment of the group’s business model was made as of the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash
flow on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest based
onthe facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a
significantimpact to the group. The group continues measuring at fair value all
financial assets previously held at fair value under IAS 39. The following are the
changes in the classification of the group's financial assets:

- Trade receivables and other non-current financial assets previously classified
as Loans and receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and give
rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest.
These are now classified and measured as Debt instruments at amortised
cost.

The group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through
profit or loss. There are no changes in classification and measurement for the
groupss financial liabilities.

(b) Impairment
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The adoption of IFRS 9 has changed the group's accounting for impairment
losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with

a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 required the
group to recognise an allowance for ECL's for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss and contract assets. The impact of the change
adoption was not material and has not been adjusted.

New standards and interpretations - not yet adopted

The following standards and amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the group's accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 or later periods. The group has not
early adopted these standards:

+ IFRS 16 Leases
« IFRIC Interpretation 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
« Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to IFRS 9

+ IFRS 12 Income Taxes — Income tax consequences of payments on financial
instruments classified as equity

« IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
« Definition of a Business — Amendments to IFRS 3

« Definition of Material - Amendments toIAS 1and IAS 8

« The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Itis not anticipated that the application of these standards and amendments
willhave a materialimpact on the group's financial statements with the
exception of IFRS 16.

IFRS 16 requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance
sheet model ina similar way to finance leases under IAS 17. A right-of use asset
and a corresponding lease liability will be recognised for all leases by the lessee
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The group has commitments under operating leases in respect of property,
plant and equipment which meet the definition of a lease under IFRS 16.

Additional disclosures will also be required under IFRS 16.

The group plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach whereby the cumulative impact of adopting
the standard will be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January 2019

and the comparative periods will not be restated. A right of use asset and
corresponding lease liability will be recognised at 1January 2019. Work is
ongoing to quantify the impact of this change.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank andin
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as

defined above and net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets, other than land, are stated at cost or valuation less
depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or
valuation less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful
life, as follows

Land not depreciated

Buildings 2% oncost

Long-termleasehold property over lease term

Plant and machinery 10 -25% onreducing balance
and 33-50% on cost

Computer equipment 33% oncost

Fixtures and fittings 25% on cost

Motor vehicles 25% on reducing balance

Assets under construction not depreciated

Certain brewing equipment, included within plant and machinery, is
depreciated at 10% on reducing balance method and has been allocated a
residual value of between 10% and 55% of cost, dependant on the equipment's
use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss whenitisincurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives
and assessed forimpairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for anintangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end

of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense onintangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the expense category consistent with the function of
theintangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested
forimpairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Non-current financial assets

Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less any provision for impairment.
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that an asset isimpaired.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
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the group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer willbe
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset

or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. Other contingent
consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9is measured at fair value at
each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwillis initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of

the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of
the aggregate consideration transferred, the group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed
and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gainis recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwillis measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
inabusiness combinationis, from the acquisition date, allocated to each

of the group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the disposed operationis included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises revenue recognised by the group in respect of goods
and services supplied during the year, exclusive of value added tax and trade
discounts butinclusive of excise duty. Revenue is recognised in the financial
statements when the risks and rewards of owning the goods have passed to
the customer and when cash has been received or is receivable.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises brewery, warehouse maintenance costs, ingredients,
packaging and direct staff costs.

Taxation

Currentincome tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that

are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Deferredincome tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements, with the following exception:

« Deferredincome tax assets are recognised only to the extent that itis
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted
basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset
isrealised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency

using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at period end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. The principal foreign currencies used by the group are
US dollars ($) and Euro (€).

Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into sterling at
the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
are translated at weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Research and development

Research and development expenditure is written off in the year in which it is
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance

that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied

with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
onasystematic basis over the periods that the costs, whichit is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised
asincome in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Leases and hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are
capitalised in the statement of financial position. Those held under hire
purchase contracts are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Those
held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or
the lease term, whichever is the shorter.

Theinterest element of these obligations is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the relevant period. The capital element of the
future paymentsis treated as a liability.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes party to the
contracts that give rise to them and are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or loans and receivables, as appropriate. The company
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial
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year-end. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of
agroup of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either:

- the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but had transferred control of the
asset, or

- the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
anasset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred of the asset, the asset is recognised to the

extent of the company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,

the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
inaccordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows willinclude cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLsarerecognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the group applies a simplified
approachin calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track
changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
onlifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The group has established a
provision matrix that is based onits historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of
loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Share-based payments

The group operates three equity-settled, share based compensation
plans. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense over the vesting
period. The total amount expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options at the date on which they
were granted.

Fair value is determined with reference to the most recent non Equity

for Punks share issue. Non-market performance vesting and service
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the company revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest.

The company recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, with corresponding adjustment to equity.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised and new shares are issued.

Treasury shares

BrewDog PLC shares held by the group are deducted from equity as
“treasury shares” and are recognised at cost. Consideration received for
the sale of such shares is also recognised in equity, with any difference
between the proceeds from sale and the original cost being taken to
revenue reserves. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
onthe purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted for, as follows:

Raw materials - Purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
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Finished goods and work in progress - Cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Geographical segment

2018
£000

2017
£000

UK
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs Europe
tosell. USA and Canada

Rest of the world

132,357
210083
13,314
4945

89,242
12,959
3964
4,705

Trade and other receivables

171619

110,870

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised
and carried at the lower of their original invoiced value and recoverable
amount. Where the time value of money is material, receivables are carried
atamortised cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans

Loans are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing.
Loans are subsequently measured at their amortised cost applying the
effective interest rate method.

Finance charges on the loans are recognised as finance costs in the
income statement.

Pensions

The pension planin place is a defined contribution plan. Pension
contributions are charged to the income statement as an expense inthe
period to which the contributions relate. Once the contributions have been
paid, there are no further payment obligations.

4. REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced amount of goods and services supplied,
inclusive of excise duty. Revenue is recognised when the risks and
rewards of owning the goods has passed to the customers. Allitems are
stated net of value added tax and trade discounts.

The analysis by geographical area of the group's revenue is set out as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

5.OPERATING PROFIT 2018 2017
Thisis stated after charging/(crediting)

No. No.
2018 2017 Directors 9 6
£000 £000 Administration 147 90
Depreciation of tangible assets 7855 4640 Production 199 155
Operating lease rentals 5024 2,528 Selling and distribution 98 60
Auditors renumeration (see note 6) 258 101 Bar staff 794 466
(Profit)/loss on foreign exchange transac- (1,497) 1,771 1247 r
tions
b. Director’s remuneration 2018 2017
Research and development 244 550
o £000 £000
Amortisation of government grants (138) (136)
Director's remuneration 119 992
Pension contributions 89 87
6. AUDITORS REMUNERATION Share based payment expense 470 -
The group paid the following amounts to its auditors in respect of the audit of 1678 1079
the financial statements and for other services provided to the group: ’ '
Inrespect of the highest paid director:
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Audit of the financial statements 161 91
Aggregate remuneration 237 195
Tax advisory services 24 10
Pension contributions 24 19
Other advisory services 73 -
261 214
258 101 Number of directors who received share 3 -
options during the year.
7.STAFF COSTS AND DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS
a. Staff Costs 2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 8.FINANCE COST £000 £000
Wages and salaries 35,321 19400 Bankloans and overdrafts 184 174
Pension costs 1206 820 Hire purchase interest 212 253
Social security costs 3,289 1873 Bond interest 925 846
Share based payment expense 3 . Totalfinance costs 1321 1273
39,847 22,093

The above excludes directors remuneration. The company makes
contributions to a defined contribution scheme for all eligible employees up toa
maximum of 10% of salary. Contributions are charged to the income statement
asincurred.

The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as
follows:
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Group

a) Income tax on profit

for the year 2018 2017
£000 £000

UK corporation tax on the profit for the year 571 273
Amounts over provided in previous years (37) (121)
Foreign taxes 6 -
Total currentincome tax 540 153

Deferredincome tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differ- 510 377
ences

Deferred tax adjustments in previous periods (133) 7
Total deferredincome tax charge 377 383
Income tax charge in the group statement of 917 536

comprehensive income

b) Reconciliation of the total 2018 2017
income tax charge

£000 £000
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations (576) 1406
Tax calculated at UK standard rate of corporation (109) 271
tax of19%
(2017 -19.25%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 218 75
Other fixed asset related movements 326 124
Other timing differences 90 33
Foreign tax credits 6 -
Tax over provided in previous years (37) (114)
Changein taxlaws and rate (176) (50)
Deferred tax not recognised 140 -
R&D expenditure (47) 15
Non-taxableincome (174) (26)
Unrecognised tax losses in other jurisdictions 690 816
Taxlosses utilised (10) (155)
Share scheme deductions - (453)
Income tax charge in the group statement of com- 917 536

prehensive income

The income tax expense above is computed at profit before taxation multiplied
by the effective rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2017:19.25%).
c) Deferred income tax

The deferred income tax included in the statement of financial positionis as
follows:

Group Group  Company  Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax liability
Temporary differences 24171 1965 2,241 1812
relating to property, plant
and equipment
Deferred tax asset
Tax losses carried forward (72) - - -
Net deferred tax liability 2,399 1965 2,241 1812
Deferred taxinthe income
statement
Temporary differences 377 383 429 326
relating to property, plant
and equipment
377 383 429 326
10.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group Landand  Longterm Fixtures Motor
buildings  leasehold  andfittings vehicle
property
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2018 37399 12,567 7,280 200
Additions 24,308 4,266 5,897 83
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 5232 641 7
Disposals - (134) (125) 2)
Transfers (7,725) (5232) - -
Exchange differences 545 - 36 2
At31December 2018 54,527 16699 13,729 290
Depreciation:
At1January 2017 846 1812 3408 15
Charge for the year 608 745 2,777 33
Ondisposals - (24) (84) &)
Exchange differences - - - 1
At31December 2018 1454 2533 6,101 147
Net book value:
At 31December 2018 53,073 14166 7628 143
At31December 2017 36,553 10,755 3872 85
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Group cont. Plantand Computer Assets under Total Plantand Motor vehicles Total
machinery equipment construction machinery
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2018 32,91 898 264 91,519 Net book value:
Additions 4,260 1154 4,669 44637 At 31December 2018 15116 - 15116
Acquisition of 384 84 - 6,348 At 31 December 2017 18,262 9 18,271
subsidiaries
Disposals (152) - - (413) o
Depreciation charge for the year:
Transfers 13,221 - (264) -
31December 2018 2146 - 2146
Exchange differences 768 1 - 1,352
31December 2017 1556 3 1,559
At 31December 2018 51,392 2137 4,669 143443
Company Longterm Landand Fixtures and Motor
Depreciation: leasehold buildings fittings vehicles
property
At1January 2018 4588 421 - 11190 £000 £000 £000 £000
Charge for the year 3,301 391 - 7855 Cost:
Ondisposals - - - (110) At1January 2018 20,276 11 436 157
Exchange differences 30 - - 31 Additions 19,200 - 196 45
At 31December 2018 7919 812 - 18,966 Disposals - - - -
At 31December 2018 39476 11 632 202
Net book value:
At 31December 2018 43473 1325 4,669 124477 Depreciation:
At1January 2018 681 1 315 101
At 31 December 2017 28,323 477 264 80329 Charge for the year 380 1 103 19
At 31December 2018 1,061 2 418 120
Included above are assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contacts
asfollows:
Net book value:
At 31December 2018 38415 9 214 82
At 31December 2017 19,595 10 121 56
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Company Plant and Computer Assets under Total 11 |NTANG|B|_E F|XED ASSETS

machinery equipment construction
EOOO EOOO EOOO EOOO Group Other Goodwill Distribution Total
Rights
Cost:
£000 £000 £000 £000
At1January 2018 32,301 867 - 54048 Cost
OSt:
Additions 3133 912 4669 26609
At1January 2018 35 817 1,294 2146
At 31December 2018 35434 1,779 4669 80657 »
Additions 4 - _ 4
Acquisition of subsidiaries 115 14,751 - 14,866
D iation:
epreciation At 31 December 2018 154 15568 1294 17016
At1January 2018 4549 408 - 6,055
Charge for the year 2,244 318 - 3,065 Company Distribution
At31December 2018 6,793 726 - 9120 rights
£000
Cost:
Net book value:
At1January 2018 1,294
At 31December 2018 28,641 1,053 4669 71537 and 31 December 2018
At 31 Decernber 2017 p— 459 47903 12.OTHERNON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Group Unlisted invest-
Included above are assets held under finance leases or hire purchase ments
contracts as follows: Cost £000
At1January 2017 52
Company Prntand Motor Total Impairment (52)
achinery vehicles At31December 2018 -
£000 £000 £000
Netbook value:
Net book value
At 31December 2018 15116 - 15116 At 31 December 2018 )
At 31 December 2017 18,262 9 18,271
At 31 December 2017 52
Depreciation charge for the year:
31December 2018 2146 - 2146 Company Unlisted Shares Total
investments ingroup
31December 2017 1556 3 1559 undertakings
Cost £000 £000 £000
At 1January 2018 52 12,239 12,291
Additions - 15,859 15,859
Impairment (52) - (52)
At 31December 2018 - 28,098 28,098
Net book value:
At 31December 2018 - 28,098 28,098
At 31December 2017 52 12,239 12,291

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the following subsidiaries are entitled
to an exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
relating to subsidiary companies; Lone Wolf Spirits Limited and Hawkes Cider
Limited.

Details of the investments in which the company holds 20% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Name of Holdings Country of Proportion of Nature of
registration or voting rights and i

company incorporation shares held business

Subsidiary

undertakings:

BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Bar operator

Retall

Limited (1)

BrewDog USA Ordinary USA 98% Holding

Inc (14) company

BrewDog Ordinary Germany 100% Bar operator

GmbH (4)

Lone Wolf Ordinary Scotland 100% Spirits

Spirits Limited producer

(1)

BrewDog Ordinary Australia 100% Holding

Group company

Australia Pty

Ltd (5)

BD Casanova Ordinary Spain 100% Bar operator

SL (1)

BrewDog Ordinary Belgium 100% Bar operator

Belgium SPRL

@)

Overworks Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant

Limited (1)

BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Holding

International company

Limited (1)

Draft House Ordinary England 100% Bar operator

Holding

Limited (2)

BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant

Admin Limited

*(1)

Hawkes Cider Ordinary England 100%  Cider producer

Limited (3)

BrewDog Ordinary Brazil 100% Bar operator

do Brasil

Comercio

de Alimentos e

Bebidas Ltda

(6)

BrewDog Ordinary Honk Kong 100% Dormant

Group HK Ltd

(10)

BrewDog Ordinary USA 100% Holding

Media Inc (14) company

BrewDog Bar Ordinary ~ South Korea 70% Bar operator

Korea (13)

*Incorporated on 26 February 2018

Indirectly held

BrewDog Columbus LLC (15) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Brewing Company Ordinary USA
Franklinton LLC (14)

BrewDog Dogtap LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Doghouse LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Short North LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Verwaltungs UG (4) Ordinary Germany
BrewDog Brewing Australia Pty Ltd (5) Ordinary Australia
Draft House TB Limited (2) Ordinary England
Draft House NC Limited (2) Ordinary England
DrinkTV LLC (16) Ordinary USA
BrewDog Bars France SAS (9) Ordinary France
Bryggmester Bob AS (12) Ordinary Norway
BrewDog Canada Ltd (8) Ordinary Canada

(1) Registered office address; Balmacassie Commercial Park, Ellon, Aberdeen-
shire, AB418BX

(2) Registered office address; 3rd and 4th Floor, Fergusson House,
124128 City Road, London, EC1V 2NJ

(3) Registered office address; 92 and 96 Druid Street, London, SE12HQ
(4) Registered office address; AckerstraBe 29, 10115 Berlin
(5) Registered office address; Level 29/12 Creek Street, Brisbane City, QLD 4000

(6) Registered office address; 41 Rua Corope's — Pinheiros,
Sao Paulo-SP,05426-010, Brazil

(7) Registered office address; Putterie 20,1000 Brussels, Belgium

(8) Registered office address; 2800 Park Place, 666 Burrard Street, Vancouver,
BCV6C 277

(9) Registered office address; 1rue Favart, 75002 Paris

(10) Registered office address; Suites 3701-3710, 37/F Jardine House,
1Connought Place, Central, Hong Kong

(11) Registered office address; Calle Casanova 69, 08011, Barcelona, Spain
(12) Registered office address; Markveien 57,0505 Oslo

(13) Registered office address; (04780) 12, Seongsuil-ro 4-gil, Seongdong-gu,
Seoul, Republic of Korea

(14) Registered office address; 96 Gender Rd, Canal Winchester,
OH 43110

(15) Registered office address; PO Box 361715, Columbus, OH 43236
(16) Registered office address; 1209 Orange St, Wilmington, DE 19801

13. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisitionsin 2018
Acquisition of Draft House Holding Limited

On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Draft
House Holding Limited, an unlisted company based in London which operated
bars, primarily in the London area.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Draft House Holding
Limited as at the date of acquisition were:
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Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
tion£000
Property, plant and equipment 5938
Financial assets 1325
Inventory 203
7466

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (6,253)
(6,253)
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value 1213
Goodwill arising on acquisition 10,453
Purchase consideration transferred 11666

Acquisition of Bryggmester Bob AS

On 4 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Bryggmester
Bob AS, an unlisted company based in Norway which operates a bar.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Bryggmester Bob AS
as at the date of acquisition were:

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £10,666,000, all cash
settled. The remaining £1,000,000 is contingent upon Draft House meeting
defined sales and EBITDA targets for the 12 months to 31 October 2019. These
targets are expected to be met and so the fullamount has been recognised in
the consideration.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 26 March
2018 contributed by Draft House was £9,782,000. Draft House incurred a profit
of £89,000 over the same period.

Had Draft House been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the consolidated
income statement would have included revenue of £12,597,000 and a loss of
£83,000

Acquisition of Hawkes Brewing Company Ltd
(name changed to Hawkes Cider Limited after acquisition)

On 4 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Hawkes
Brewing Company Ltd, an unlisted company based in London whichis a
brewer of craft cider.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Hawkes Brewing
Company Ltd as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
tion£000
Property, plant and equipment 42
Financial assets 80
Inventory 35
Cash and cash equivalents 20
177

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (196)
(196)
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value (19)
Goodwill arising on acquisition 274
Purchase consideration transferred 255

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 4 April 2018
contributed by the Company was £763,000. The loss incurred by the company
over the period was £70,000.

Had Bryggmester Bob AS been consolidated from 1January, the consolidated
income statement would have included revenue of £1017,000 and aloss of
£93,000.

Acquisition of BrewDog do Brasil Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda

On 4 January 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of BrewDog
do Brasil Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda, an unlisted company based
in Brazil which operates a bar.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BrewDog do Brasil
Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Ltda as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
tion£000
Property, plant and equipment 343
Financial assets 300
Inventory 46
689

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (384)
(384)
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value 305
Goodwillarising on acquisition 3715
Purchase consideration transferred 4,020

The total consideration paid for the acquisition was £4,020,000. £2,020,000 of
the consideration was settled in cash at the completion date, and the remaining
£2,000,000 was settled by the issue of 84,211 shares to the owners of Hawkes
inMay 2018. The issue of shares to the owners of Hawkes related wholly to the
acquisition of control, and none relates to the provision of future services by a
shareholders who remained employed by BrewDog following the acquisition.

Therevenue included in the consolidated income statement since 4 April 2018
contributed by Hawkes was £1,658,000. Hawkes incurred a pre-tax loss of
£142,000 over the same period.

Had Hawkes been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the consolidated income
statement would have included revenue of £1,914,000 and a loss of £186,000.

Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
tion£000
Property, plant and equipment 174
Financial assets 19
193

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (64)
(64)
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value 129
Goodwill arising onacquisition |
Purchase consideration transferred 170

Acquisition related costs of £24,000 were included within BrewDog's income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 4 January
2018 contributed by the Company was £489,000. The loss incurred by the
company over the period was £89,000.
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15.INVENTORIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Acquisitionsin 2017 14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Acquisition of BrewDog Belgium SPRL The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. The

0On 29 September 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of carrying amount of these items represents the maximum credit exposure.
BrewDog Belgium SPRL, an unlisted company based in Belgium which
operates abar.
) S Group 2018 2017
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
£000 £000
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BrewDog Belgium
SPRL as at the date of acquisition were: Trade receivables 27,206 19,201
Prepayments and other receivables 10158 5,297
Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
tion £000 37364 24,498
Property, plant and equipment 677
) Trade and other receivables due after one year amounted to £2,119,000 (2017
Intangible assets 1 -£1103000)
Other non-current financial assets 1
Trade and other receivables 16 Company 2018 2017
Inventory 43 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 40 Tradereceivables 26,140 20,019
778 Prepayments and other receivables 5462 2,383
Receivable from group undertakings 45,258 22,684
Liabilities 76,860 45086
Trade and other payables (869)
Financial liabilities (528) Group Neither Pastdue
past but not
Deferred tax liability ©@7) _duenot impaired
impaired
(1424) Total <30days 3060 6090 Over90
days days days
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value (646) £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Goodwillarising on acquisition 646 2018 27,206 10121 11,011 3,201 2,873
Purchase consideration transferred - 2017 19,201 6,807 8,061 2017 2,316
From the date of acquisition, BrewDog Belgium SPRL contributed £308,000 )
of revenue and £803,351to profit before tax from continuing operations of the Company Neither Pastdue
Group past but not
i due not impaired
Acquisition of BD Casanova SL impaired
On1December 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of BD Total <30days ~ 30-60 6090 Over90
Casanova SL, an unlisted company based in Spain which operates a bar. days days days
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BD Casanova SL as at 2018 261140 9496 10.800 3,204 2640
the date of acquisition were: 2017 20019 7616 8070 2017 2316
Assets Fair value recognised on
acquisition £000
Property, plantand equipment 129
Trade and other receivables 29
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value 158
Goodwillarising on acquisition 170
Purchase consideration transferred 328

Transaction costs of £19,000 were expensed and are included in administrative
expenses.
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18.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group 2018 2017 Group 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Raw materials 3067 2069 Current:
Workin progress 1’730 865 191,820,000 bank loan 143 109
Finished goods and goods for resale 10,236 4349 £2,000,000 bankloan 157 114
15,033 7283 £5,000,000 bank loan 5000 5000
6.5% non-convertible bonds 2,300 -
Company 2018 2017
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 3176 3,228
£000 £000
- Total current borrowings 10,776 8,451
Raw materials 2,989 1,805
Non-current:
Work in progress 1179 728 ur
. £1,820,000 bank loan 964 1123
Finished goods and goods for resale 4732 3100
£2,000,000 bank loan 1294 1470
8900 5633
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 4,298 7407
(o) — i -
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6.5% non-convertible bonds 2,310
7.5% non-convertible bonds 9,999 10,000
Group 2018 2017 Total non-current borrowings 16,555 22310
£000 £000
Cash atbank andinhand 38978 88,498 Company 2018 2017
£000 £000
Company 2018 2017 Current
£000 £000 £1,820,000 bank loan 143 109
Cashatbank andinhand 34,633 86,804
£2,000,000 bank loan 157 114
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit £5,000,000bankloan 5000 5000
rates. The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. The 6.5% non-convertible bonds 2300 -
carrying amount of the above items represents the maximum credit exposure.
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 3,090 3,228
Total current borrowings 10,690 8,451
17.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Non-current:
The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.
£1,820,000 bank loan 964 1123
Group 2018 2017 £2,000,000 bank loan 1,294 1470
£000 £000 Obligations under hire purchase contracts 4,298 7407
Trade and other payables 14477 8438 6.5% non-convertible bonds R 2310
Taxes and social security 4192 3183 75% non-convertible bonds 9999 10000
Other payables 17,298 9,861 Total non-current borrowings 16,555 22,310
35967 21482
Company 2018 2017
£000 £000
Trade and other payables 9,359 6,958
Taxes and social security 2,824 2,314
Other payables 6,765 6109
18,948 15,381
g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020 87



22.SHARE CAPITAL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Bankloans Group and company 2018 2017
£1,820,000 bank loan £000 £000
This fixed rate loanis in the name of the parent company, originally for a Not later than one year 3177 3228
maximum of £1,820,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until ' '
October 2027 and bears interest at 1.4% over the base rate. Later than one year but not later than five years 4,298 7407
£2,000,000 bank loan TAT5 10,635
This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a ) )
maximum of £2,000,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until May Operating lease agreements where the group is lessee
2029 and bears interest at 1.4% over the base rate. This loanis secured by a ) } ) .
mortgage over the land and buildings. The group has entered into commercialleases on certain land and buildings.
These leases have an average duration of between 3 and 25 years. Only the
£5,000,000 bankloan property lease agreements contain an option for renewal, with such options

being exercisable three months before the expiry of the lease term at rentals
based on market prices at the time of exercise. There are no restrictions placed
upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company;, originally for a
maximum of £5,000,000 and is repayable on demand. It bears interest at 1.4%
over the baserate.

6.5% non-convertible bonds Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases
are asfollows:

InNovember 2015, the group issued £2,312,000 non-convertible bonds

with a maturity in November 2019. During the year bonds totalling £9,000

were re-paid. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The bonds Group 2018 2017
were issued with an interest rate of 6.5%. Interest is paid bi-annually with

subsequent repayment of £2,300,000 in November 2019. £000 £000
Notl| h 7! 2012
75% non-convertible bonds otlater than one year 5975 0
InJanuary 2017, the group issued £10,000,000 non-convertible bonds witha Later than one year butnotlater than five years 21985 9103
maturity in January 2021. During the year bonds totalling £1,000 were re-paid. Later than five years 54,071 19723
The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The bonds were issued
withaninterest rate of 7.5%. Interest is paid bi-annually with subsequent 82,031 30838
repayment of £10,000,000 in January 2021.
The bank loans are secured by standing and floating charges over the assets Company 2018 2017
of the group. Inaddition, there is an unlimited cross guarantee between £000 £000
BrewDog PLC and BrewDog Retail Limited.
) ) o ) ) Not later than one year 452 257
The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.
Later than one year but not later than five years 724 734
Later than five years 766 847
1942 1,838

19. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

21.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group 2018 2017 , ,
Foreign currency risk
£000 £000
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to areasonably possible
Contracted for but not provided in the financial state- 9656 14449 change in Sterling against the US dollar and Euro exchange rates with all
ments other variables held constant, of the group's profit before tax (due to foreign
exchange translation of intercompany balances). The impact of translating the
net assets of foreign operations into sterling is excluded from the sensitivity
analysis. There are no effects on equity beyond those on profit before tax.
Company 2018 2017 v Uity ey o
£000 £000
Changein Sterling vs US Effect on profit
Contracted for but not provided in the financial state- 6,095 9122 Dollar / Euro rate before tax £000
ments 2018
20. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES AND HIRE US Dollar/Sterling +10% (3022
PURCHASE CONTRACTS 10% 3022
Obligations under fhances leases and hire purchase contracts Euro/Sterling +10% 153
The group uses finance leases and hire purchase contracts to acquire plant 0% (153)
and machinery. These leases have terms of renewal but no purchase options 2017
and escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the lessee. Total future
minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts US Dollar/Sterling +10% (2,793)
are as follows:
-10% 2,793
Euro/Sterling +10% (195)
-10% 195
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Group and company 2018 2018 2017 2017
No.000 £000  No.000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

Ashares

At1January 43,625 43 5093 51

Issued through share - - 2 -

options

Issue following resolution - - 45,855 -

(see below)

Issued through share - - 168 -

options

Conversion to Preferred C - - (8,384) ®)

Ordinary shares

Issued during the year - - 891 -

43625 43 43625 43

Group and company 2018 2018 2017 2017
No.000 £000  No.000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

Bshares

At1January 12,076 12 1177 12

Issue following resolution - - 10610 -

(see below)

Issued through Equity for 825 1 289 -

Punks

At 31 December 12,901 13 12,076 12

Group and company 2018 2018 2017 2017
No.000 £000 £000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

Cshares

At1January 16,161 17 - -

Conversion from Ordinary - - 8,384 8

Ashares

Issued during the year - - 7777 9

At 31 December 16,161 17 16,161 17

Total 72,687 73 71,862 72

During the previous year a resolution to reduce the share capital nominal value
from 1p each to 0.001p each was passed. During the previous year a resolution
to covert 8,383,915 of the Ordinary A shares to Preferred ‘C’ Ordinary shares
was passed.

During the year the company issued 825,000 Ordinary B shares to the public

under its Equity for Punks V crowdfunding initiative with anissue price of £23.75

per share. This created additional share premium of £16,643,000 in the year.

Allclasses of shares rank equally in terms of rights to receive dividends, rights
to participate in a distribution of the assets of the company and voting at
general meetings, except that Preferred C shares have an 18% compounding
liquidation preference in the event of certain conditions.

Equity for Punks members are entitled to certain additional rights in relation to
product purchases and other membership benefits.

Atthe year-end £nil (2017 - £ nil) of share capital and share premium remains
unpaid.

Atthe year-end there were 1526,370 (2017 — 951,400) share options granted
and not exercised.

Group and company 2018 2017

Share premium Share premium

account account

£000 £000

At1January 128,880 23188

Issued through 16,643 6,867
Equity for Punks

Issued through share options 501 59

Issued during the year 2,500 102492

Transaction costs (989) (3,726)

At 31December 147535 128,880

23.RESERVES

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of BrewDog PLC shares purchased in the

market and held by BrewDog PLC.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

subsidiaries.

24. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Group 2018 2017

£000 £000

At1January 2193 2,079

Received during the year 453 250

Released to the statement of (138) (136)
comprehensive income

At31December 2,508 2193

2018 2017

£000 £000

Current 185 150

Non-current 2,323 2043

2,508 2193

Company 2018 2017

£000 £000

At1January 2193 2,079

Received during the year - 250

Released to the statement of (138) (136)
comprehensive income

At31December 2,055 2193

2018 2017

£000 £000

Current 138 150

Non-current 1917 2043

2,055 2193

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items
of land, property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfiled conditions or

contingencies attached to these grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

25. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS betwgen two and five years, with two awards made under this §<;heme being
exercisable on grant. One award only has service vesting conditions, the

The company operates three share based payment schemes for the benefit of remaining have non market performance vesting conditions attached to their
senior management. exercise, including achievement of a strong individual performance rating,

) and sales exceeding, or no less than 10% below, the target for the most recent
EMI, Approved and Unapproved Company Share Option Plans (CSOP) financial year ending prior to the relevant vesting date.
Options granted under the EMI plan are exercisable four to terj years following The following table details the number, weighted average exercise price
the date of grant. One award under this scheme has only service vesting (WAEP) and weighted average contractual life (WACL) of share options for the

conditions, and the other also has a non market performance vesting condition
attached to their exercise: annual net profit target of 10%. If not met inany year
then an average can be applied over the termto meet target.

approved and unapproved schemes as at the balance sheet date:

Options granted under the approved CSOP are exercisable four to eight years
following the date of grant, subject to service vesting conditions.

Options granted under the unapproved CSOP are generally exercisable
EMI Approved CSOP Unapproved CSOP

Number WAEP WACL Number WAEP WACL Number WAEP WACL

£ Years £ Years £ Years
Qutstanding at 31 January 2017 641,300 0.27 498 57,820 191 6.27 - - -
Granted during the year - - - - - - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2017 641,300 0.27 498 57,820 191 6.27 - - -
Granted during the year - - - - - - 827,250 103 385
Exercised during the year - - - - - - - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2018 641,300 0.27 498 57,820 191 6.27 827,250 103 385
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 - - - - 85,000 11

Exercisable at 31 December 2017 - - - - - -

The weighted average fair value of unapproved options granted during the period was £5. The fair value has been calculated with reference to the most recent non
Equity for Punks share issue.

26.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Group Company

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been

The financial statements include the financial statements of the group and the
group entered into with related parties for the relevant year:

subsidiaries listed in note 12.

Sales and purchases between related parties are made at normal market
prices. Outstanding balances are unsecured and cash settlement terms vary.
The company has provided guarantees for a number of related party payables.
The company has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to
amounts owed by related parties.
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Salesto  Purchases Amounts Amounts
related  fromrelated owed by owedto
parties parties relat_ed relat_ed

parties parties

£000 £000 £000 £000
Subsidaries:
BrewDog Retail Ltd
2018 8626 - 5173 -
2017 6,084 - 10 -
BrewDog USA Inc
2018 313 - 29,921 -
2017 243 - 20673 -
BrewDog GMBH
2018 11 - 633 -
2017 142 - 859
Lone Wolf Spirits Ltd
2018 - 1,228 1415 -
2017 - 543 286 -
BrewDog Belgium SPRL
2018 133 - 701 -
2017 30 - 845 -
BD Casanova SL
2018 45 - 273 -
2017 - - 1 -
Draft House Holding Ltd
2018 625 - 4,084 -
2017 - - - -
Hawkes Cider Ltd
2018 - 278 367 -
2017 - - - -
BrewDog Korea
2018 17 - 788 -
2017 - - - -
BrewDog Brasil
2018 1 - 25 -
2017 - - - -
BrewDog Norway
2018 - - 95 -
2017 - - - -
Other directors’ interests
2018 185 661 47 5
2017 9 74 16 9

Director'sloan Amounts owed by Amounts owed to

related parties £000 related parties £000
2018 45 -
2017 23 -

Director’sloan

Amounts due to directors are non-interest bearing and are repayable on
demand.

Other directors’interests

During both 2018 and 2017, purchases at normal market prices were made by
group companies from JBW (77) Limited and Musa 77 Limited, acompany
controlled by one of the directors.

During 2018 purchases at normal market prices were made by group
companies from Jet Pack Pie Limited, 63FCMH LLC and Ten Tonne Mouse
Inc, companies controlled by one of the directors.

27.POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end the company acquired five bars in Sweden and
one bar in Japan from the franchise partners in those countries. There have
been no other events since the balance sheet date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the members of BrewDog PLC
OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of BrewDog PLC (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2018 which comprise group and parent company statements of financial position, the group
statement of comprehensive income, the group and parent company statements of cash flows, the group and parent
company statements of changes in equity and the related notes 1to 27, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

- thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2018 and of the group's loss for the year then ended;

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union;

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006: and

- thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

USE OF OUR REPORT

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN:

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

- thedirectors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

- thedirectors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
inthe audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
or amaterial misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« theinformation givenin the strategic report and the directors report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- thestrategic report and directors report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to youif, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certaindisclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPUNSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 46, the directors are responsible for

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THEAUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor'sreport.

Jamie Dixon (Senior Statutory Auditor)
Forand on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP (Statutory Auditor), Aberdeen. 15 March 2019

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the BrewDog PLC web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the web site.

2. Legislationin the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislationin
other jurisdictions.
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ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING 2017

BREWDOG



GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For year ended 31 December 2017 NOTES 2017 £000 2016 £000
Revenue 4 71,850
Cost of sales (47075)
Gross Profit 24,775
Administrative expenses (20,691)
Other operatingincome 293
Operating Profit 5 4377
Finance income -
Finance costs 8 (560)
Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment (56)
Profit before taxation 3,761
Income tax expense 9 (592)
Profit for the year 3169

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 3176
Non-controlling interests 7
3169

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Contribution from non-controlling interests 1626
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 189
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1815
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4984
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 4991
Non-controlling interests (7)
4984
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017 NOTES 2017 £000 2016 £000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 61469
Intangible assets 11 646
Other non-current financial assets 12 52
Investments in associates 14 100
62,267
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 15,827
Inventory 16 5354
Corporation tax receivable -
Cashand cash equivalents 17 3159
24,340
Totalassets 86,607
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 11,680
Current tax payable 194
Financial liabilities 19 18,534
30408
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 9 1,556
Financial liabilities 19 14,959
Government grants 25 2,079
18,594
Total liabilities 49,002
Net Assets 37,605
Equity
Called up share capital 23 63
Share premium account 23 23188
Treasury shares 24 (495)
Foreign currency translation reserve 24 203
Retained earnings 14,631
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 37590
Non-controlling interests 15
Total Equity 37605

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors on 16 March 2018 JB.Watt  N.A.Simpson
Director  Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017
NOTES 2017 £000 2016 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 37460
Intangible assets 1 646
Other non-current financial assets 12 7,763
Investments in associates 14 100
45969
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 31843
Inventory 16 4,898
Corporation tax receivable -
Cashand cash equivalents 17 2,284
39,025
Total assets 84,994
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 8,769
Current tax payable 194
Financial liabilities 19 17,758
26,721
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 9 1486
Financial liabilities 19 14,959
Government grants 25 2,079
18,524
Total liabilities 45,245
Net assets 39,749
Equity
Called up share capital 23 63
Share premium account 23 23188
Treasury shares 24 (495)
Retained earnings 16,993
Total Equity 39,749

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directorson16 March2018 ~ JB.Watt  N.A.Simpson
Director  Director
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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At1January 2016 61 16,902 - 14 9,829 26,806 - 26,806
Profit for the year - - - - 3176 3176 (7) 3169
Other comprehensive income - - - 189 1626 1,815 - 1,815
Purchase of treasury shares - - (495) - - (495) - (495)
Issue of share capital 2 6,522 - - - 6,524 - 6,524
!ssue of share capital ) i ) ) ) ) o0 20
insubsidiary
Transaction costs - (236) - - - (236) - (236)
At 31December 2016 63 23188 (495) 203 14,631 37,590 15 37605
Profit for the year - - - - 957 957 (87) 870
Other comprehensive income - - - 345 2927 3272 - 3,272
Issue of share capital 9 109,418 - - - 109427 - 109427
!ssue of share capital ) i ) ) ) ) 65 65
insubsidiary
Transaction costs - (3,726) - - - (3,726) - (3,726)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (690) - - (690) - (690)
At 31December 2017 72 128,880 (1185) 548 18515 146,830 (7) 146,823
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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At1January 2016 61 16,902 - 11,785 28,748
Profit for the year - - - 5,208 5,208
Issue of share capital 2 6,522 - - 6,524
Transaction costs - (236) - - (236)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (495) - (495)
At 31December 2016 63 23188 (495) 16,993 39,749
Profit for the year - - - 4658 4,658
Issue of share capital 9 109,418 - - 109427
Transaction costs - (8,726) - - (8,726)
Purchase of treasury shares - - (690) - (690)
At 31December 2017 72 128,880 (1185) 21651 149418
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 NOTES 2017 £000 2016 £000
Cashflows from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,761
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Loss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment 56
Depreciation 2918
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) (1,071)
Write off of other payables -
Financial Income -
Financial Expense 560
Grant amortisation (129)
Loss ondisposal of associate -
Working capital adjustments:
Increase ininventory (1,742)
Increase intrade and other receivables (7491)
Increase intrade and other payables 1416
Interest received -
Interest paid (560)
Taxation paid (98)
Taxation refunded 115
Net cash flow from operating activities (2,265)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20,336)
Purchase of intangible assets -
Purchase of treasury shares (495)
Transaction costs of purchase of treasury shares (17)
Proceeds from disposal of associate -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 137
Net cash flow used in investing activities (20,711)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 8172
Transaction costs of issue of shares (236)
Proceeds from exercise of share options -
Proceeds from new borrowings 16,181
Proceeds from government grant 778
Proceeds frombondissue -
Repayment of bonds @)
Repayment of borrowings (226)
Payments for finance leases and hire purchase contracts (2,247)
Net cash flow from financing activities 22420
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (556)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,715
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3159
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTE 2017 £000 2016 £000
Cashflows from operating activities
Profit before tax 5,869
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
LLoss ondisposal of property, plant and equipment -
Loss ondisposal of associate 1616
Depreciation (129)
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) (1,071)
Financial Income -
Financial Expense 273
Grantamortisation (129)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase ininventory (1615)
Increase in trade and other receivables (9196)
Increase in trade and other payables 2,728
Interest received -
Interest paid (273)
Taxation paid (98)
Taxationrefunded 15
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (1,725)
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of associate -
Purchase of treasury shares (495)
Transaction costs of purchase of treasury shares (17)
Loan provided to subsidiary (13,961)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 137
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,287)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (19623)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 6,524
Transaction costs of issue of shares (236)
Proceeds from exercise of share options -
Proceeds from new borrowings 16,181
Proceeds from government grant 778
Proceeds frombondissue -
Repayment of bond (2)
Repayment of borrowings (226)
Payments for finance leases and hire purchase contracts (2,247)
Net cash flows from financing activities 20,772
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (576)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,860
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,284

g REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020 101



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2017
1.GENERAL INFORMATION

Thefinancial statements of BrewDog PLC and its subsidiaries (collectively, the group)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors 16 March 2018. The company isincorporatedin the United Kingdom under
the Companies Act 2006.

2.BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements are preparedin accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Unionand
appliedinaccordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for other non-current financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements are presentedin sterlingandall values are
roundedtothe nearest thousand (£000), except otherwise indicated.

The group has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006 not to present the company income statement. The profit recorded by the
company for the year was £4,658,000 (2016: £5,208,000).

The capital contributions fromnon-controlling interests inasubsidiary resultsinan
increase inretained earnings from other Comprehensive Income.

Changein Presentation

The comparative retained earnings have been restatedin respect of contributions
from non-controlling interestsinasubsidiary resultinginanincrease inretained
earnings from other comprehensive income.

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company
and entities controlled by the company. Controlis achieved where the company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity soas to obtain
benefitsfromits activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the company, using consistent accounting policies. Allintra-group assets
andliabilities, equity;income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions
betweenmembers of the group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity ina subsidiary not attributable, directly
andindirectly, to the parent company andis presented separately withinequity in

the consolidated balance sheet, separately fromequity attributable to owners of the
parent.Losses withinasubsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if
thatresultsinadeficitbalance.

3.ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards and interpretations

The following standards and amendments and interpretations to existing standards
have been published and are mandatory for the group's accounting period beginning
onorafter1January 2018 or later periods, but the group has not early adopted them:

+ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
« IFRS16Leases

IFRS 15is notexpected to have amaterialimpact on the groups financial statements.
IFRS 16, whichis effective from 1January 2019, eliminates the classification of leases
aseitheroperatingleases or finance leases for alessee, and allleases are capitalised
by recognizing the present value of the lease payments and showing them either as
lease assets (right-of-use assets) or together with property, plant and equipment. If
lease payments are made over time, acompany also recognises a financial liability
representing its obligation to make future lease payments. The most significant effect
of the new requirementsinIFRS 16 will be anincrease inlease assets and financial
liabilities.

Cashand cashequivalents

Cashand cashequivalentsin the balance sheet comprise cash atbank andinhand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above
and net of outstandingbank overdrafts.

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets other thanland are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation.
Depreciationis provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuationless
estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful life, as follows:

Land notdepreciated
Buildings 2% oncost
Long-termleaseholdproperty  overleaseterm

Plantand machinery 10-25% onreducing balance
and33-50%oncost

Computer equipment 33%oncost

Fixtures andfittings 25%oncost

Motor vehicles 25% onreducing balance

Assets under construction notdepreciated

Certain brewing equipment, included within plantand machinery, is depreciated
at 10% onreducing balance method and has beenallocated aresidual value of
between 10% and 55% of cost, dependant onthe tank's use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured oninitial recognition at cost.
The cost ofintangible assets acquired ina business combination s their fair value as
atthe date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
atcostless accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and expenditureis recognised in the statement of comprehensive
incomewhenitisincurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their usefuleconomiclives
andassessed forimpairment whenever there is anindication that the intangible
assetmay beimpaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
anintangible asset withafinite useful life are reviewed atleast at the end of each
reporting period. Changesin the expected usefullife or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodiedin the asset are accounted for
by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changesinaccounting estimates. The amortisation expense onintangible assets
with finite livesis recognised in the statement of comprehensive incomeinthe
expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets withindefinite useful lives are notamortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unitlevel. The
assessment of indefinite lifeis reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in usefullife fromindefinite to finite is
made onajprospective basis.

Gains orlosses arising from derecognition of anintangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carryingamount of the asset
andare recognisedin the statement of profit or loss when the assetis derecognised.

Non-current financial assets

Fixed assetinvestments are shownat cost less any provision forimpairment. The
company assesses at each reporting date whether thereis any objective evidence
thatanassetisimpaired.

Investmentsinassociates

Investmentsinassociates are accounted for using the equity method. The
consolidated profitandloss accountincludes the groups share of associate’s profit
orlosses while the group's share of the net assets of the associate is showninthe
consolidated statement of financial position.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of
anacquisitionis measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which
ismeasured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

interestsinthe acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
tomeasure the non-controlinginterestsinthe acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’sidentifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
areexpensedasincurred andincludedinadministrative expenses.

When the Group acquires abusiness, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designationinaccordance with the
contractual terms,economic circumstances and pertinent conditions asat the
acquisitiondate. Thisincludes the separation of embedded derivativesinhost
contracts by theacquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not
remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration classified as anasset or liability thatis a financial instrument and

within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognitionand Measurement,
ismeasured at fair value with the changesin fair value recognised in the statement

of profit or lossinaccordance with IAS 39. Other contingent consideration that is

not withinthe scope of IAS 39is measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changesinfairvalue recognisedin profitorloss.

Goodwillisinitially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
andany previousinterest held over the netidentifiable assets acquired andliabilities
assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquiredis in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
allof the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still resultsinan excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gainis recognisedin profitor loss.

Afterinitial recognition, goodwillis measured at costless any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwillacquiredina
business combinationis, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to acash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the
operationwithin that unitis disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operationisincluded in the carryingamount of the operation when determining the
gainorloss ondisposal. Goodwill disposedin these circumstances is measured
basedontherelative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises revenue recognised by the groupinrespect of goods and
services supplied during the year, exclusive of value added tax and trade discounts
butinclusive of excise duty. Revenueis recognised in the financial statements when
therisks and rewards of owning the goods have passed to the customer and when
cashhasbeenreceived orisreceivable.

Costofsales

Cost of sales comprises brewery, warehouse maintenance costs and direct staff
costs.

Taxation
Currentincome tax

Current tax assets andliabilities are measured at the amount expected tobe
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based ontax rates andlaws that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income taxis charged or credited directly toequity if it relates toitems that are
credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income taxis recognised in the statement of
comprehensiveincome.

Deferredincome tax

Deferredincome taxis recognised onalltemporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets andliabilities and their carryingamountsin the financial
statements, with the following exception:

- Deferredincome tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits wil be available against which the deductible temporary differences,

carried forward tax credits or tax losses canbe utilised.

Deferredincome tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at
thetax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is realised or liability is
settled, based ontax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheetdate.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
period end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are recognizedin the statement of comprehensive income. The principal
foreign currencies used by the group are US dollars ($) and Euro (€).

Group companies

Theassetsand liabilities of foreign operations are translatedinto sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated at
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
arerecognised inother comprehensiveincome.

Research and development
Researchand developmentexpenditureis written offin the yearin whichitisincurred.
Governmentgrants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will bereceived and all attached conditions wil be complied with. Whenthe
grantrelates toanexpenseitem, itis recognised asincome on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, whichitisintended to compensate, are expensed. Where
the grantrelatestoanasset,itis recognised asincome inequalamounts over the
expectedusefullife of the related asset.

Leasesand hire purchase

Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts or finance leases are capitalised
inthe statement of financial position. Those held under hire purchase contracts
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Those held under finance leases
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or the lease term, whicheveris the
shorter.

Theinterest element of these obligations s charged to the statement of
comprehensiveincome over the relevant period. The capital element of the future
paymentsis treated as aliability.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income onastraight line basis over the period of the lease.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the company becomes party to the contracts
that give rise to themand are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profitorloss orloans and receivables, as appropriate. The company determines

the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end. When financial
assetsarerecognisedinitially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction
price plus,inthe case of financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable apart of a financial asset or part of agroup of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

- therights toreceive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the company has transferred itsrights toreceive cash flows fromthe asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
athird party under a‘pass-through’arrangement;and either:

- the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but had transferred control of the asset, or

« the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or
group of financial assetsisimpaired.

Inrelation to trade receivables, a provision forimpairment is made when thereis
objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
Whenthe company has transferredits rights toreceive cash flows fromanasset

or hasenteredinto a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred of the
asset, the assetisrecognised to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement
inthe asset. Inthat case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
therights and obligations that the company has retained. difficulties of the debtor)
that the company willnot be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of theinvoice. The carryingamount of the receivable is reduced through use of
anallowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed as
irrecoverable.

Financial liabilities
Allfinancial liabilities are recognisedinitially at fair value and in the case of loans and
borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
orcancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such anexchange or modificationis treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carryingamounts s recognisedin the income statement.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to
thefairvalue at the date on which they are granted andis recognised asan expense
over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award.

Treasury shares

BrewDog PLC shares held by the Group are deducted from equiity as “treasury
shares’ and are recognised at cost. Considerationreceived for the sale of such shares
isalsorecognisedin equity, withany difference between the proceeds from sale and
the original cost being taken torevenue reserves. No gain or lossisrecognisedin the
income statement onthe purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity securities. Equity investments
classified as available-for sale are those, which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value though profit or loss.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensiveincomein the unrealised gains and losses reserve untilthe
investmentis derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
inotherincome, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss
isrecognised in theincome statementin other expenses and removed fromthe
unrealised gainsandlossesreserve.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of costand net realisable value.
Costsincurredinbringing each product toits present location and conditionare
accountedfor,asfollows:

Raw materials:
« Purchase costonafirst-in, first-out basis.

Finished goods and work in progress:

« Cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based onnormal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Netrealisable valueis the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completionand the estimated costs to sell.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and carried
atthelower of their originalinvoiced value and recoverable amount. Where the time
value of money is material, receivables are carried at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables arerecognised nitially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans

Loansareinitially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received
net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. Loans are subsequently measured
attheiramortised cost applying the effective interest rate method.

Finance charges ontheloans are recognised as finance costsintheincome
statement.

Pensions

The pensionplanin place is a defined contribution plan. Pension contributions
are charged to theincome statement as an expensein the period towhich the
contributionsrelate. Once the contributions have been paid, there are no further
payment obligations.

4.REVENUE

Revenue represents the invoiced amount of goods and services supplied, inclusive
of excise duty, during the year. Revenue s recognised when the risks and rewards
of owning the goods has passed to the customers. Allitems are stated net of value
added taxand trade discounts.

Theanalysis by geographical area of the group's turnover is set out as below:

2017 2016

Geographical segment £000 £000
UK 89,923 58497
Europe 12,959 9,785
USAand Canada 3964 -
Rest of the world 4,705 3,568
111,551 71,850

REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 2020

104



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

5.OPERATING PROFIT 2017 2016
Thisis stated after charging
No. No.
2017 2016 Directors 6 7
£000 £000 Administration 90 74
Depreciation of tangible assets 4640 2918 Production 155 19
Loss on disposal of tangible assets 143 56 Selling and distribution 60 38
Loss ondisposal of associate 3 - Bar staff 466 355
Operating lease rentals 2528 1811 T 593
Fees payable to the group's auditors (see 101 50 b. Director’s remuneration 2017 2016
note 6)
) } £000 £000
LLoss on foreign exchange transactions 1771 -
Director's remuneration 992 1042
Research and development 550 550
Pension contributions 87 80
1,079 1122
andafter crediting: Inrespect of the highest paid director:
Government grants 136 129 2017 2016
Profit on foreign exchange transactions - 1,071 £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration 195 167
6. AUDITORS REMUNERATION Pension contributions 19 17
The group paid the following amounts to its auditors in respect of the audit of 214 184
the financial statements and for other services provided to the group. - -
Number of directors who received share - -
options during the year.
2017 2016
£000 £000 2017 2016
Audit of the financial statements 91 50 8.FINANCE COST £000 £000
Taxadvisory services 10 - Bank loans and overdrafts 174 192
101 50 Hire purchase interest 253 210
Bondinterest 846 158
7.STAFF COSTS AND DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS Totalfinance costs 1273 560
a. Staff Costs 2017 2016
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 19,400 12,758
Pension costs 820 643
Social security costs 1873 1,398
22,093 14,799
The above excludes directors remuneration. The company makes
contributions to a defined contribution scheme for all eligible employees up toa
maximum of 10% of salary. Contributions are charged to the income statement
asincurred.
The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as
follows:
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9.INCOME TAX Group Group  Company  Company
2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000

Group

a) Income tax on profiton

ordinary activities 2017 2016 Deferred tax liability
£000 £000 Temporary differences 1965 1610 1,812 1486
; ) relating to property, plant
UK corporation tax on the profit for the year 273 561 and equipment
Amounts over provided in previous years (121) (136)
Total current income tax 153 425 Deferred tax asset
Deferredincome tax: Tax losses carried forward - 54 - -
Origination and reversal of temporary differ- 377 262
ences
) Net deferred tax liability 1965 1556 1812 1486
Impact of change in tax laws and rates - (76)
Deferred tax adjustments in previous periods 7 (19)
- Deferred taxin the income
Total deferredincome tax charge 383 167 statement
Income tax charge in the group statement of 536 592 Temporary differences 383 167 326 236
comprehensiveincome relating to property, plant
and equipment
383 167 326 236
b) Reconciliation of the total 2017 2016
income tax charge 10.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£000 £000
. - . Group Landand  Longterm Fixtures Motor
Profit from contlnumg operahons 1,406 3,761 buildings leasehold  andfittings vehicle
property
Tax calculated at UK standard rate of corporation 271 752 £000 £000 £000 £000
tax of 19.25% Cost:
2016 —-20%
(2016-20%) At1January 2017 15907 5844 5126 190
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 75 73 Additions 6799 6,842 2904 "
Other fixed asset related movements 124 26 Disposals (17) (133) (80) -
Other timing differences 33 1 Transfers 15430 ) . )
Tax over provided in previous years (114) (155) Exchange differences (721) 1 10 ©
Changeintaxlaws andrate (50 (22) {31 December 2017 37399 12567 7280 200
Reduction for R&D expenditure - (143)
R&D expenditure credits 15 . Depreciation:
Non-taxableincome (6) 8 At1January2017 443 84 2130 88
Unrecognised tax losses in other jurisdictions 816 186 Charge for the year 403 1004 1342 o7
Tax losses utilised (155) - Ondisposals ~ 33) (64) ~
Share scheme deductions 459) - At31December2017 846 1812 3408 115
Income tax charge in the group statement of com- 536 592
prehensive income
Net book value:
The income tax expense above is computed at profit before taxation multiplied At 31 December 2017 36,553 10,755 3872 85
by the effective rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.25% (2016: 20%).
At 31 December 2016 15464 5003 2996 102

c) Deferred income tax

The deferredincome tax included in the statement of financial positionis as
follows:
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Group cont. Plantand Computer Assets under Total Plantand Motor vehicles Total
machinery equipment construction machinery
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At1January 2017 24,942 715 15430 68154 Net book value:
Additions 8,705 358 264 25,205 At 31December 2017 18,262 9 18,271
Disposals (50) (175) - (455) At 31 December 2016 18,089 16 18105
Transfers - - (15,430) -
Exchange differences (686) _ _ (1,385) Depreciation charge for the year:
At31December 2017 32011 898 264  9islg  o!December2017 1556 s 1589
31December 2016 2,033 36 2,069
Depreciation:
At1January 2017 2963 220 - 6,685
Ondisposals (38) ) - (136) Company Longterm  Landand Fixtures and Motor
leasehold buildings fittings vehicles
Charge for the year 1663 201 - 4640 property
At 31December 2017 4588 421 - 11189 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
Net book value: At1January 2017 25 15149 393 157
Additions - 5127 43 -
At 31December 2017 28,323 477 264 80,329
Disposals (14) - - -
At 31December 2017 11 20,276 436 157
At 31December 2016 21979 495 15430 61469
Depreciation:
Included above are assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contacts At1January 2017 3 443 205 82
as follows: )
Ondisposals (3) - - -
Charge for the year 1 238 110 19
At 31December 2017 1 681 315 101
Net book value:
At 31December 2017 10 19,595 121 56
At 31 December 2016 22 14,706 188 75
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11.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Company Plantand Computer Total
machinery equipment
EOOO EOOO EOOO Group Other Goodwill Distribution Total
Rights
Cost:
£000 £000 £000 £000
At1January 2017 24942 704 41,370 ot
OSL:
Additions 8,038 337 13,545
At1January 2017 - - 646 646
Disposals (679) (174) (867) g
Additions 35 817 648 1500
At 31December 2017 32,301 867 54,048
At 31 December 2017 35 817 1294 2146
Depreciation: Company Distribution
rights
At1January 2017 2,963 214 3910
£000
Ondisposals (38) - 1)
Cost:
Charge for the year 1624 194 2186
At1January 2017 646
At 31December 2017 4549 408 6,055
Additions 648
At 31 December 2017 1,294
Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 27,752 459 47993
At 31 December 2016 21979 490 37460
12. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Included above are assets held under finance leases or hire purchase , )
contracts as follows: Group Unlisted invest-
ments
Cost £000
Company Plantand Motor Total At1January 2017 and 52
machinery vehicles 31December 2017
£000 £000 £000
Net book value: Net book value
At 31 December 2017 18,262 9 18,271 At 31December 2017 52
At 31December 2016 18,089 16 18,105
At 31 December 2016 52
Depreciation charge for the year:
31December 2017 1,556 3 1,559
31December 2016 2,033 36 2,069
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Company Unlisted Shares Total
investments ingroup
undertakings
Cost £000 £000 £000
At1January 2017 52 7, 7,763
Additions - 4,528 4528
At 31December 2017 52 12,239 12,291
Netbook value:
At 31December 2017 52 12,239 12,291
At 31December 2016 52 7 7,763

Details of the investments in which the company holds 20% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:

Indiirectly held

BrewDog Columbus LLC Ordinary USA
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC Ordinary USA
BrewDog Brewing Company Ordinary USA
Franklinton LLC

BrewDog Dogtap LLC Ordinary USA
BrewDog Doghouse LLC Ordinary USA
BrewDog ShortNorth LLC Ordinary USA
BrewDog Verwaltungs UG Ordinary Germany
BrewDog Brewing Australia Pty Ltd Ordinary Australia

13. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions in 2017
Acquisition of BrewDog Belgium SPRL

On 29 September 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of

Nar':e(;f Holdings reggfr:?\gnn/g: voﬁz;orﬁ’g&fg o Eﬁ;?r::g BrewDog Belgium SPRL, an unlisted company based in Belgium which
company incorporation shares held operates abar.
Subsidiary Assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
undertakings: ) o o )
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BrewDog Belgium
BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Bar operator SPRL as at the date of acquisition were:
Retail Limited
BrewDogUSA  Ordinary USA 98% Holding Assets Fair value recognised on acquisi-
Inc company tion£000
BrewDog Ordinary Germany 100% Bar operator Property, plant and equipment 677
GmbH Intangible assets 1
Lone Wolf Ordinary Scotland 100% Spirits Other non-current financial assets 1
Spirits Limited producer )
Trade and other receivables 16
BrewDog Ordinary Australia 100% Dormant
Group Inventory 43
ﬁtL(sttraha Pty Cash and cash equivalents 40
BD Casanova Ordinary Spain 100% Bar operator 778
SL
BrewDog Ordinary Belgium 100%  Baroperator Liabilities
Belgium SPRL Trade and other payables (869)
Overworks Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant } R
Limited * Financial liabilities (528)
BrewDog Ordinary Scotland 100% Dormant Deferred tax liability @7
International
Limited ** (1424)
Totalidentifiable net liabilities at fair value (646)
Goodwillarising on acquisition 646
* Incorporated on 26 October 2017
**Incorporated on 27 October 2017
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From the date of acquisition, BrewDog Belgium SPRL contributed £308,000 15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
of revenue and £803,351 to profit before tax from continuing operations of the

Group. The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. The
carrying amount of the above items represents the maximum credit exposure.
Acquisition of BD Casanova SL

On1December 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of BD

Casanova SL, an unlisted company based in Spain which operates a bar. Group 2017 2016
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed £000 £000
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BD Casanova SL as at Trade receivables 19,201 13529
the date of acquisition were: Prepayments and other receivables 5,297 2298
24498 15,827
Assets Fair value recognised on Trade and other receivables due after one year amounted to £1103,000 (2016
acquisition £000 -£1027000)
Property, plant and equipment 129
Trade and other receivables 29 Company 2017 2016
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 158 £000 £000
Goodwillarising on acquisition 170 Trade receivables 20019 13529
Purchase consideration transferred 328 Prepayments and other receivables 2,383 431
Receivable from group undertakings 22,684 17,883
Transaction costs of £19,000 were expensed and are included in administrative
expenses. 45,086 31843
Grou Neither Past due
14.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES P past but not
due not impaired
Group & Company Total impaired
Total <30days 30-60 60-90 Over90
Cost £000 days days days
At1January 2017 100 £O00  £000  £000  £000  £000
Disposals (100) 2017 19201 6807 8061 2017 2316
At31December 2017 - 2016 13529 6114 4306 1877 1232
During the year, BrewDog PLC disposed of its investment in Third Wave Coffee .
Limited, which is a coffee shop operator. Company Neither Pastdue
past but not
due not impaired
impaired

Total <30days 30-60 60-90 Over90
days days days

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2017 20,019 7615 8070 2017 2,316
2016 13,529 6114 4,306 1877 1,232
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

16.INVENTORIES

19.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
Raw materials 2,069 1,265
Work in progress 865 692
Finished goods and goods for resale 4,349 3397
7,283 5354
Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Raw materials 1,805 1,265
Work in progress 728 692
Finished goods and goods for resale 3100 2,941
5633 4,898

17.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
Cashatbankandinhand 88,498 3159
Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Cashatbank andinhand 86,804 2,284

Cashatbank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value. The
carrying amount of the above items represents the maximum credit exposure.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000
Current:
£800,000 loan - 776
£1,820,000 bank loan 109 109
£2,000,000 bank loan 14 14
£5,000,000 bank loan 5000 5000
£2,500,000 bank loan - 2500
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 3,228 3557
Invoice financing - 6478
8451 18534
Non-current:
£1,820,000 bank loan 1123 1,244
£2,000,000 bank loan 1470 1597
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 7407 9,808
6.5% non-convertible bonds 2310 2,310
7.5% non-convertible bonds 10,000 -
Total non-current borrowings 22,310 14,959
Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Current:
£1,820,000 bank loan 109 109
£2,000,000 bank loan 14 14
£5,000,000 bankloan 5000 5000
£2,500,000 bank loan - 2500
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 3,228 3557
Invoice financing - 6478
8451 17,758
Non-current:
£1,820,000 bank loan 1123 1244
£2,000,000 bank loan 1470 1597
Obligations under hire purchase contracts 7407 9,808
6.5% non-convertible bonds 2310 2,310
7.5% non-convertible bonds 10,000 -
Total non-current borrowings 22,310 14,959

Group 2017 2016
£000 £000

Trade and other payables 8438 4,290
Taxes and social security 3183 2,786
Other payables 9,861 4604
21482 1,680

Company 2017 2016
£000 £000

Trade and other payables 6,958 3548
Taxes and social security 2314 2108
Other payables 6,109 313
15,381 8,769
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Bankloans

£1,820,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a maximum
of £1,820,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until October 2027 and
bears interest at 140% over the base rate.

£2,000,000 bank loan

Thisfixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for a maximum
of £2,000,000 and is repayable by monthly instalments until May 2029 and bears
interest at 1.40% over the base rate. This loan is secured by a mortgage over the
land and buildings.

£800,000loan

Thisfixed rate loan is in the name of the subsidiary, BrewDog Retail Limited,
originally for amaximum of £800,000. It bears interest at 2.31% over the base rate
and was re-paid during the year.

£5,000,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loan is in the name of the parent company, originally for amaximum
of £5,000,000 and is repayable on 30 September 2018. It bears interest at 140%
over the baserate.

£2,500,000 bankloan

During the previous year the parent company drew down the loan, originally for a
maximum of £2,500,000. The loan was repaid during the year and bore interest at
2.75% over the base rate.

Invoice financing

During the previous year the parent company entered into an agreement for the
purchase of debt, for a maximum £8,500,000. This facility attracts a financing fee
0f1.65%. This arrangement ceased during the year.

6.5% non-convertible bonds

InNovember 2015, the group issued £2,312,000 non-convertible bonds with a
maturity in November 2019. During the previous year bonds totalling £2,000 were
re-paid. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The bonds were
issued with aninterest rate of 6.5%. Interest is paid bi-annually with subsequent
repayment of £2,310,000 in November 2019.

21. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE
CONTRACTS

Obligations under fhances leases and hire purchase contracts

The group uses finance leases and hire purchase contracts to acquire plant
and machinery. These leases have terms of renewal but no purchase options
and escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the lessee. Total future
minimum lease payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
are as follows:

Group and company 2017 2016
£000 £000

Not later than one year 3,228 3557
Inonetofive years 7407 9,808
10635 13,365

Operating lease agreements where the group is lessee

The group has entered into commercial leases on certain land and buildings.
These leases have an average duration of between 3 and 25 years. Only the
property lease agreements contain an option for renewal, with such options
being exercisable three months before the expiry of the lease term at rentals
based onmarket prices at the time of exercise. There are no restrictions placed
upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Total future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:

7.5% non-convertible bonds Group 2017 2016
InJanuary 2017, the group issued £10,000,000 non-convertible bonds with a
maturity in January 2021. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The £000 £000
bonds were issued with an interest rate of 7.5%. Interest is paid bi-annually with Not later than one year 2012 1,595
subseqguent repayment of £10,000 in January 2021.
A ) Inone tofive years 9103 6442
The bank loans are secured by standing and floating charges over the assets of
the group. In addition, there is an unlimited cross guarantee between BrewDog Inover five years 19,723 1341
PL BrewDog Retail Limited.
C and BrewDog Retail Limited 30838 21448
The carrying value of financial instruments approximates fair value.
Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Not later than one year 257 319
20.CAPITAL COMMITMENT Inone to five years 734 1,093
Group 2017 2016 Inover five years 847 1274
£000  £000 1838 2686
Contracted for but not provided in the financial state- 14,449 7301
ments
Company 2017 2016
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in the financial state- 9122 1333
ments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

22.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the Sterling against the US dollar and Euro exchange rates with all

Group and company 2017 2017 2016 2016

No.000 £000  No.000 £000

Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary

other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to foreign Cshares
exchange translation of intercompany balances). The impact of translating the At1January - - - -
net assets of foreign operations into ;terllng is excluded from The sensitivity Conversion from Ordinary 8384 8 B B
analysis. There are no effects on equity beyond those on profit before tax. Ashares
Issued during the year Yaeds 9 - -
Changein Ster- Effect
ling vs US Dollar on profit At31December 16161 17 - -
/Eurorate before tax
£000
During the year aresolution to reduce the share capital nominal value from
2017 0.01p each to 0.001p each was passed. During the year a resolution to convert
US Dollar/Sterling +10% (2793) 8,383,915 of the Ordinary A shares to Preferred ‘C’ Ordinary shares was
passed.
409
10% 2793 During the year the company issued 891,383 Ordinary A Shares at par value.
i 0,
Euro/Stering +0% (195) During the year the company issued 289124 Ordinary B shares to the public
40% 195 under its Equity for Punks V crowdfunding initiative with an issue price of £23.75
0016 per share. This created additional share premium of £6,866,406 in the year.
During the year the company also issued 7,776,934 Preferred C Ordinary
US Dollar/Sterling +10% (1,722)
-10% 1,722
i ) shares with anissue price of £1318 per share. This created additional share
Euro/Sterling +10% (100) premium of £102,492,213in the year.
-10% 100 Both A and B Ordinary shares rank equally in terms of rights to receive
dividends, rights to participate in a distribution of the assets of the company
23.SHARE CAPITAL and voting at general meetings, except that Preferred C shares have an 18%
compounding liquidation preference in the event of certain conditions.
Groupand company 2017 2017 2016 2016 Equity for Punks members are entitled to certain additional rights in relation to
No. 000 £000  No.000 £000 product purchases and other membership benefits.
Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary Atthe year-end £nil (2016 - £ nil) of share capital and share premium remains
A shares unpaid.
At1January 5093 51 5075 51 At the year-end there were 951,400 (2016 —51,546) share options granted and
Issued through share 2 - - - notexercised.
options
Issue following resolution 45,855 - - -
(see below)
Group and compan 2017 2016
Issued through share 168 - - - P pany
options Share premium Share premium
) t account
Conversionto Preferred C (8,384) 8) - - accoun
Ordinary shares £000 £000
Issued during the year 891 - - - Att January 23188 16,902
Issued through 6,867 6,522
43625 43 5075 51 Equity for Punks
Issued through share options 59 -
Group and company 2017 2017 2016 2016 Issued during the year 102492 -
No.000 £000  No.000 £000 Transaction costs (3726) (236)
Allotted called up and fully paid Ordinary At 31 December 128,880 23188
Bshares
At1January 1177 12 1039 10
Issue following resolution 10610 - - -
(see below)
Issued through Equity for 289 - 138 2
Punks
At 31 December 12,076 12 1177 12
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24.RESERVES

Treasury shares

Treasury shares represent the cost of BrewDog PLC shares purchased in the

market and held by the BrewDog PLC.

During the year the Group acquired 53,493 of its own shares at a cost of £1318

per share

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

subsidiaries.

25.GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Company

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been

entered into with related parties for the relevant year:

Group and company 2017 2016

£000 £000

At1January 2,079 1430

Received during the year 250 778

Released through the statement of (136) (129)
comprehensive income

At 31December 2193 2079

2017 2016

£000 £000

Current 150 146

Non-current 2043 1933

2193 2,079

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certainitems
of land, property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies attached to these grants.

26.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

The financial statements include the financial statements of the group and the

subsidiaries listed following:

Name Country of

Incorporation
BrewDog Retail Limited Scotland
BrewDog USA Inc USA
BrewDog GMBH Germany
BrewDog Columbus LLC USA
BrewDog Brewing Company LLC USA
LLone Wolf Spirits Limited Scotland
BD Casanova SL Spain
BrewDog Belgium SPRL Belgium

% Interest

100

98
100
100
100
100
100
100

Sales and purchases between related parties are made at normal market
prices. Outstanding balances are unsecured and cash settlement terms vary

between 30 and 90 days. The company has provided guarantees for anumber

of related party payables. The company has not made any provision for
doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties.

Salesto  Purchases Amounts Amounts
related  fromrelated owed by owedto
parties parties relat_ed relat_ed

parties parties
£000 £000 £000 £000
Wholly owned subsidiaries:
BrewDog Retail Ltd
2017 6,084 - 10 -
2016 6,231 - 2273 -
BrewDog USA Inc
2017 243 - 20673 -
2016 - - 13,961 -
BrewDog GMBH
2017 142 - 859 -
2016 12 - 862 -
Lone Wolf Spirits Ltd
2017 - 543 286 -
2016 - - - -
BrewDog SPRL
2017 30 - 845 -
2016 - - - -
BD Casanova SL
2017 - - 1 -
2016 - - - -
Other directors’interests
2017 9 74 16 9
2016 30 43 18 39
Director’sloan Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related parties £000 related parties £000
2017 23 -
2016 - 9

Director’'sloan

Amounts due to directors are non-interest bearing and are repayable on

demand.

Other directors’interests

During both 2017 and 2016, purchases at normal market prices were made by
group companies from JBW (77) Limited, a company controlled by one of the

directors.

During both 2017 and 2016, sales and purchases at normal market prices were
made by group companies to and from Musa 77 Limited, a company controlled

by one of the directors.

27.POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end the company concluded a lease for the

construction of anew brewery in Brisbane, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the members of BrewDog PLC
OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of BrewDog PLC (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 which comprise group and parent company statements of financial position, the group
statement of comprehensive income, the group and parent company statements of cash flows, the group and parent
company statements of changes in equity and the related notes 1to 27, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

[n our opinion:

- thefinancial statements give a true and fair view of the group's and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December
2017 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

- thegroup financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union;

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006: and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report below. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

USE OF OUR REPORT

Thisreportis made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN:

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

- thedirectors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

- thedirectors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group's or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
inthe audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
or amaterial misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- theinformation givenin the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- thestrategic report and directors report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to youif, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certaindisclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPUNSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 42, the directors are responsible for

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THEAUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor'sreport.

Jamie Dixon (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP (Statutory Auditor), Aberdeen. 19 March 2018

Notes:

1. Themaintenance and integrity of the BrewDog PLC web site is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that
may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the web site

2. Legislation inthe United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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